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ASBESTOS SCHOOL HAZARD ABATEMENT

TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 1990

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMM I I'LXE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION
AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS,

Washington, DC
The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 1:13 p.m., in room

2322, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Thomas A. Luken
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. Lux.m. Let's move ahead. I apologize for starting a little latetoday, but there were other things on the calendar for the commit-tee this morning.
Today the subcommittee convenes to consider legislation to reau-thorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1989, orASHAA. The subcommittee will consider testimony from two scien-tific experts on the relative risks of exposure to asbestos. The main

purpose of ASHAA, however, is to provide financial assistance toneedy school districts in the font o's loans and grants for asbestos-related activities. These include inspecting for asbestos-containing
materials, preparing management plans, abating asbestos, and re-placing asbestos with other material.

Another asbestos law, the Asbestos Hazard Emergency ResponseAct, or AHERA, requires the schools to inspect for asbestos and todevelop and implement asbestos management plans. Asbestosabatement can range from inspection and maintenance to completeremoval, depending upon factors such as condition and location ofthe asbestos. Appropriate action should be determined on a case-by-case basis.
The current ASHAA authorization expires this September. If itis not reauthorized, no Federal assistance will be available to manypublic and privF.ce schools for abatement, nor will any funds beavailable to continue the information assistance program currentlyprovided by EPA.
According to EPP , as of October 1989, 94 percent of all school

districts had completed the asbestos management plans required byAHERA. This means that 94 percent of the schools should have ac-tually begun abatement work, many of which would be entitled toreceive loans or grants under ASHAA. The latest data from EPAindicates that the amovnt of money requested through ASHAA has
increased, but the majority of schools are unable to get the finan-cial assistance they need to manage asbestos. In the 1990 applica-tion cycle, local educational authorities requested almost $406 mil-

(1)
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lion for abatement activities but only $44 million, or 11 percent,
was made available.

H.R. 3677 extends the authorization for the loan and grant pro-
gram through 1995 and increases the maximum amount that could
be appropriated to $250 million per year. As we will hear today in
Lestiniony before the subcommittee, there is a dire need for con-
tinuing to provide Federal assistance to our schools for abating as-
bestos. Scarce money that otherwise would be spent on education
will be diverted to pay for asbestos abatement. Already, private
schools have closed because they couki not pay for federally man-
dated abatement projects, and I suzpect there are public schools
who have either closed or are in danger of closing. Those that have
not been forced to close have had to cut costs in other critical areas
of education.

Aside from the funding issue, we will hear testimony from two
medical experts. While Dr. Gee and Dr. Levin are generally viewed
as representing opposite sides of the debate in asbestos, it seems to
me that they share much in common, and what they share in
common is applicable to this legislation. Both agree, as we all must
agree, that high levels of asbestos exposure are worse than low
level exposure or none. Both are concerned about exposure to
workers removing asbestos. Both seem to agree that Iemoval of
asbestos is not always the best answer and that undisturbed or
undamaged asbestos may be best left alone.

The bill before us today, H.R. 3677, was introduced by our former
colleague, Mr. Florio, and more than 60 other original cosponsors.
The bill includes important improvements to the ASHAA program
and doubles the amount authorized to clean up asbestos in our
schools. Since it was introduced, it has gathered additional cospon-
sors and it now has more than 80.

That concludes my preliminary statement. I am pleased to call
upon the gentleman from Kansas, the ranking minority member of
the subcommittee, Mr. Whittaker, for any preliminary statement
that he may have.

[Testimony resumes on p. 211
[The text of H.R. 3677 folk ws]
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1018T CONGRESS H R. 36771ST SESSION

To reauthorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatenwnt Act of 1ilt44.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NOVEMBER 16, 1959

Mr. FLORIO (for himself, Mr. THOMAS A. LtIKEN, Mr. ECKART, Mr. RINALIX),
Mr. &HEUER, Mr. MARKEY, Mrs. COLLINS, Mr. SIKORSKI, Mr. RICHARD
SON, Mr. BRUCE, Mr. BATES, Mr. TRAXIER, Mr. ACKE.IMAN, Mr.
AuCoIN, Mr. BATEMAN, Mr. BOEHLERT, Mrt Bosco, Mrs. BoxElt, Mr.
BROWN 0; California, Mr. COI,RMAN of Texa. Mr. DEFAzto, Mr. 1)1'71,-
1.1.1MS, Mr. DURBIN, Mr. DWYER Of New Jersey, Mr. Ihritm.i.v. Mr.
EVANS, Mr. FASCELL, Mr. FAUNTROY, Mr. FAZIO, Mr. FOGLIETTA, MT.
FRANK, Mr. FROST, Mr. OFJDENSON, Mr, OONIZAI.EZ, Mr. GORDON, Mr.
HAYxs of Louisiana, Mr. HERTEL, Mr. HOAGLAND, Mr. KASTENMEIER,
Mr. KILDEE, Mr. LAFALCE, Ms. LONG, Mr. MI.EWEN, Mr. MCNULTY, Mr.
MARTIN of New York, Mr. MII.LER of WashMgttm, Mrs. MORELLA, Mr.
MottatsoN of Connecticut, Mr. MRAZEK, Mr. Nxt,soN of Florida. Mr. OBER-
STAR, Mr. OWENS of New York, Ms. PELOSI, MT. RAHALL, Mr. RIDGE, Mr.
ROE, Mr. SAREALIIIS, Mr. SAVAGE, MS. SLAUGHTER of New York, Mr,
SMITH of Florida, Mr. STAtstwas, MT. STOKES, Mr. TORRYS, MrS.
Nom), Mr. VENTO, Mr. Wow, and Mr. Wot,ey,) introduced the following
hill; which was referred to the Connnittee on Energy and Comnieree

A BILL
To reauthorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of

1984.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-

2 lives of the United States of America in Congress assenthled,
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2

1 SECTION I. SHORT TITLE.

2 This Act may be cited as the "Asbestos School Hazard

3 Abatement Reauthorization Act of 1989".

4 SEC. 2. FINDINGS AND PURPOSES.

5 (a) FINMNGS.Congress finds the following:

6 (1) Exposure to asbestos fibers has been found to

7 cause various cancers and other severe or fatal dis-

8 eases, such as asbestosis,

9 (2) Children are particularly susceptible to the ad-

10 verse health effects of inhaling asbestos fibers.

11 (3) Asbestos which is friable can result in the re-

12 lease of asbestos fibers into the air, presenting a health

13 hazard.

14 (4) The Environmental Protection Agency has es-

15 timated that more than 44,000 school buildings contain

16 friable asbestos, exposing more than 15,000,000 school

17 children and 1,500,000 school employees to unwar-

18 ranted health hazards.

19 (5) All elementary and secondary schools are rc-

20 quired by the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response

21 Act to inspect for asbestos, develop an asbestos man-

22 agement plan, and implement such plan.

23 (6) The Environmental Protection Agency has es-

24 timated it will cost local education agencies more than

25 $3,000,000,000 to comply with the Asbestos Hazard

26 Emergency Response Act.
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1 (7) Without a continuing program of information

2 assistance, technical and scientific assistence, training,

3 and financial support, many local educational agencies

4 will be unable to carry out sufficient response actions

5 to prevent the release of asbestos fibers into Ihe

6 (8) Without the provisions of sufficient financial

7 suppurt, the cost to local educational agencies of imple,-

8 menting asbestos response actions may have an ad-

9 verse impact in their educational mission.

10 (9) The effective regulation of interstate com-

11 merce for the protection of human health and the envi-

12 ronment requires the continuation of programs to miti-

13 gate hazards of asbestos fibers and materials emitting

14 such fibers.

15 (b) PURPOSES.ne purposes of this ,'_ct are the

16 following:

17 (1) To direct the Environmental Prot9ction

18 Agency to maintain a program to assist local schools in

19 carrying out their responsibilities under the Asbestos

20 Hazard Emergency Response Act.

21 (2) To provide continuing scientific and technical

22 assistance to State and local agencies to enable them

23 to identify and abate asbestos health hazards.

24 (3) To provide imancial assistance to State and

25 local agencies for training of persons involved with in-
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1 spections and abatement of asbestos, for conducting

2 necessary reinspections of school buildings, and for the

3 actual abatement of asbestos threats to the health and

4 safety of school children or employees.

5 ;4) To assure that no employee of a local educa-

6 tional agency suffers any disciplinary action as a result

7 of calling attention to potential asbestos hazards which

8 may exist in schools.

9 SEC. 3. AMENDMENTS TO ASBESTOS SCHOOL HAZARD ABATE-

10 MENT Aer OF 1984.

11 Except as otherwise specifically provided, whenever in

12 this Act a section or other provision is amended or repealed,

13 such amendment or repeal shall be considered to he made to

14 that section or other provision of the Asbestos School Hazard

15 Abatement Act of 1984 (20 U.S.C. 4011 et seq.).

16 SEC. 4. ASBESTOS HAZARDS ABATEMENT PROGRAM.

17 Subsection (b) of section 503 is amended-

18 (1) in paragraph (2), by inserting "educational"

19 after "local";

20 (2) in paragraph (2), by inserting ", including

21 parent and employee organizations," after "institu-

22 Lions"; and

23 (3) by amending paragraph (3) to read as follows:

24 "(5) not later than 45 days after the appropriation

25 of funds each year to carry out the asbestos hazards
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1 abatement program under this title, the development

2 and distribution to all local educational agencies of an

3 applicationiorm; and".

4 SEC. 5. STATE RECORDS AND PRIORITY LISTS.

5 (a) MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.Subsection (a) of

6 section 504 is amended-

7 (1) by striking out "Not later than" and all that

8 follows through "maintaining records on" and insert-

9 ing in lieu thereof "The Governor of each State shall

10 maintain records on";

11 (2) in paragraph (2), by inserting "and other re-

12 sponse actions" after "abatement activities";

13 (3) by inserting "and" after the semicolon at the

14 end of paragraph (2); and

15 (4) in paragraph (3), by striking out "subpara-

16 graph (B)" and inserting in lieu thereof "paragraph

17 (2)".

18 (b) DELETION OF DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION REF-

19 ERENCES.Subsection (b)(1) of section 504 is amended-

20 (1) by striking out "Not later than six months

21 after the date of the enactment of this title and annual-

22 ly thereafter," and inserting in lieu thereof "Each

23 year, in accordance with procedures established by the

'24 Administrator,";
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1 (2) in subparagraphs (A) and (B), by strikirg out

2 "and the Secretary of the Department of Education"

3 both places it appears;

4 (8) in subparagraph (A), by inserting "and" after

5 the semicolon at the end of such subparagraph; and

6 (4) by striking out subparagraph (C).

7 (c) DETERMINATION OP ADEQUACY OF RESOURCES.

8 Subsection (bX4) of section 504 is amended-

9 (1) by redesignating subparagraph (F) as subpara-

10 graph (0); and

11 (2) by inserting aft4r subparagraph (E) the follow-

12 ing new subparagraph:

13 "(F) Any additional costs to the local educa-

14 tional agency of meeting the special needs of dis-

15 advantaged students.".

16 (d) CONFORMING AMENDMENT.Section 504 is further

17 amended by striking out subsection (c).

18 SEC. S. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.

19 (a) APPLICATION APPROVAL DEADLINE. Subsection

20 (b) of section 505 is amended-

21 (1) in paragraph (2), by striking out "applications

22 shall be submitted," and inserting in lieu thereof "the

23 Governor shall submit applications,";

24 (2) in paragraph (2), by adding at the end the fol-

25 lowing: "The Administrator shall approve or disap-
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1 prove applications for financial assistance no later than

2 April 30 of each year.": and

3 (3) by striking out paragraph (3).

4 (b) RANKING APPLICATIONS.Subsection (c)(2)(B)(iv)

5 of section 505 is amended by strikirg out "is cost-effective

6 compared to other techniques including management of mate-

7 rial containing asbestos" and inserting in lieu thereof "uses

8 the least burdensome methods which protect human heaiih

9 and the environment".

10 (c) DELETION OF REFERENCE TO DEPARTMENT OF

1 1 EDUCATION REPORT.Subseetion (c)(3) of such section is

12 amended by striking out "shall consider" and all that fol-

13 lows through the end of the paragraph and insertiag in lieu

14 thereof the following: "shall consider the financial resources

15 available to the applicant as certified by the Governor pursu-

16 ant to section 504(b)(4).-.

17 (d) ADDITIONAL LIMITATION.--Subsection (d) of such

1t4 section is amended to read as follows:

19 *(d) LIMITATION.In no event shall financial assist-

20 ance be provided under this title to an applicant if-

21 "(1) the Administrator determines that such appli-

22 cant has resources adequate to support an appropriate

23 asbestos materials abatement program; or
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1 "(2) the applicant is not in compliance with title

2 II of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C.

3 2641 et seq.).".

4 (e) REQUIREMENT TO DEPOSIT FUNDS INTO ASBES-

5 TOS TRUST FUND.Subsection (f) of such section is amend-

6 ed in paragraph (3) by striking out "for deposit in the general

7 fund" and inserting in lieu thereof the following: "for deposit

8 in the, ;bestos Trust Fund established by section 5 of the

9 Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (Public Law 99-

10 519; 20 U.S.C. 4022)".

11 co ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR APPLICATION

12 APPROVALSubsection (g) of such section is amended-

13 (1) in paragraph (1), by striking out "within the

14 five-year period beginning on the effective date of this

15 title" and inserting in lieu thereof "in accordance with

16 such procedures as may be developed by the Adininis-

17 trator";

18 (2) in paragraph (2)(B), by amending clauses (i)

19 and (ii) to read as follows:

20 "(i) the local educational agency has pre-

21 pared and is implementing an asbestos manage-

22 meat plan, as required under title II of the Toxic

23 Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.);

24 and

1
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1 "(ii) all activities to be conducted with the fi-

2 nancial assistance will be performed by individuals

3 trained and accredited in conformance with title

4 11 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15

5 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.) and regulations promulgated

6 under that title;"; and

7 (3) by striking out paragraph (4).

8 SEC. 7. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.

9 Section 306 is amended-

10 (1) by redesignating subsection (c) as subsection

11 (d); and

12 (2) by striking out subsection (b) and inserting in

13 lieu thereof the following:

14 "(b) PROCEMBES.The Administrator also shall es-

15 tablish procedures to be used by local educational agencies,

16 in programs for which financial assistance is made available

17 under section 505, for-

18 "(1) abating asbestos materials in school buildings;

19 "(2) replacing the asbestos materials removed

20 from school buildings with other appropriate building

21 materials; and

22 "(3) restoring such school buildings to conditions

23 comparable to those existing before asbestos contain-

24 ment or removal activities were undertaken.
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1 lc) RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LANVS.Nothing con-

2 tained in this title shall be construed, interpreted, or applied

3 to diminish in any way the level of protection required under

4 any other State or Federal worker protection or other appli-

5 cable laws.".

6 SEC. 8. ANNUAL REPORT.

7 (a) REPORT DEADLINE.The first sentImee of section

8 507 is amended to read as follows: "During each calendar

9 year until 1999, the Administrator shall prepare and submit,

10 not later than June 1 of each year, to the Committee on

11 Environment and Public Works of the Senate and to the

12 Committee on Energy and Commerce of the House of Repre-

13 sentatives a report on the loan and grant program authorized

14 by section 505 of this title.",

15 (b) CONTENTS OP REPOET.Paragraph (6) of such see-

16 tion is amended by inserting before the period the following:

17 "and the amount of resources needed by such schools, eate-

18 gorized by State, to abate all remaining asbestos hazards".

19 SEC. 9. RECOVERY OF COSTS.

20 Paragraph (2) of section 508(a) is amended by inserting

21 after "repay to the United States," the following: "by deposit

22 in the Asbestos Trust Fund established by section 5 of the

23 Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (20 U.S.C.

24 4022),".

1;
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1 SEC. 10. DEFINITIONS.

2 Section 511 is amended-

3 (1) in paragraph (3), by inserting ", vibration,"

4 after "damage from water"; and

5 (2) by adding at the end the following new para-

6 graph:

7 "(9) The term 'response action' has the meaning

8 given such term by section '202(11) of the Toxic Sub-

9 stances Control 4et (15 U.S.C. 2642(11).",

10 SEC. 11. AUTHO)iaATION.

1 1 (a) AUTHOEIZATION.Paragraph (1) of section 512(a)

12 is amerded to read as follows: "(1) There are hereby author-

13 ized to bc appropriated for the asbeaos abatement program

14 not more thar $250,000,000 for each of fiscal years 1991,

15 1992, 1993, 1994, and 1995.".

16 (b) SPECIFIC PEOGRAM3.Subsection (b) of section

17 512 is amended by striking out paragraph (2) and inserting in

18 lieu thereof the following:

19 "(2) Of those sums appropriated for the implementation

20 of this title, not more than 5 percent may be reserved during

21 each fiscal year for the administration of this title and for

22 programs including (but not limited to) the following:

23 "(A) The establishment of training centers for

24 contractors, engineers, school employees, parents, and

25 other personnel to provide instruct;on, in accordance

26 with title II of the Toxic Substances Control Act (15

'1
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1 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.), on asbestos assessment and

2 abatement.

3 "(B) The development and dissemination of abate-

4 ment guidance documents to assist in evaluation of po-

5 tential hazards and the determination of proper abate-

6 ment programs.

7 "(C) The development of rules and regulations re-

8 garding inspection, reporting, and recordkeeping.

9 "(D) The development of a comprehensive testing

10 and technical assistance program.

11 "(3) Of those sums appropriated for any fiscal year for

12 the implementation of this title, the Administrator may use

13 not more than 5 percent to provide grants to States for the

14 following purposes:

15 "(A) Assisting local educational agencies in per-

16 forming the periodic reinspections and training activi-

17 ties required under title II of the Toxic Substance:z

18 Control Act (15 U.S.C. 2641 et seq.).

19 "(8) Establishing and maintaining programs to

20 accredit personnel performing asbestos inspections and

21 response actions.".
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1 SEC. 12. CVNFORMING AMENDMENTS TO ASBESTOS TRUST

2 FUND.

3 (a) AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO TRUST ArND.Sec-

4 tion 5(bX1) of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act

5 of 1986 (Public Law 99-519) is amended-

6 (1) in subparagraph (A), by striking out "as in

7 effect on the date of the enactment of this Act, and"

8 and inserting in lieu thereof a comma;

9 (2) in subparagraph (B), by striking out the period

10 at the end and inserting in lieu thereof ", and"; and

11 (3) by adding at the end the following new sub-

12 paragraph:

13 "(C) amounts received as proceeds from any judg-

14 ment recovered in any suit brought pursuant to section

15 508(01) of the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement

16 Act of 1984 (20 U.S.C. 4017(aX1))."

17 (b) EXPENDITURES FROM TRUST FuND.Seetion 5(d)

18 of such Act is amended by striking out "as in effect on the

19 date of the enactment of this Act".

20 SEC. 13. TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS.

21 (a) SECTION HEADINGS.--(1) Section 501 is amended

22 by striking out. "Smc. 501." and inserting the following sec-

23 tion heading:



16

14

1 "SEC. 501. SHORT TITLE.".

2 (2) Section 502 is amended by striking out the section

3 heading and "SEc. 502." and inserting in lieu of the section

4 heading the following:

5 "SEC. 502. FINDINGS AND PURPOSES.".

6 (3) Section 503 is amended by striking out the section

7 heading and "SEc. 503." and inserting in lieu of the section

8 heading the following:

9 "SEC. 503. ASBESTOS HAZARD ABATEMENT PROGRAM.",

10 (4) Section 504 is amended by striking out the section

11 heading and "SEc. 504." and inserting in lieu of the section

12 heading the following:

13 "SEC. 504. STATE RECORDS AND PRIORITY LISTS.",

14 (5) Section 505 is amended by striking out the sect.on

15 ivmding and "SEc. 505." and inserting in lieu of the section

16 heading the following:

17 "SEC. 505. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE.".

18 (6) Section 506 is amended by strik;ng out "Six. 506."

19 and inserting the following section heading:

20 "SEC. 506. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.".

21 (7) Section 507 is amended by striking out "SEc. 507."

22 and inserting the following section heading:

23 "SEC. 507. ANNUAL REPORT.".

24 (8) Section 508 is amended by striking out "S'Ec. 508"

25 and inserting the following section heading:

1
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1 "SEC 500. RECOVERY OF COSTik".

2 (9) Section 509 is amended by striking out "SEC. 509."

3 and inserting the following section heading:

4 "sm. 509. EMPLOYEE PROTECTION.".

5 (10) Section 510 is amended by striking out "SEc.

6 510." and inserting the following section heading:

7 "SEC. 610. AFFECT oN Ricirrs LINDER OTHER LAWS."

8 (11) Section 511 is amended by striking out "SEC.

9 511." and inserting the following section heading:

10 "SEC. 511. DEFINITIONS:.

11 (12) Section 512 is amended by striking out "SEc.

12 512." and inserting the following section heading:

13 "SEC. 512. AUTRORIZATION.".

14 (b) SUBRECTION IINADINOS.-(1) Section 502(a) is

15 amended by inserting "FINDINGS.-" after "(a)".

16 (2) Section 502(b) is amended by inserting "Pull.

17 POSE.-" after "(b)".

18 (3) Section 503(a) is amended by striking out "(1)" and

19 inserting in lieu thereof "ABATEMENT PROGRAM.-".

20 (4) Section 503(b) is amended by inserting

21 "DumEs." after "(b)".

22 (5) Section 504(a) is amended by inserting

23 "REcolans." after "far.

24 (6) Section 504(b) is amended--

25 (A) by inserting "PRIORITY LIST.-" after "(b)";
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1 (B) by inserting "activities and other response ac-

2 . tions" after "abatement" each place it appears in sub-

3 paragraphs (A) and (B) of paragraph (1);

4 (C) in paragraph (1)(B), by striking out "section

5 503(b)(3) and"; and

6 (D) in paragraph (4)(0), by inserting a comma

7 after "per capita income".

8 (7) Section 505 is amended-

9 (A) in subsection (a), by inserting "ASSISTANCE

10 PROORAM.-" after "(a)";

11 (B) in subsection (b), by inserting "APPLICATION

12 SUBMISSION.-" after "(b)";

13 (C) in subsection (c), by inserting "REVIEW or

14 APPLICATION.-" after "(c)";

15 (D) in subsection (e), by inserting "AMOUNT OF

16 LOAN OR ORANT.-" after "(e)";

17 (E) in subsection (f), by inserting "LOAN AGREE-

18 MENT.-" after "(f)"; and

19 (F) in subsection (g), by inserting "APPLICATION

20 REQUIREMENTS.-" after "(g)" .

21 (6) Section 506(a) is amended by inserting "REGULA-

22 TIONS.---" after "(a)".

23 (7) Section 506(d) (as redesignated by section 7) is

24 amended
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1 (A) by inserting "OTHER Al:THOEITY.-" after

2 "(d)"; and

3 (B) by inserting a comma after "standards" the

4 first place it appears.

5 (8) Section 508(a) is amended by inserting "LoAN CON-

6 DITION.-" after "(a)".

7 (9) Section 508(b) is amended by inserting "ExPEni-

8 TIOUS RECOVERY.-" after "(13)".

9 (C) MISCELLANEOUS TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS.-(1)

10 Section 505(b) is amended in paragraph (1) by striking out

11 the comma after "educational agency".

12 (2) Section 505(c) is amended-

13 (A) in paragraph (2), by inserting "and" after the

14 semicolon at the end of subparagraph (A); and

15 (B) in paragraph (2), by inserting a comma after

16 "confined space" in subparagraph (B)(ii) and after

17 "techniques" in subparagraph (BXiv).

.t 8 (3) Section 505(e) is amended by striking out "per

19 centum" both places it appears and inserting in lieu thereof

20 "percent".

21 (4) Section 505(g) is amended-

22 (A) by redesignating tht; subparagraph (B) appear-

23 ing after paragraph (3) as paragraph (4) and conform-

24 ing the margin accordingly; and
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1 (B) by inserting a comma in paragraph (4) (as so

2 redesignated) after "section 512(bX1)''.

3 (5) Section 508 is amended by striking out "sections"

4 and inserting in lieu thereof "section".

5 (6) Section 511 is amended--

6 (A) by striking out "For purposes of this title"

and inserting in lieu thereof "For purposes of this

8 title:";

9 (B) by striking out "the" at the beginning of each

10 paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof "The";

11 (C) by striking out the semicolon at the end of

12 each paragraph and inserting in lieu thereof a period;

13 (D) by striking out the word "each" in paragraph

14 (3); and

15 (E) by inserting "secondary" before "school" in

16 paragraph (5).
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Mr. WHITTAKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am delighted to be
here today to begin the reauthorization of the Asbestos School
Hazard Abatement Act.

ASHAA embodies our desire to aid needy schools that meet the
requirements of AHERA, the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Re-
sponse Act. This legislation must be reauthorized this year in order
to ensure continued adequate funding of this important program.
ASHAA has so far distributed nearly $250 million in loans and
grants to local educational authorities. We will hear testimony
today indicating that these funds have financed one-third of the
highest priority asbestos response actions. This, in combination
with projects financed at the local level, has significantly reduced
the threat posed by the most serious school asbestos problems.

Given the budgetary realities imposed on all of us by the
Gramm-Rudman budget target, I do believe, however, that it is an
exercise in futility to double this program's authorization. Appro-
priations without authorizations will do nothing to aid our schools.
In light of these constraints, we need to focus on a more steady
funding of ASHAA's program. I hope that in today's hearing we
can discuss the best use of the available dollars. We must ensure
that the projects financed by ASHAA produce the greatest health
benefit for the money that is spent.

I understand we will have testimony from both sides of the con-
troversy surrounding the recent article in Science magazine. I look
forward to hearing the latest thinking on the nature of the threat
posed by asbestos. I hope that the Environmental Protection
Agency will update us on their continuing efforts in this area. Most
of all, I want to know how we can use the available dollars to clean
up more schools and reduce the risk of disease for more children.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LI.TREN. Thank you, Mr. Whittaker.
I mentioned earlier in my opening statement that we are still

working on the bill introduced by Mr. Florio. It has a permanence
and so we're going to consider it, even though Mr. Florio has gone
on to other pastures. But since he has, the other gentleman from
Ohio, Mr. Eckart, has adopted the platform and policies of Mr.
Florioat least with reference to this legislation, I believe. He is
carrying on this great work and we appreciate that. He is here and
we ask him for any opening statement he may have.

I'm not talking about increasing taxes, now.
Mr. &KART. I was about to say, I hope that's not a reference to

redistricting. I didn't know that my district was going to carry me
to New Jersey.

Mr. Chairman, thank you. My Republican colleague and the
Chair have articulated a number of my concerns and my hopes. My
ongoing fear is that there are 15 million schoolchildren and 1.5 mil-
lion school employees working in more than 40,000 suspect build-
ings around this country. The controversies notwithstanding, I
think we all know that a healthy educational environment is as ap-
propriate and necessary for a child's success as the simple provid-
ing of the education.

This program and its successor on reauthorization I think are de-
signed to try to assist school districts. The extent to which we are
or are not meeting that test, the extent to which government agen-
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cies responsible for implementing it are or are not meeting that
test., will be the focus of this reauthorization. So I look forward to
the bearing and ultimately to the markup, to the comments of my
constituents, and certainly an old friend who is here on new mat-
ters from the EPA.

As all of us with children in these circumstances fully appreci-
ate, it iB sometimes the quiet and silent things in life that prove to
leave the longest lasting impressions. School environments that are
unhealthy is one area in which we pay a very extreme premium
for it.

I thank my colleagues.
Mr. LitixE.N. Thank you, Mr. Eckart.
And, unob'rusively walking into the room is the gentleman from

Maryland, Mr. McMillen. We are just completing opening state-
ments on this important issue, and it is your turn if you have any
statement.

Mr. MCMILLEN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the
chance to say a few words.

I want to voice my support for this hill, H.R. 3677, and I'm
plea-- that we will have a chance to listen to the distinguished

,..nesses figuring out enhanced ways to reduce the health threat
posed to some 15 million children exposed to asbestos in the class-
room.

I think it is particularly disconcerting to me to realize that we
are only able to accommodate about 11 percent of the requests for
assistance received in the 1990 cycle, so the magnitude of need is
very important. I certainly support an increased authorization for
this program and want to make sure they're allocated in an effi-
cient and unbiased manner. So I am pleased that this bill requires
a reevaluaticn of the application, including the financial and need
criteria used in determining eligibility. I am pleased to support this
legislation.

Mr. LUAEN. I thank the gentleman from Maryland.
We'll now get into the meat of the batting order and call up the

EPA, Ms. Linda Fisher. That's just an old baseball saying, you
know. We could cal' you the "cleanup" batter. You wouldn't object
to that, would y_ou?

Ms. FISH NER. O, sir.
Mr. LtmaN. Without objection, the statement of Ms. Fisher is in-

troduced into the record. You may proceed in any way you think
will be helpful.

STATEMENT OF LINDA J. FISHER, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR
FOR PESTICIDES AND TOXIC SUBSTANCES, ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY
MS. FISHER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the opportu-

nity to testify before your subcommittee today, and I would like to
introduce to the panel Mr. Michael Stahl, who is the Division Di-
rector that runs the asbestos abatement program. He will be assist-
ing me in answering questions of the subcommittee.

I welcome this opportunity to clarify the Agency's policy to
reduce asbestos exposure in the Nation's schools and to set the
record straight on a number of recent studies and reports regard-
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ing asbestkis. Allow me first to address some of the specific concerns
that you may have regarding how EPA has conducted the asbeetos
in schools program.

In 1986, Congress passed the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Re-
sponse Act, AHERA, which directed EPA to issue regulations re-
garding public and private elementary and secondary schools to in-
spect their buildings, to develop asbestos management plans, and to
submit those plans to States, and then to proceed to implement ap-
propriate response action. That response action can include such
things as in-place management, repair, encapsulation or removal.
Schools are required in carrying out their authorities to use accred-
ited personnel.

AHERA also directed EPA to issue a model accreditation plan
for training and accretuting inspectors, planners, and abatement
contractors and workers, and to promulgate final regulations for
asbestos inspection and management. The Agency completed all of
its requirements in the timeframes given them under the statute.
Today, at least 94 percent of the Nation's schools have completed
their insr --tion and maintenance plans. Therefore, after more
than 3 years of hard work by EPA, the States and the schools, we
have in place a frame work for managing asbestos in schools.

In 1987 EPA issued its model plan for training and accreditation
of asbestOs inspectors, planners and abatement contractors and
workers. The model plan specified criteria for initial training, ex-
amination, and included a continuing education requirement.
AHER . required States to adopt contractor accreditation plans
that were at least as stringent as those called for by EPA. Asbestos
management personnel can gain accreditation either by meeting
the State requirements or by completing an EPA approved training
course and passing an exam. We have published a model curricu-
lum for these courses in order to promote national uniformity and

hifhpquality.

A has also financed and implemented several projects in addi-
tion to the model plan that were designed to develop and enhance
State programs. The Agency, using the National Conference of
State Legislatures, developed model legislation to assist them in de-
veloping certification programs that would be based on fees to help
States fund their operations. We have also provided about $5 mil-
lion to States to support their asbestos management training activi-
ties

These efforts have paid off. We estimate today that we have ap-
proximately 100,000 ,)eople who are accredited under AHERA for
asbestos-related work. Forty-seven States have either an AHERA
accreditation program or a training and certification program
which we hope to upgrade to meet the AHERA levels.

Forty-two of those.47 States have extended their requirements to
cover all abatement work in both public and commercial buildinr-
as well as in schools. Additionally, we have 587 training provid
and offer over 1,100 EPA-approved courses.

EPA has begun a major evaluation of all aspects of the AHERA
program. The goal is to answer several questions that have been
asked frequently, such as, are the inspections and the response ac-
tions being properly conducted in the schools; have the manage-
ment plans proved to be useful and accurate in their information;
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have the maintenance and custodial workers received adequate
training to protect themselves and others; and has EPA effectively
notified schools of all of its AHERA requirements? We hope to see
the results of this evaluation in a few months.

I would like now to discuss the school loan and grant program,
which was established in 1984. As you know, ASHAA established a
program within EPA to provide financial assistance to public and
nonprofit schools to help them conduct their asbestos projects.
Under the provisions of ASHAA, EPA provides financial assistance
to the local education agencies which meet two criteriaone, they
have serious asbestos hazards, and two, they have demonstrated fi-
nancial need.

In May of this year, we announced our 1990 awards. Since the
prwram began in 1985, including the 1990 awards, we have distrib-
utW $245 million ASHAA loans and grants to fund over 2,400 indi-
vidual abatement projects. This investment of Federal funds has
addressed a significant portion of the most severe asbestos prob-
lems in the most needy schools.

This is the final year of the ASHAA program and legislation
before this committee proposes to reauthorize it. While the admin-
istration does not oppose the reauthorization at this time, we are
concerned that it may not be the best use of scarce Federal re-
sources for a problem which we have considered to be largely a
State and local responsibility.

Having discuswd the issues relating to our administration of the
school asbestos program, let me take a minute to turn to another
topic; that is, the controversy over the risks associated with expo-
sure to asbestos in buildings.

Much of the recent debate surrounds the level of danger posed by
various types of asbestos fibers. Some news reports have seemed to
indicate that one fiber can kill. Other sources, such as the January
19 article in Science magazine, have appeared to suggest that the
most common forms of asbestos are actually safe to humans.

This controversy has obvious implications for any Federal poli-
cies concerning asbestos. I appreciate the opportunity to clarify
EPA's current policies and requirements for asbestos control in
schools rAnd in public and commercial buildings.

First of all, EPA believes that, although asbestos is hazardous,
human risk of asbestos disease depends upon exposure. Asbestos is
known to cause cancer and other disease if the fibers are inhaled
into the lung and remain there. This knowledge is based on studies
involving human exposure, particularly at very high levels. Howev-
er, the mere presence of a hazardous substance such as asbestos
that might he in a ceiling no more implies disease than the 11 ten-
tial for poison in a medicine cabinet implies poisoning. As tos
fibers must be released from the material in which they are con-
tained, and an individual must breathe those fibers in order to
incur any chance of disease.

Point No. 2. Prevailing asbestos levels in buildings seem to be
very low. Accordingly, the health risk to building occupants also
appears to be very low.

In 1987, an EPA study found that the air levels in a segment of
Federal buildings with management programs were so low as to be
virtually indistinguishable from levels outside these buildings.
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While these data are not conclusive, and we are seeking more in-
formation through a major research effort, the present evidence
suggests that building occupants face only a very slight risk.

Point No. 3. Removal is often not a building owner's best course
of action to reduce asbestos exposure. Although we believe that
most asbestos removals that have currently been taken have been
conducted properly, asbestos removal practices, by their very
design, disturb the material and can significantly elevate levels of
the fiber in the air. Unless all safeguards are properly applied and
strictly adhered to, exposure in buildings can rise perhaps to levels
where we know disease can occur just because a removal has oc-
curred. Consequently, an ill-conceived or poorly conducted removal
project can actually increase risk rather than decrease or eliminate
it.

Point No. 4. EPA only requires asbestos removal in order to pre-
vent significant public exposure to asbestos during buildhig renova-
tion or demolition. We do not require removal as part of the asbes-
tos in schools program. Prior to a major renovation or demolition,
asbestos materials that are likely to be disturbed or damaged, such
that significant amounts of asbestos could be released, must be re-
moved using approved practices under EPA's NESHAP program.
Asbestos removal before we swing wrecking balls into buildings is
necessary in those cases to protect public health. However, this
cannot be said of an arbitrary asbestos removal project which actu-
ally could increase health risks unless performed properly. That is
why EPA has not mandated as part of its school program asbestos
removal beyond this one NESHAP requirement.

Fact No. 5. EPA does recommend in-place management when-
ever asbestos is discovered. A proactive in-place management pro-
gram will usually control fiber release, particularly when the mate-
rials are not significantly damaged and unlikely to be disturbed.
In-place management does not mean "do nothing." It involves
training, awareness, and notification, as well as special control pro-
cedures and periodic surveillance. Taken together, these measures
can effectively minimize asbestos risks in most situations without
the cost and the disruption of a removal.

hope that I have addressed the issues of interest to this subcom-
mittee, and I would be pleased to answer any questions that you
might have concerning our asbestos program.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Fisher follows:]

PRSPARXD STATRMINT OF LINDA J. FISIERR, ASSISTANT ADMINISTRATOR FOR PESTICIDRS
AND Toxic SUBSTANCRS, U.S. ENVIRONMICNTAL PROTICTION AGRNCY

Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of this subcommittee, I am Linda
Fisher, Assistant Administrator for the Office of Pesticides and Toxic Substances
(OPTS] of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. I very much welcome the op-
portunity to clarify the Agency's policies to reduce asbestos exposure in the Nation's
schools. I would also like to set the record straight with regard to a number of
recent studio; and reports which have received a lot of media attention.

Allow me to first address some of the specific concerns you have regarding the
EPA asbestos in schools program.
Implementation of A HERA

As you know, on October 22, 1986, President Reagan signed the Asbestos Hazard
Emergency Response Act [AHERN, under which the EPA is directed to issue regu-
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lations that require public and private elementary and secondary schools to inspect
their buildings for asbestos, develop asbestos management plans and submit them to
their State, and to implement appropriate response actions such as in-place manage-
ment, repair, encapsulation or removal. AHERA also required schools to use accred-
ited personnel to carry out these inspection management activities.

AHERA established very ambitious deadlines for EPA and the schools to imple-
ment this program. EPA was required to issue by April 1987 a Model Accreditation
Plan for training and accrediting inspectors, planners, and abatement contractors
and workers. EPA was also required to promulgate final regulations for asbestos in-
swtion and management by October 1987. The Agency met both these deadlines.
The nation's schools also faced a difficult deadline of October 1988 for completing
inspections and submitting management plans to States. Congress later amended
AHER.A to give schools the option of extending this deadline to May 1989. EPA's
analysis indicates that at least 94 percent of the nation's schools now have complet-
ed their inspections and management plans. Thus, after more than 3 years of hard
work by EPA, States, and the schods, a framework for managing asbestos risks in
schools is run in place.
Accreditation of Asbestos Personnel

As mentioned above, EPA was directed to issue under AHERA a model accredita-
tion plan to provide training and accreditation for persons who inspect, manage and
abate asbestos in schools. The training and accrediting of sufficient numbers of in-
spectors and planners to meet the demands being placed on school districts by the
AHERA requirements posed a major challenge for us. The competence of these ac-
credited persons, and the quality of the work they perform in our schools is an ongo-
ing concern for EPA. EPA has substantially increased the number of competent as-
bestos professionals. In fact, we believe that EPA's university training centers, and
a couple of leading labor training programs alone have accredited nearly 60,000 in-
dividuals. In all, we estimate 100,000 or more AHERA-accredited persons are avail-
able nationally for asbestos-related work today.

The model plan specified criteria necessary for initial training, examination and
continuing education required under AHERA for accreditation of persons in all as-
bestos management disciplines, including ins rs, management planners, abate-
ment supervisors and abatement workers. Vse persons can be accredited by
States, which are required under AHERA to adopt contractor accreditation plans at
least as stringent as the EPA model plan by July 1989 or by completing an EPA.
approved training course and passing an examination.

We developed a system to insure the fast, efficient, and competent review of pro-
posed accreditation courses submitted to EPA by private training organizations. As
of February 1990 a total of 587 training providers are offering 1,113 EPA-approved
training courses for accreditation, including 487 asbestos worker courses, and 373
courses for contractors and supervisors. EPA has promoted national consistency by
publishing model course curricula for AHERA contractor, inspector and manage-
ment planner training, while model materials for abatement workers and custodial
workers will be available this summer.

EPA has financed and implemented several projects in addition to the Model Plan
that were designed to develop and enhance State accreditation programs: EPA
through the National Conference of State Legislatures [NCSI..), provided the States
with model legislation to assist them in developing contractor certification programs
and fee-based funding options to support these programs; since 1985, EPA has
awarded $2.5 million in grants to 39 States for the purpose of establishing abate-
ment contrector and worker certification programs; in 1987, the Agency approved
grants totalling more than $1 million for 17 States to help them develop AHERA
inspector and management planner accreditation programs; and in 1990, EPA has
recently distributed an additional $1.5 anon for State activities, which included
accreditation programs as part of our effort to enhance State asbestoe p s.

Today, due in part to EF'A seed funding and technical assistance, 20nraut'els now
have accreditation programs that meet AHERA standards for abatement contrac-
tors and workers who comiuct school projects. In addition, another 27 States have
some type of licensing or certification program for asbestos abatement which can
upgrade to AHERA levels. Of these 47 States, 42 have extended their asbestos train-
ing and certification requirements to cover abatement work in public and commer-
cial buildings as well as schools. This ie a dramatic improvement from 1985, when
only four States had any contractor certification program at all. Now only three
States have no certification program at all.

Several other training and accreditation efforts should be noted. First, EPA has
provided funding to the National Asbestos Council [NAC], the nation's largest inter-
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disciplinary asbestos professional organization, to develop standard national exami-
nations for AHERA accreditation disciplines and promote reciprocity among States.
In addition, in 1989 and 1990, EPA will provide a total of $1.9 million to joint labor
management trust hinds to increase asbestos worker training. Also, the Asbestos
National Emission Standard for Hazardous Air Pollutants [NESHAVI, which re-
quires asbestos removal to protect pualic health during major building renovations
and demolitions, is being revised this summer to include new training for the onsite
work supervisor. Finally, EPA, under the Toxic Substances Control Act crscA], ex-
tends the protections afforded by the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Adminis-
tration [MH.A.) to private sector asbestos workers to State and local government
employees.

Evaluation of AHERA
As the AHERA program has progressed, EPA has begun to evaluate the effective-

mass of the inspection and management regulations and the accreditation programs
e have established. A major evaluation of the AMU program is underway, and

we should begin to receive results from some portion of the evaluation in the next 6
to 12 months.

Five studies will comprise the AHERA evaluation. The first study will include site
visits and reinspections. The objective o this study is to ascertain whether or not
inspections mandated by AHEM are being done properly and whether material is
properly assessed.

The second study will measure the quality of the management plans in providing
useful, accurate, and detailed information. Management plans will be compared to
the original AHERA inspection reports. An analysis of the options in the plans for
managing the asbestos will be done to see if they are specific enough to provide real
guidance to the Local Education Agencies [LEA'sj. Between 200 to 400 schools will
be completely reinspected and their management plans will be reviewed for accura-
cy and completeness.

The third study includes site visits to determine whether maintenance and custo-
dial personnel have received training, and also examines the operation and mainte-
nance plan and determines whether it is being implemented.

The fourth study deals with the effectiveness of notirication for AHERA require-
ments. This study seeks to identify the people who were notified, the medium
through which the notification was accomplished, and the response of the people
who were notified.

The fifth study is a series of onsite visits designed to evaluate response actions.
This study seeks to determine what response actions have been or are being done
and whether or not they are completed in a professional manner.
Asbestos Loan and Grant Program

I would like now to discuss the school loan and grant program established under
the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act [ASHAA) of 1984.

As you know, ASHAA established a program within EPA to provide financial as-
sistance to public and nonprofit private schools to help them conduct asbestos abate-
ment projects. Under the provisions of ASHAA, EPA is to provide financial assist-
ance to LEA's which have both serious asfiestoe hazards and a demonstrated finan-
cial need.

Since its inception in 1985, EPA has distributed a total of $245 million in ASHAA
funds, for 2,400 abatement projects. Public schools have been awarded $231.6 mil-
lior Privets schools have received $31.6 million. As a result of the abatement
projects conducted using ASHAA funding, exposure of students and school employ-
ees to asbestos will be reduced by an estimated 19.4 million hours each week.

revieRetitra3 applications submitted by public school districts and private schools
the 1990 award cycle, $43,443,000 was distributed to 129 LENs. EPA

from 46 States. Those applications contain 3,352 separate abatement projects, in
1,856 schools. Our review of these projects included approximately 100 field inspec-
tions by EPA Regional personnel to verify project descriptions and hazard data. The
awards to the 129 LEA's will fund 206 projects in 168 schools, further reducing as-
bestos exposure in students and school employees by 2 million hours per week.

Including the 1990 awards distributed in May, a total of $245 million in Federal
ftlndinLhal been provided for asbestos abatement in local schools over the past 5
years. This investment of Federal funds has addressed a significant portion of the
most severe asbestos hazards in the most needy sehoo's. While we do not oppose re-
authorization at this time, we are concerned that this may not be tho best use of
scarce resources for a problem which is essentially a State and local responsibility.
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Risk, Exposure, and Abatement Issues
Now that I have discussed issues relating to EPA's administration of AHERA and

ASHAA, let me turn to another topic.
Regrettably, EPA's asbestos policies have recently been the subject of several er-

roneous news reports and at least two seemingly contradictory exposure studies
which have confused, rather than enlightened, the public.

For example, a national television news report on asbestos in floor tile last No-
vember suggested that dangerous fiber levels were generated through routine floor
stripping operations to remove wax from tile. This news report promoted a "one
fiber can kill" image in the public's mind of an asbestos material that rarely if ever
releases fibers under normal conditions. On the other hand, an article on asbestos
published on January 19 in Science magazine, followed by various editorials, has
been interpreted to suggest that the most common form of asbestos fibers in build-

are "safe" and do not warrant our attention or concern.
rankly, I appreciate this chance to clarify the Agency's current policies and re-

quirementa for asbestos control in schools and public and commercial buildings. I
would like to provide that clarification in the form of five facts.
FACT ONE: Although asbestoe is hazardous, human risk of asbestos disease depends

upon exposure.
Asbestos is known to cause cancer and other disease if fibers are inhaled into the

lung and remain there. This conclusion is based upon studies involving human expo-
sure, particularly exposure at high levels. While evidence is better for some types of
asbestos, there is no clear proof that other typm are not as potent. EPA, based on
careful evaluation of available scientific evidence, has adopted a prudent approach
in its regulations of assuming that all fibers are equally potent. While, as the Sci-
ence article indicated, exposure to chrysotile or common white asbestos may be less
likely to cause some asbestos-related diseases, various scientific organizations, in-
cluding the National Academy of Sciences, support EPA's more prudent regulatory
approach.

With respect to the so-called "one fiber can kill" image, the present scientific evi-
dence will not allow us to state unequivocally that there is a level of exposure below
which there is a zero risk, but the risk in fact could be negligible or even zero.

However, the mere presence of a hazardous substance, such as asbestos on an au-
ditorium ceiling, no more implies disease than a potential poison in a medicine cabi-
net or under a kitchen sink implies poisoning. Asstos fibers must be released from
the material in which they are contained, and an individual must breathe those
fibers in order to incur any chance of disease.

While scientists have been unable to agree on a level of asbestos exposure at
which we, as public policy makers, can confidentl say, "there is no risk," this does
not mean that all or any exposure is inherently dangerous. To the contrary, almost
every day we are ex to me prevailing level o asbestos fibers in buildi or
experience some amgrZt21

so
level in the outdoor air. And, based upon available

very few among us, given existing centrols, have contracted or will ever contract an
asbestos-related disease at these low prevailing levels.
FACT TWO: Prevailing asbestos levels in buildingsthe levels that you and I face

as office workers or occupants---seern to be very low, based tiwn available data.
Accordingly, the health risk to building occupantsyou and mealso appears
to be very low.

Indeed, a 1987 EPA study found that air levels in a segment of Federal buildings
with management programs were so low as to be virtually indistinguishable from
levels outside these buildings. While these data are not conclusive and we are seek-
ing more information through a major research effort, the present evidence suggests
that building occupants face only a very slight risk. Severe health problems attrib-
uted to ssbestos exposure have generally been experienced by workers in industries
such as shipbuilding, where they were constantly exposed to very high fiber levels
in the air, often without any of the worker protection now afforded to them under
the law.
FACT THREE: Removal is often not a building owner's best course of action to

reduce asbestos exposure. In fact, an improper removal can create a dangerous
situation where none previously existed. It is important for everyone to under-
stand that AHERA regulations do not requirement removal of asbestos.

Although we believe most asbestos removals are being conducted properly, asbes-
toe removal practices by their very design disturb the material and significantly ele-
vate air levels, which must be carefully contained during the removal pioject.
Unless all safeguards are properly applied and strictly adhered to, exposure in the
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building can rise, perhaps to levels where we know disease can occur. Consequently,
an ill-conceived or poorly conducted removal project can actually increase rather
than eliminate risk.
FACr FOUR: EPA only requires asbestos removal in order to prevent significant

public exposure to asbestos during building renovation or demolition.
Prior to a msjor renovation or demolition, asbestos material that is likely to be

disturbed or damaged to the extent that significant amounts of asbestos would be
released, must be removed using approved practices under EPA's asbestos
NESHAP. Demolishing a building filled with asbentos, for example, would likely
result in significantly increased exposure and could create an imminent hazard.
Clearly, asbestos removal before the wrecking ball swings into action is appropriate
to protect public health. However, this cannot be said of arbitrary asbestos removal
projects, which, as noted above, can actually increase health risk unless properly
performed. This. in part, is why EPA has no mandated asbestos removal from build-
ings beyond the NESHAP requirement, which has the effect of gradually and ra-
tionally taking all remaining asbestos building materials out of the inventory.
FACT FIVE: EPA does recommend in-place management whenever asbestos is dis-

covered.
Instead of removal, a proactive in-place management program, which includes

training, awareness, special control procedures and periodic surveillance, will usual-
ly control fiber release, particularly when the materials are not significantly dam-
aged and not likely to be disturbed. In-place management, of course, does not mean
"do nothing." When a building owner finds asbestos in his facility and ignores it, he
can't establish and enforce procedures to ensure that the asbestos is not disturbed
He can't ensure that fiber levels do not rise. An in-place management program does
not have to be extraordinarily expensive. Management costs will depend upon the
amount, condition and location of the material.

As I am sure you are aware, maintenance and service workers in these buildings,
in the course of their daily activities, may disturb materials and can elevate asbes-
tos fiber levels, especially for themselves, if they are not properly trained and pro-
tected. For these persons, risk may be significantly higher. This is a primary con-
cern of EPA ant; other Federal, State and local agencies which regulate asbestos,
and the Agency is currently reviewing recent studies regarding asbestos exposure of
maintenance and service workers. An active in-place management program will
reduce any unnecessary exposure to these workers and others.

To summarize the facts, as we now know them: While asbestos is clearly hazard-
oua, its risk to human health depends on the degree of exposure; asbestos air levels
in buildings, and corresponding risk to occupants, appears to be very low, given
available data; asbestos removal, while necessary to protect public health during
renovation or demolition, is not otherwise required by EPA and is often not the
buildirw owner's best abatement choice; and EPA's asbestos program for schools and
its guidance for other building owners, which is founded on m-place management, is
designee to keen these low prevalent fiber levels low, through recognition and man-
agement.

We agree with Dr. Arthur Upton, former director of the National Cancer Institute
and head of New York University's Institute of Environmental Medicine, who, in a
letter to the New England Journal of Medicine, advocates caution in dealing with
asbestos until better information is available. Dr. Upton maintains that "abandon-
ment of asbestos inspection and abatement is not justified" by the current data.

Further, we are presently attempting to increase the knowledge base on asbestos
on several fronts, which include a public dialogue, and a major research prilram.

Through the public dialogue process . . . EPA has sponsored a policy logue
Linong groups which have a major interest in the asbestos policy regarding public
and commercial buildings. These groups include building owners, realtors, mortgage
bankers, insurers, building workers unions, public health interests, asbestos contrac-
tors and consultants, asbestos manufacturers, and representatives of Federal, State
and local organizations which have responsibility for the development and imple-
mentation of asbestos policies.

The policy dialogue is now in its final stages, and EPA expects the dialogue par-
ticipants to present the Agency with a set of general recommendations about what
they think should be done to address the issue of asbestos in public and commercial
buildings. The dialogue participants have discussed at length accreditation, training,
and improper removal issues. EPA has made a public connnitment to consider thor-
oughly any recommendations offered by the dialogue participants and to decide, as
soon as possible, whether to carry out any or all of the recommendations.

37-486 - 91 - 2
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Through the Health Effects Institute Research . . Finall , asbestos research ini .
tiated by the Health Effects Institute MEI) in Bosto n with EPA. Congressional and
private sector support will include comprehensive monitoring studies to better char-
acterize asbestos exposure in buildings. initial literature review will also ex-
amine current research which deals with fiber potency.

At EPA, we are particularly concerned about potential "peak exposures"those
which might occur tn buildings when material is disturbed or accidentally damaged.
Such disturbance can elevate levels not only for workers, but perhaps also for build-
ing occupants who might ordinarily not experience high levels. "Peak" levels have
been known to reach the range of occupational exposure for maintenance and serv-
ice personnel. HEI's research should be very helpful in increasing our knowledge on
the frequency, duration and intensity of these "peaks".

I hope this addresses the issues of interest to the subcommittee regarding EPA's
asbestos programs, and sets the record straight on the Agency s policies and recom-
mendations relating to asbestos management in the nation's schools. I appreciate
the op. rtunity to discuss these issues. I will be happy to answer any questions that
the sw....mmittee may have.

Mr. LUKEN. W61.1, do you think we should reauthorize ASHAA?
MS. FISHER. Mr. Chairman, carefully constructed words from the

administration is that we do not oppose it at this time. Given the
demands of a lot of schools placed on them by the AHERA pro-
gram, my sense is that they are strongly in need of these funds.

Mr. LUKEN. That's an improvement. Certainly the whole thing is
an improvement over previous administrations. I'm not sure that's
going to get the job done, but it's an improvement. It may not be
good enough, but it's better.

I believe you said that for occupants in buildings the risk is low
for asbestos, for contacting disease or being injured; is that right?
You said that for occupants, the risk is low.

MS. FISHER. The risk, of exposure to normal building occupants,
such as you and I in this building or in our offices and homes, is
generally thought to be very low. At those low levels--

Mr. Liam. I didn't think you said normal building occupants,
but that's what you meant, right, regardless of what you said?
When you said the risk was low, you were referring to the risk of
what?

Ms. FISHER. Exposure to levels of asbestos that would cause them
risk. We're trying to distinguish the exposures that you and I
living or working in buildings might be exposed to as compared to
what perhaps service employees or people that work in and around
asbestos and might get mucla higher and more elevated levels of ex-
posure through their work.

Mr. Lwow. All right. Then those who are in maintenance, if
there is asbestos in the building, then they very well might be ex-
posed by the nature of their work, by frequently being in contact
with the areas where the asbestos is likely to be; isn't, that right?

Ms. FISHER. They could beJ-
Mr. LUKEN. I mean where it is. I shouldn't say likely to be, but

where it is. Maintenance people.
Ms. FISHKIL They could be exposed to higher levels that general

building occupants, that's correct.
Mr. Lulus. Dangerous levels?
MS. FISHER. It depends on the building and it depends on what

types of asbestos might be in the buil and whether or not
they're trained to work in and around asbest;as.

Mr. LUKEN. Then isn't it a little dangerous to saynot danger-
ous, but isn't it inaccurate to say that asbos needn't be removed?
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is there always a danger to certain people when the asbestos is
there, for certain occupations?

Ms. Fistixa. One of the important components of the school pro-
gram is that when inspection has been done of a building, that
they notify the employees where the asbestos is. That is so the
service employees, as you suggest, might be able to protect them-
selves as they are working in and around asbestos. I mean, it
doesn't mean necessarily---

Mr. LUKEN. We're not suggesting that janitors are going to wear
some of those spacesuits, are we?

Ms, FISHER. Well, they wouldn't have to do that, but they might
want to be careful of actions they take tnat might increase the dis-
ruption or disturbance of asbestos.

Mr. LUKEN. But they just might not know what those actions
are. They might just be careless.

Ms. FISHER. Well, under AHERA---
Mr. LUKEN. We wouldn't want to penalize them with some of the

penalties that are incumbent upon asbestos exposure just for being
negligent, would we?

Ms. FISHER. Under the schools program---
Mr. LUKEN. Incidentally, I admit that right now I'm trying to be

provocative, and I don't necessarily adhere slavishly to everything
I'm suggestingalthough none of it is inaccurate. But we are deal-
ing with a lethal subject, a potentially lethal subject.

. FISHER. There are ways that asbestos workers, people that
work in and around asbestos, can protect themselves short of re-
quiring removal.

Mr. LUKEN. But there are, but we're not talking aboutand I've
been ' them, and I'm sure you have, too, and I've been to these
build s where they bring the teams in and they're all dressed up
in th e. asbestos suits to protect themselves against the asbestos.
They 1 ak like asbestos suits, whatever they are. They look like
men from Mars. They've got all that fancy equipment and every-
thing. But that doesn't apply to the ordinary, normal school, where
we've got a janitor or two around who don't have all that equip-
ment and don't have all that instruction, and they're doing a thou-
sand other things. They're not just doing one job.

Ms. FISHER. Schools are, under AHERA, required to have train-
ing for their maintenance workers. Part of the training is to edu-
cate them as to where the asbestos might be located and how not to
disturb it. So when I talk about training, it is not--

Mr. LUKEN. I know. You said that before. That's the reason I re-
sponded with what I just said. I don't think we're getting anywhere
on this particular point. You can have all the training programs
and all the manuals and whatever, but if you've got a school build-
ing where there's a couple of maintenance people, maybe one, and
each one of those has a thousand things to do, and they don't have
all the fancy equipment and so on, what good are those rules and
what good are those manuals? That person isn't going to have all
of that at his or her finFertips at the time they are operating in
the areas where the conditions for exposure are present.

I think those rules, if I may finish and elaborate a little, are fine
when we're talking about contractors who have all the equipment,
who go in specifically for the purpose of abating. But I don't think
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they are really, in fact, going to protect maintenance workers who
are not going to be constantly mindful of those instructions that
they've had for some time.

Ms. Flom. Hopefully they would change the behavior of some of
the maintenance people. I don't think we should recommend the
wholesale removal of au asbestos anywhere because we're worried
that some of the maintenance employees won't follow proper train-

intr. lauxEN. We might disagree on that point.
Ms. Footles. There are risks associated with the actual removal

that might pose even greater risks to the maintenance emplo ees
as well as to the schoolchildren and everyone else in the buil
What I would hope is that we could improve our training and edu-
cation programs for all the people that are working in buildings
that have asbestos in them and preserve the need to remove only
in those situations where the asbestos is in a condition that it does
need to be taken out.

Mr. Luxxist. Okay. Well, we =Id continue this. I find it a very
interesting discussion, but other members will have questions, also.

Just let me turn to the issue ofdo you think that schools, many
of them, feel compelled to remove the asbestos today?

Ms. Fislisn. Mr. Chairman, we are very worried that there has
been a lot of misunderstanding or miscommunication of what EPA
requires. In talking with various school districts

Mr. LUNEN. That might mean the answer is "yes"?
Ms. Flamm. The answer is "yes".
Mr. Lwow. Go ahead. I like the explanation, but I just wanted to

make sure that
Ms. FISHER. No, we are very concerned.
Mr. Lunar. Go ahead with the explanation. I'm sorry.
MS. FIEMIER. When I read Science magazine, which is a very pres-

tigious journal, and it falsely states EPA's position concerning re-
movals, that tells me we have a problem.

The Agency has met with a lot of individuals from different
school districts, different school associations, and they have misin-
terpreted it. I have met with several members of the House and
Senate who have said to me, quite frankly, they believe EPA man-
dates removal of asbestos in schools. So, aolutely, you are correct.
We have a communication problem which we are trying to come to
grips with, because the program and the law and our regulations
uto not require removal.

Mr. LUKEN. One fmal question. If you're a school administrator
and you're looking at this issue, you say should I remove it, and
then you get the advice, well, it's not necessary to remove it, that it
can be entombedthat's a word of art, isn't it?

Ms. FISHES. Encapsulation.
Mr. Lwow. Encapsulated or entombed. Entombed is used in

some other areas. But to describe the same process of wrapping it
up, protecting people from it, in place. That's what we're talking
about, encapsulation, right?

Ms. Ftsfixa. That's correct.
Mr. LUKEN. But that encapsulation is rrvessarily a temporary

covering, isn't it, a temporary protection? Thore is the inevitability
that somewhere down the line, if the school building lasts long
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enough, that encapsulation will detetiorate and the vulnerability
will occur, right?

Ms. Funna. That's correct. You can manage asbestos in place
today, but several years down the road you may end up having to
remove it.

Mr. LUKEN. So if you're making that decision, you might be in-
clined toward removal for that reason?

Ms. FISHER. I would hope not. I* would hope that the balance of
the concern about unnecessary exposure, as well as expensive re-
moval, would lead people to a more proactive, in-piace manage-
ment and include in that a periodic inspection so that you would be
able to track the condition of the asbestos. I don't think the argu-
ment that "because I may some day have to remove I will go ahead
and remove it now" is a good one.

Mr. LUKEN . I suspect other members of the panel are going to
question you on your response that makes the economic argument,
so I will desist at this point and call upon the gentleman from
Kansas for any questions he may have at this time.

Mr. WHrrrAKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Fisher, I really have only one question which I don't think

has been covered. Sometimes we hear a great deal about the theory
that one fiber can kill. Yet we've never really required cleanup to
that level.

What is the background range of asbestos fibers and what do we
breathe in everyday, outdoor air?

Ms. FISHER. Cngressman Whittaker, we don't have informatior
as to what is the common outdoor level. That might vary in given
locations of the country. We have, as part of the research effort
that we have commissioned with the Health Effects Institute to
look at, one of the issues they're going to focus on is what are back-
ground levels, ambient levels, and is there a way we can identify
what, if any, risk is posed by exposure at that level. But we don't
have a number that would give you kind of an across-the-board
background.

Mr. WiirrrAxxx. All right. Thank you.
Mr. Lti-KEN. I thank the gentleman.
The In:Iran from Ohio, Mr. Eckart, is recognized.
Mr. T. Ms. Fisher, I'm not quite sure what the testimony

reflects, but if not many people can explain what your position is,
either that means we don't know your position or we don't under-
stand your position.

With that caveat, let me just simply suggest that we probably
are better served, if in fact we disagree, if people understand what
we're disagreeing about.

Ms. FISHER. Are you talking about the legislation, or to remove
or not to remove?

Mr. ECKART. The question of to remove or not to remove; that is
the question.

We need to get that resolved, I suppose, to some greater degree,
at least to clarify EPA's views.

Now, as to the matter before us, it is not sufficient to say "we do
not oppose". I do not oppose my son becoming a millionaire. The
question is whether or not I or he can do anything to influence
flmt outcome in life. You need to figure out what you're going to do
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nificant interest to the EPA. So we're going to work on this bill
with you or without you. You had best figure out what you're going
to do with it, either in the context of ainistering it or influenc-
ing its outcome.

I have a couple of concerns. One is focusing on the whole per
capita income question. Having been in the State legislature for 6
years, I understand fully that there are vagaries in the ability of
school districts to do a wide variety of things. Some States have no
income tax; some States have a peculiar basis of funding education
with property taxes or excise taxes.

To what extent is per capita income, based on which you either
make a cut or don't make a cut to be eligible for a program, a real-
istic assessment of a school district's ability to pay for a removal or
encapeulation program?

Ms. FisHER. A couple of points. First of all, right now we do use
the per capita income basis. We use that coming out of a broad dis-
cussion that we had with a variety of interested groups in how best
to set the financial need test. We took a lot of comment from
school associations, from PTA's and others, that are concerned
about how we were going to allocate these funds. On the basis of
that, we decided that the most equitable way to deal with the
public schools was to use the per capita.

We have had about 4 to 5 years of experience with that. My
sense is that there's growing concern that maybe this is no longer
the best way, that there are several schools where the per capita
income does not fit, particularly those schools that are in high cost-
of-living areas. So the per capita income may be high, taking them
over the trigger, but it doesn't reflect necessarily whether or not
they really are more needy than some that meet the per capita
test.

In response to concernsand we get hundreds of letters from
members of Congress and from school districtswe have made the
decision to revisit the financial needs formula. Again, we will go
out and get comment from the interested people, from the school
associations and others, so that we come up with criteria that
people feel more equitably distributes limited funds.

Another thought we have hadand we will also put to this
groupis whether we should have an exceptions policy, so that you
might use the per capita income generally across the board but set
aside a certain category of money for people who are discriminated
because that doesn't accurately reflect their needs because of spe-
cial circumstances. So we are doing kind of an in-house review of
those issues and some time this summer we're going to begin a
public dialcgue to get some more input to face the question of
whether or not we need to change that test.

The problem is, there is limited funds and there is high need,
and how best to allocate it, so that people feel they were fairly
treated.

Mr. ECKART. I understand that you have to make some cuts here.
The question is, is the test that you use to impose those cuts fair. If
you can draw bright lines that people understand, then you elimi-
nate some significant level of controversy, too.
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The adl..inistration has not requested funding for the implemen-
tation of this bill in this current budget that's before us. In fact, I
think the President proposed the elimination of the program. How
did the administration get to that point and what was EPA's posi-
tion in the calculations that went into that budget determination?

MS. FISHER. I think, since the beginning of the program, this year
included, the administration felt that the funding for asbestos in-
spections and maintenance plan was largely a State and local
matter and needed to be funded by the State and local govern-
ments; therefore, the administration has not sought it.

I don't believeand I would have to check. I know we did not
request it as we went through the budget process this year, and I
would have to check on the years prior to that. The question is now
before us, as we begin to look to the 1992 budget cycle, whether we
will seek it or not.

Mr. ECKART. I anticipate, in conclusion, Mr. Chairman, that
we're going to move this bill, as I said before. Ms. Fisher, I think
you know at least how this gentleman proceeds. I just need to
know where you're coming from. If you're with me, I want to make
sure your interests are well represented, and if you're not, I will
advise you that the hearings are being held in rooms other than
where we are actually going to meet.

I suspect that the public interest in this bill is sufficient to war-
rant that the Congress proceed. I certainly would hope, at least as
this panel has most recently experienced, that the administration
does not find itself in a position of not cooperating with us and
then thrusting a last minute veto threat for us over a peculiar pro-
vision about which we found little comment during the legislative
process and forcing a needless showdown. That is not in your inter-
ests and it certainly isn't in ours.

With that, Mr. Chairman, I would yield back the balance of my
time.

Mr. LUKEN. I thank the gentleman.
Did you have a response?
MS. FISHER. Yes. First of all, on the technical aspects of the bill,

we would like an opportunity to work with you. It is a step, from
my perspective, that we have moved the administration from op-
posing this to not opposing it, running all the risks that ambiguity
entails. I felt it was better to be in the position we are now than to
be very clear about opposing it.

Mr. ECKART. And I 11 be happy when you take that next step.
Mr. LUKEN. The division of government that we have, or the sep-

aration of powers, is broadening into more and more segments. I'm
glad to hear you speaking of the administration in the third
person.

But maybe we'll have to have a fourth person.
The gentleman from Maryland is recognized.
Mr. MCMIu..EN Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I was curious, in looking through your testimony, as to your com-

ment on other buildings by schools, particularly Federal buildings.
Obviously, some research has been done in this regard. What
would be the EPA's position on authorizing funding for simaar
kind of activities in Federal buildings, a model program, if you
will?
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MS. FISHER. Congressman McMillen, a couple of years ago the
Agency undertook a survey not only of Federal buildings but of
public and commercial buildings and submitted a report on asbes-
tos in those buildings to Congress. At that time, in February 1988,
we suggested that the Agency would report back to Congress in 3
years, which is this coming February, about how to deal with
public and commercial buildings I would include in that the Feder-
al buildings.

We deferred principally because the schools program, which was
the focus of most concern, was just getting up and running. We we
worried that we didn't have enough accredited people to do the in-
spection work or the other contract work involved with the asbes-
tos program and suggested that the Congress and the Agency defer
considering expanding the program until we, first of all, had devel-
oped a good pool of people to do the work, and second, had an op-
portunity to evaluate its strengths and weaknesses before we
moved into a larger segment of buildings. So I would anticipate
later, in about 9 months, the Agency will be coming back up to the
Congress with some ideas about what are the next steps, given
what we know, to expand the program to other buildings.

Mr. McMILLEN. In your own testimony you indicated the 1988
and 1987 studies, that the data was basically inconclusive and that
no =Or research effort has been undertaken. As you indicated,
that's supposed to be sent to the Congress Li February, is that
right?

Ms. FISHER. There's a couple of activities. One is the research
effort. The first part of that is a literature review that the Health
Effects Institute is doing. We should have that by early next year,
early 1991. So that will be available to the Congress as well as to
the Agency.

Second, we suggested that EPA, taking this information into ac-
count, report back the Congress with some recommendations about
how to deal with other buildings.

Mr. McMILLR.N. Extending your logic a litt: bit with regards to
the administration's lack of support of funding for this effort be-
cause, in their view, it's the province of State and local govern-
ment, clearly, if Federal buildings are involved here, and if the
data that comes back that is conclusive with regard to risk levels
and so forth, you might conclude that the administration's argu-
ment against funding might not be so relevant; would you agree
with that?

Ms. FISHER. Well, if we decide that we need to undertake inspec-
tion and management plans in Federal buildings, it would make
sense that they be paid for by the Federal Government. I think
GSA actually does have some work underway on asbestos that is
being paid for by the Federal Government. I can provide what
they're doing and in what buildings, ifyou would like.

Mr. McMILLEN. That would be helpful. As someone who repre-
sents a lot of Federal workers, obviously I have a deep and abiding
concern about the safety of those workers and look forward to get-
ting some conclusive data. But hopefully, as that conclusive data
comes back, if it indicates a certain risk, the administration would
step forward and do something about it.
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MS. FISHZ11. Let us look into what programs GSA has underway
already. I don't think they have waited for the EPA effort with
resrect to all buildings. They have moved ahead, I think. I can pro-
vide that to you.

Mr. MeMnazw. Thank you.
(Testimony resumes on p. 104.]
[The following material was supplied:]

4
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FOREWORD

ne growing concern over low-level asbestos exposures for public building occupants and
maintenance staffs has prompted many facility owners and managers to develop and
implement comprehensive asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) programs
in buildings with identified asbestos-containing materials (ACM) in order to alleviate or, if
possible, elimifiate such concern. The development of these O&M programs, although
simple in terms of the ultimate goal, often involves diverse disciplines working together in
a coordinated manner, different types and conditions of asbestos-containing material,
billing conditions which may frequently change, and exact recordkeeping procedures; all
of which must be addressed to ensure a successful prognm.

The U.S. General Services Administration, through its Facility Asbestos Control Managers,
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, and the Asbestos Program of the Georgia Tech
Research Institute, has developed a Documentation Package, designed to facilitate a
sta lized approach to implementing O&M plans in GSA buildings where ACM has been
ide. r d. -Through standardized, yet comprehensive, implementation it is the aim of this
Dovi,..enrAtion Package to provide the means for properly and effectively handling any
O&M situations; ultimately helping tc ensure protection of human health and the
environment.

The objectives of this Documentation Package are fourfold:

Provide comprehensive recordkeeping forms which can be incorporated into
current GSA O&M programs without major modifications to existing
programs.

Provide "user friendly" recordkeeping forms which arc more likely to be
completed as a part of the O&M program, hence hciping to ensure better
O&M practices.

Allow the GSA Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) greater control
over all aspects of the O&M program by establishing a chain-of-command
through which all forms come to the FACM.

Incorporate all the essential elements of the O&M program into a practical,
workable program to provide for effective asbestos control in GSA facilities.

The recordkeeping forms included in this Documentation Package were developed on the
basis of applicable asbestos regulations of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, the General Services Administration's
Handbook, Safety and Environmental Management Program, PBS P 59002C, chapter 4,
current GSA O&M programs, and a U.S. EPA report *GSA/EPA Pilot Asbestos Program.°
Revisions made to the draft forms of this document were based on comments received form
GSA Assistant Regional Administrators, Public Buildings Service. The helpful comments
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received served to streamline the Pactage, and to incorporate more practical, in-field
information.

Primary contributon to this document indude the following individuals:

Mr. Robert D. Sdtmitter, MS Environmental Scientist; Georgia Tech
Research Insdtute,,Manta, Georgia-

Mr. Mark L Demyanek, MS, OH, CS? Manager, Asbestos Programs;
Georgia Tech Research Insthute, Atlanta, Georgia.

Mr. David Mayer, MS - Manager, Trafidng Programs Office; Georgia Tech
Research Institute, Atlanta, Georgia.

Dr. Thomas Tillman Envirorunental Policy Specialist; U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency - Headquarters, Washington, DC

Dr. Warren Friedman, CIH - Senior Industrial Hygienist; U.S. General
Services Administration - Central Office, Washington, D.C.
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The Facility Survey

The primary focus of the building inspection process is to identify the materials within a
building which do or are likely to contain asbestos. Asbestos-corfaining materials can be
classified in three categories: (1) surfacing materials which include materiel on walls,
ceilinp and structural members, (2) thermal system insulation which encompasses tank,
boiler, pipe, and vessel insulation used for temperature or condensation control, and (3)
miscellaneous materials which include primarily floor and ceiling tiles.

The Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) or a designated alternate should become
familiar with the inspection report and the important terms used within it. One of the more
important terms is 'homogeneous areas,* defined as areas within a building which are
uniform in color, texture, construction/application date, and general appearance. Another
important term is lunctiolal space" which can be defined as an area in which a particular
activity takes place, or which is used for a specified purpose. For example, an auditorium
is a particular functional sp.ice. The FACM should be aware that a functional space can
include more than one homogeneous area, and a homogeneous area can be found in more
than one functional space.

Each building inspection report should include:

The locatioa and description of all known or suspected asbestos-containing
materials.

The delineation of all functional spaces and homogeneous areas.

An assessment of the condition of all known or suspected asbestos-containing
materials.

An evaluation of the potential for future disturbance or damage to known or
suspected asbestos-containing materials.

The assessment criteria for asbestos-containing material will be important in determining
what sort of action may need to be taken to protect human health and the environment.
For surfacing and miscellaneous asbestos-containing material EPA defines major or
significantly damaged material as having one or more of the following characteristics:

The surface cnunbling or blistering over at least one tenth of the surface if the
damage is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is localized).

One tenth (one quarter, if localized) of the material hanging from the surface,
deteriorated, or showing adhesive failure.

2
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Water stains, gouges or mars otter at least one tenth of the surface if the damage
is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is localized).

Damaged surfacing or miscellaneous material has been defined by EPA as material with a
surface crumbled, blistered, water-stained, gouged, marred Of OthenViSe abraded OM ICU
than one tenth of the surface if the damage is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage
is localized).

Surfacing or miscellaneous material assessed as being in good condition is material with no
visible damage or deterioratioc, or showing only very limited damage or deterioration.

The criteria for assessing the condition of thermal tystern insulation (TSI) is similar to thatof surfacing and miscellaneous materials. Major or significantly damaged TSI is material
with missing jackets on at least one tenth of the piping or equipment and/or has crushed
or heavily gouged or punctured insulation on at least one tenth of pipes, mns/risers, boiler,
tanks, ducts, etc., if the damage is evenly distributed (one quarter if the damage is
localized).

Damaged TSI is defined by EPA as material with a few water stains or less than one tenth
of missing insulation jacketing, and/or crushed insulation or water stains, gouges, punctures,
or mars on up to one tenth of the insulation if the damage is evenly distributed (or up to
one quarter if the damage is localized). TSI in good condition is material with no visible
damage.or deterioration, or showing onlyvery limited damage or deterioration.

A copy of the building inspection report should be included in the asbestos files for the
building. By having the inspection record available for quick reference, the FACM will be
able to more effectively implement an asbestos operations and maintenance program.

3
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Suggested Frequency_ofAir Monitoring Ind Inspecting

This form is designed to provide the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) with
guidance :or air monitoring and inspections of surfacing asbestos-containing materials
(ACM) by suggesting a minimum frequency for these operations. This suggested frequency
will depend primarily on the condition of the material (whether undamaged or damaged),
and the potential for damage. It is important to note that these are suggested minimums,
and that these are guidelines established by and for professionals. Local conditions may
lead to increases in these frequencies.

Several important considerations should be noted here in regard to the use of this form.
Undamaged material can be categorized as either nonfriable or friable, and damage
potential is addressed for each. A workable definition for undamaged ACM is simply
material with no visible damage or deterioration. For material which shows damage or
major damage, the material is assumed to be friable, regardleu of its original state.
Damaged ACM has been defined by the U.S. EPA as material which has deteriorated or
sustained physical injury re:ulting in weakened internal structure or cohesion of the material,
or which has delaminated to such a condition that its bond to a substrate is inadequate.
Major damage has been defined to be severely or extensively damaged ACM. Although
these definitions may be somewhat subjective, it is important that they be applied as
consistently as possible.

Another consideration in establishing frequencies for air monitoring and inspection is tbe
potential for damage. Conditions which might indicate a low potential for damage are if
the ACM is in an area where routine activities could but are unlikely to disturb the ACM,
or if there are indications that the material could become damaged by changes in building
use, changes in operations and maintenance practices, or changes in occupancy. A higher
potential for damage could be indicated by ACM being in an area where routine activities
are more likely to disturb the material, or where the ACM is subjected to factors such as
accessibility, vibration, air erosion, etc.

Because of the usually infrequent nature of air sampling, many situations in which asbestos
fibers are emitted may never be detected. As a result, air monitoring should never be used
in place of physical and visual inspection in the determination of asbestos management or
abatement decisions. However, when used in conjunction with frequent inspections of ACM,
air monitoring and bulk sampling combined may provide a better working tool for ACM
assessment than either alone. As mentioned above, local conditions may dictate air
monitoring and inspection frequencies, but it is essential that a consistent pattern be
developed and utilized.

4
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Suggestad minimum frequency of ak monitoring and inspection from
conditions of sprayed-en or troweiad-on undamaged surfacing ACM

Material Condition

No Damage

Nonfriable

Potential
for

Damage

I 1

Low High

Friable

Potential
for

Damage

Low

Air Monitoring A A
inspection A

A Annually
S Semiannually
0 Quarterly

High

A A

Note: !modiste abatement shall ha parlormad, using emergency
procurement methods if necassary, whin asbastos-containing
materials which are damaged or subject to damage are
encountered.

$

4 L

611 IM *PM !Mt 000
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This series of forms will be used for the initial assessment of the condition of surfacing.
thermal system insulation, and miscellaneous materials which have been identified as
asbestos-containing A physical assessment of the asbestos-containing material (ACM)
consists of evaluating the condition of the klentified or suspected material, as well as
evaluating the potential for future disturbance.. From this physical assessment, the Facility
Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) along with other individuals trained in asbestos work
will be able to make a hazard assessment of the ACM, indicating the overall hazerd
potential for building occupants.

Assessment should be made by qualified and trained safety and health professionals who are
familiar with building construction systems and asbestos hazards. From this initial
assessment, the FACM can evaluate his/ber options and institute the appropriate response
actions. One of the following assessment forms should be completed for each homogeneous
area within the building. Because these are detailed and extensive forms, they will only be
used for the initial assessment of ACM. Subsequent reassessments should be recorded on
Asbestos-Containing Material Reinspection Forms which follow the initial assessment forms.

The assessment process itself will begin with a thorough review of the building's initial
inspection report in order for the assessor to become fanuliar with the types and locations
of ACM. For each form, the building name and address, GSA building number, area, and
date of assessment should be recorded. For each category of ACM, the descriptive type of
material should be indicated as well as the total amount of that category of ACM in the
area. In addition, the amount of damaged ACM should be indicated.

The condition of the ACM at the time of asseumem should be indicated by degree of
physical damage or deterioration, water damage or deterioration,and friability. Additionally,
the potential for future damage, disturbance, or erosion should be recorded based on factors
of accessibility, activity within the area, possible changes in building use, vibration within the
area, or location within an air plenum. These assessment factors are used to evaluate any
changes found during reassessment, and it is important to stay consistent.

A beneficial element of an assessor's equipment list would be $ camera or videotape
recorder. The use of such equipment would provide a visual reeord of the condition of the
material, and will provide a more detailed accounting of material condition. By comparing
visual tad written records, the FACIA may be able to more accurately determine any
changes the ACM may undergo.

The assessor should sign and date tbe form upon completion, and the FACM should sign
tbe form indicating be/she bat been notified of the results of the assessment.

6
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As part of the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program, periodic reinspection of all
known or suspected asbestos-containing material (ACM) should be conducted. The main
objectives of reinspection are to identify areu where O&M programs may need to be
strengthened, and to determine areas where alternate control or response actions are
necessary. Mother use of reinspection is in the design of construction (renovation or
demolition) projects which may affect ACM, in order to determine what asbestos controls,
if any, are required in the work..

The building name and address, GSA building number, and area being inspected should all
be recorded. The date of reinspection, date of original inspection, and the date of last
inspection (if different from original inspection) should be indicated. In order to assist
anyone who may be unfamiliar with the ACM located within a particular area, some general
background information such as type of ACM, a brief description of some of the physical
characteristics of the ACM, and the approximate amount of material should be indicaterl.

The reinspection process itself will look for changes in material condition, with the presence
of ACM debris on floors, surfaces, etc. as an indicator of this change. In addition, key factors
which may influence a change in ACM condition and which should always be evaluated
during any inspection include: changes in physical damage, resulting from maintenance
actkity or vandalism; water damage from roof or pipe leaks; changes in surface area exposed
possibly through missing or broken ceiling tiles or deteriorated pipe lagging; changes in
accessibility resulting, possibly, from additions of equipment which may bring someone close
to the ACM; changes in activity in the area; change in building or area use such as converting
a former storage area into a small office; a change in friability which may result frorp changes
in any of the preceding conditions, or any change in vibration in the area, for example,
through the addition of larger operating equipment.

An important item in the reinspcction will be the determination, if possible, of the extent of
damage or change affecting the ACM. By providing an ongoing tally of area or percentage
of affected ACM, the inspector and Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) can evaluate
an O&M program's effectiveness or ineffectiveness.

III the event extensive new damage or deterioration of ACM is discovered, remedial action
should be taken following the Criteria for Corrective Action Plans, as well as other GSA,
EPA, and OSHA requirements and guidance. In such a situation, the FACM or inspector
may wish to conduct an inspection of the material using an initial inspection form which
provides more detailed information about the material's condition and potential for damage.

During the design of construction projects whi:h may affect ACM, the building inspection
summary. mechanical and architectural drawings, and other asbestos-related data are
examined. Affected sites are reinspected to evaluate known ACM, determine whether
suspect materials which have not been sampl. I contain asbestos, and obtain accurate and
precise estimates of the amounts, types, CorJitionS and locations of ACM which will be
affected by the work. As a result, accuratr project specifications, drawings and schedules
can be developed.

The form should be signed by the inspector, the n'ext scheduled reinspection should be
stated, and the FACM should also sign and date the form.
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nata Form for Bulk Sane lee

This form wall be used to record all bulk samples collected from a particular area either
initially during an inspection to determine the presence of asbestos-containing material
(ACM), or any time suspect material is found and a bulk sample is collected. Each building
should receive hs own data form, and sample location should be given in detaiL A
functional space is a distinct area within a building which can be identified by a distinct
building occupant population (ladies room, for example) or activity (conference room, for
example). A homogeneous area is an area in which the asbestos-containing material
appears similar in terms of material color, texture, and date of application. When collecting
bulk samples, it is important to keep in mind that homogeneous materials may make up
more than one functional space. Additionally, by identifyinghomogeneous areas which may
run throughout a building (i.e., chilled water supply lines, surfacing material) it may be
possible to better track and control material within the facility. A unique sample number
should be used for each sampk collected, possibly including a unique letter which designates
and identifies that particular area.

To augment recordkeeping, as well as for future reference, a diagram or floor plan should
be used to indicate where bulk samples have been collected. The sampling area diagram
should include an identification number of the homogeneous area or functional space, a
brief description of the sampling area, area dimensions, the name and telephone number
of the FACM, the name of the inspector, and the date of the inspection. The floor plans
should show the areas or materials for which the presence of asbestos is assumed (areas
with materials homogeneous with materials sampled or known through observation to
contain asbestos), in addition to the areas or materials specifically known to contain
asbestos. By keeping these additional records, time and effort may be saved if questions
arise over the extent of asbestos-containing material and some retracing of steps becomes
necessary.

TYpe of material will include surfacing, thermal system insulation, and miscellaneous
material. Any unusual qualities to the material should be noted on the form (Le., condition,
color, texture, ett.). Asbestos type and percent can only be rerorded after laboratory
analysis, and it is important that the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) complete
these sections after receiving the laboratory report.

This log should be updated following the collection of additional samples, if they are
necessary. Because this log will be beneficial in determining control actions, it should be
readily available for outside asbestos contractors to use.

14
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Datt Form forAfr Samples

This form can be used to log and track any type of air sample collected during an operations
and maintenance activity, such as pipe repair, electrical installation, or a fiber episode
cleanup.

The building name and address, and GSA building number should be recorded for each form.
The table itself is divided to facilitate easy data entcy and review. Each sample collected
should be given a unique number, and the date the sample was collected and the location
should be recorded. An indication as to the type of sample, whether personal, area
(collected in or around the workspace) or some other type of sample such as clearance
samples, should be indicated. If a personal sample is collected, whether the sample is an
8-hour time weighted average (TWA) or a 30-minute TWA excursion limit sample should be
indicated. Any personal sample collected sheuld include as part of the data form the name,
social security number and company or organization of the individual.

It is important that a detailed description of the activity being sampled be included. This
may aid the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) in determining if proper work
practices are being used, and whether any operations and maintenance (O&M) activity
conducted in-house may be more suitable for outside contractors. When the air monitoring
is being performed in response to a fiber release episode, a Fiber Release Episode Report,
as well as this air sampling data form, should be completed.

Pertinent sampling information such as start and stop times for the sampling period, and
pump flow rate should be recorded to help insure consistency in sampling. The Method of
analysis should be indicated (whether N1OSH 7400, OSHA Reference Method, transmission
electron microscopy, or other method) and the fiber concentration should be reported also.
Additional comments can include the type of respiratory protection worn by individuals, or
any unusual circumstances whicl- could affect the sampling results.

Finally, the sampling technician should sign and date the form, and provide his/her company
or organization name.

16
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BufidlainisallstalummAcUbsti

The Building Inspection Summary Sheet will serve as a quick reference source when
determining the characteristic of ubestos-containing material (ACM) within a particular
area. The sheet is organized by building area rather than homogeneous area or fimctional
space, since moot of the ACM locations will be referred to by area. Both homogeneous area
and functional ipace will be recorded on the form for cross-referenee purposes.

Other information included on the summary sheet is designed to provide a synopsis of the
ACM and its condition. The material is classified by category, type and percent asbestos,
amount of ACM and whether or not it is friable, and finally by important assessment criteria.

This summary sheet is not intended to replace the information collected for the original
inspection report However, the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) and other
personnel may be able to use this sheet to maintain tighter contml over Operations and
Maintenance (O&M) activities, help in the decision to accept work control applications, and
provide information helpful for planning reinspections.

This form can be completed either by the building inspector as part of his/her inspection
duties, or by the FACM or building staff following the submission of inspection report data.

1 8
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II

Release of Information

TenantiEjnployee/Bullding Occupant ;ratification Furut

A key to inswing successful management of a building's asbestos-containing material is
communication among building occupants, tenants, and employees. All should be kept
informed of asbestos-related activities which may affect them.

Tenant agencies should be notified of the presence of asbestos-containing materials, the
implementation of an Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program, the cartying-out of
various aspects of the O&M program, and any plans for abatement. The Facility Asbestos
Control Manager (FACM) is responsible for ensuring that tenant agencies are notified,
through their liaisons (such as their safety officers or local office heads), of asbestos
conditions, air monitoring results, and abatement or alterations in their space, The tenant
agencies are then responsible for notifying their employees or union representatives of this
information. The date of notification should be recorded on this form, as well as the method
of notification. This notification may take the form of a letter, posted notice, newsletter,
public meeting, awareness seminar, or possibly a combination of these, as appropriate. The
method of notification will depend on the effectiveness of previous forms of communication,
the condition or seriousness of an operation, and may vary among facilities.

Two important criteria . notification are: (1) what to include in any notification, and (2)
who will notify the tenants or occupants. Any educational effort undertaken to notify
affected personnel should include:

asbestos is present in thc building
the type and location of asbestos-containing materials (ACM)
the potential health effects associated with asbestos exposure in buildings
plans to deal with the situation
instructions to avoid disturbing the ACM (e.g., do not hang plants, do not
remove or lift ceiling tile)
procedures to report any disturbances or damage to ACM
additional sources of information.
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The possibility exists that not all aspects of the O&M program will run continuously without
problems, and the FACM must be ready to deal with a situation in which mistakes WAY and
building occupants become angry. In such instances it may be prudent to obtain tbe services
of a qualified professional, such as an asbestos consultant, safety manager, qualified industrial
hygienist, etc., to conduct awareness seminars or immediately address concerns when
something unexpected occurs, in order to take effective action and reduce possible fears
among building occupants.

In some instances, the determination of what not to include in notifications may be equally
as important as what is included. False or misleading statements must be avoided in all forms
of information dissemination. Wording which may be interpreted by &A audience as

reflecting an uncaring attitude or which 'may seem ambiguous or not completely forthright
should also be avoided. The FACM in consultation with asbestos technical professionals will
need to evaluate oat a casebyesse basis whether any information released may be more

harmful to building public relations.

Credibility is what the FACM is seeking in public relations effort. Information Cow should

begin before the inspection process to establish credibility and be reinforced by timely
updates as further information becomes available for distaution. Presenting the logjc and
rationale ahead of any decision point may encourage cooperation.

Attached is a sample informational letter to tenants and building occupants.
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Sample Information! Uttar to Temaats/Occupute
General Services Administration

George Washington Federal Building
100 Main Street

Washington, DC 20000

MEMORANDUM FOR Building Tenant Agencies/Occupants

FROM: Charles Smith ab
Facility Asbestos Control Manager

SUBJECT: Notification of the Presence of Asbestos-Containing Material
Within the George Washington Federal Building (GSA#
DC1234ZZ)

As communicated to building tenant agencies and occupants in a mer.sorandum dated June
12, 1989, during scheduled renovation of the second floor cafeteria within the George
Washington Federal Building, asbestos-containing material was identified in spray-applied
fireproofing on the ceiling deck. After extensive discussion with the GSA Regional Office,
as well as reputable experts in the field of asbestos detection and control, the entire facility
was inspected for the presence of asbestos-containing materials. Results of this initial
building inspection have indicated the presence of asbestos-containing materials in several
areas throughout the building.

Upon receipt of these results, consultation was entered into with experts in the field of
asbestos detection and control to develop a course of action specifically designed to protect
the health and safety of building occupants. Among the experts assembled to serve on an
Asbestos Advisory Task Force are Dr. L Johnson, Chief of Pulmonary Service for General
Hospital; Mr. I. Thomas, Esq., of the firm Thomas and Thomas, P.C.; GSA attorneys; and
Ms. D. Stolz, an experienced asbestos and air quality analyst with Better Environment, Inc.
These individuals will provide a knowledgeable and experienced panel to answer any
questions you might have.

Upon the recommendation of the Asbestos Advisory Task Force and in keeping with proven
industry standards, av asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program was
immediately established to provide an effective means for desling with the asbestos
situation. The objectives of the O&M plan are to:

establish a program of work practices to maintain asbestos-containing
materials in good condition
ensure the safe clean-up of asbestos fiben previously released
prevent mime of asbestos fibers by minimizing disturbance and damage
develop an in-house asbestos response team to effectively handle emergemy
situations.

24
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Sample Informational Letter to Tensati/Occupaata
(cosninned)

Through the establishment ot a trained in-house asbestos response team and use of
experienced outside asbestos abatement contractors, the asbe.stos situation within this facility
can be controlled in a manner which will be safe to the health of the building occupants. Of
course, the help and cooperation of all tenant agencies and occupants will be needed.

In addition to the establishment of the Asbestos Advisory Task Force and the in-house
asbestos response team, this office will implement a policy of providing informational
updates on any act;vity which will involve the intentional disturbance of asbestos-containing
material during building operations, emergency response to asbestos fiber releases, and
precautions and procedures designed to ensure the health and safety of the building
occupants. In addition, information can bc gained directly by contacting this office at
X-0012.

In order to answer any questions our building occupants may have and to help alleviate the
fears associated with asbestos discovery, an open meeting has been scheduled for 2:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, August 26 in the Auditorium of this building. Members of the Asbestos
Advisory Task Force will be present to provide further information and answer questions
about your concerns. We strongly urge ail building occupants to attend. It is believed that
only by keeping the lines of communication open between all parties can we effectively and
safely dea1 with our asbestos situation.

litcarcalisataista

This form is designed to track the outflow of Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program
records to authorized building occupants or tenants. Through a structured and formalized
request procedure the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) will be better able to
track the amount and type of material and information that is available to the builthog
population. 13y being able to prpvide pertinent information, the FACM will be helping to
ensure proper notification of building occupants, with the assurance of reliable and accurate
information.

Persons or tenants requesting records should state specifically the document or documents
wanted and provide a justifiable reason for the request. The request itself will be logged,
and after reviewing the request a determination will be made to grant or deny. The FACM,
who will be responsible for all aspects of his/her building's O&M program, should indiute
final approval of the request. The date of records delivery should also be documented in
order to minimize the possibflity of losing records in transfer.

All GSA asbestos-related records (except duplicates and certain other excluded items) must
be retained permanently with an Asbestos Records Label on all file folders and record
boxes. The FACM must not permit any records to be lost when building occupants or
tenants request them. Usually this can be ensured by allowing the requestors to view the
records in the GSA office, or by making photocopies which can be borrowed or given to the
requestors.
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RECORDS REQUEST FORM

NW ItSsi_ ---- GSA Baia. No.:

Address;

ita Ilucitial APK71

°wad Persos: Date Requestre

Rootatfl lolling Mae:

Records Requests&

Aft4 or Subject

Contract Numb Cr

Description of Records:

Reno++ for Request.

Request Ruched $y: Doc

Request Granted Br Datc

Request Denied Br Dam

Ramose

Fats Illy Asbestos Ccatroi Wraps Approvsk
(Si Palm)

Dam,

Date Reno* Seat;
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The Operations and Maintenance Program

Pmgram

An asbestos-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M) program must be developed and
implemented as soon as possible following the identification of asbestos-containing materiel
(ACM) within a facility, and will remain in effect until all asbestos-containing material is
removed from the building. When implementing an O&M program it is important to become
familiar with its objectives: elean-up of previously released asbestos fibers, preventing future
release by minimizing disturbance, conducting periodic reinspections and recleaning of areas
where asbestos-containing materials are located, and maintaining existing asbestos-containing
material. The asbestos-related O&M program must be integrated into the building's overall
O&M program.

In establishing an O&M program and performing any O&M activity, building records,
inspection reports, and floor plans should accurately reflect where all identified ACM and
all materials assumed to be ACM are located. The initial building survey should have these
locations marked. In addition, building occupants should be notified of the presence of
asbestos, custodial staff should receive awareness training related to asbestos, and
maintenance personnel whose work may involve coming in contact with asbestos must be
properly trained in working with the material.

This record of all activity associated with a building's O&M program will be crucial in
successfully dealing with a facility's asbestos situation. This form should be completed by the
GSA project supervisor and Facility Asbestos Control Manager (I:ACM) after any O&M
activity is performed, and will help maintain complete and current information about
particular areas of a building. Because a building may have many areas of ACM as well as
have these areas undergo, oftentimes, several different O&M activities, it is important that
information be recorded and organized for quick reference, and retained permanently.

In completing this form, building and area identification should be specific, and the date
should be recorded as to when the O&M activity took place. 'I ne purpose of the O&M
activity should be indicated as a minor repair, such as fixing pipe lagging; small scale removal
such as having to remove ACM thermal system insulation in order to repaix a pipe leak;
small scale en=psulation to patch or reinforce an area; abatement of pre-existing ACM
debris if this is a newly discovered amca undergoing initial cleaning; a fiber release episode
due to unplanned disturbance or damage of the material; labelling of ACM or a scheduled
periodic recleaning of an area as part of the O&M program. Note: if a special cleaning
activity is performed, a 'Record of Initial/Periodic Special Cleaning' form should be
completed.
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The type and approximate amount of material involved in any OtkM activity should be
noted to provide the FACM with accurate accountinp of ACM in any given area. The
reason for cooducting an O&M activity should be indicated, and could indicate a common
pattern for a cause of continuous O&M activity and help with establishing preventive
measures for future r*Ittases of asbestos.

Precautions taken during the O&M activity should be recorded, as should work practices
and personal protective equipment Trained personnel designated to perform O&M work
should have the necessary background in work practices to effectively isolate the area of
concern and resuict access to the area, and should be familiar with a building's mechanical
system in order to immediattly shut down or modify the air handling system as needed.
O&M training should also include thorough presentations on the proper work practices, such

SA a plan ot action which can be followed in a step-by-step manner. For example, bow and
when enclosures or containment will bc constructed, or what type of cleaning method (wet
wiping. HEPA-vacuuming, steam cleaning, etc.) would be most applicable for a certain area.

A good idea for a FACM to introduce for any area is a worst-case scenario in which a
recponse team can immediately act correctly to prevent the further release of asbestos fibers.
The O&M response team should also be familiar with when glovebags can and cannot be

used.

A brief hut detailed description of the activity cond Avted should be provided. It is
important also, to record whether the O&M activity is performed in-house or by an outside

contractor, names of personnel insolved, a record of notification to involved tenants or
hull..?:ng occupants, the duration of the work activity, and appropriate references to air

monitoring data.

Finally, once the work is completed according to GSA requirements or standards, the GSA

project supertsor and FACM should both sign and date the fonn.
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OPSBAllONS A MAJNTLNANCE IMOGIMM ACMITY
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Record of Initial/Periodic SWIM (leant/my

The cleanup of any debris of asbestos-containing material (ACM), as well as necessary
periodic recleaning of an area to prevent or minimize the release of asbestos fibers, can be
an essential part of a building's operations and maintenance program. Initial special cleaning
includes cleanup of visible ACM debris and special cleaning of building areas with ACM
prior to any abatement performed in response to asbestos damage. Based on the inspection
report, such as when continued accumulation of asbestos debris occurs, periodic special
cleaning may be required thereafter. Eacii special cleaning, whether the activity is initial or
periodic, should be recorded on this form, as should the types of items cleaned, and the
methods used to clean them. As part of any O&M training program, personnel should be
made aware of effective cleaning methods, and the proper application of these methods. A
standard operating procedure should be developed for a particular method. For example,
carpeting within areas identified as having ACM within them may be cleaned using
HEPA-vacuuming and/or steam cleaning whereas wet methods may be best for hard
horizontal surfaces within the area.

Two very important parts of completing this form, as well as for keeping on top of an
important aspect of the O&M program are (1) whether any visible debris was noticed in the
area, and (2) whether any change in ACM coneition was noticed since a previous cleaning.
The presence of debris will most likely indicate that Some change in condition has occurred,
}et it is important to keep in mind that material condition may change without releasing
noticeable debris. Visual inspection of the ACM itself is important. All changes should be
noted and explained further in the comment section.

Upon completion of the special cleaning operation, a note should be made of all personnel
involved in the cleaning, and the form should be signed by the GSA activity supervisor and
the FACM, and the next scheduled special cleaning, if needed, should be indicated.
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This form will allow the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) to track his/her facility's
in-house asbestos response team, or an outside contractor's response to soy fiber release
episode. A fiber release episode is an uncontrolled or unintentional disturbance of asbestos-
containing materials (ACM) resulting in visible emissions of asbestos. Information is
collected on the building, area within the building, and location where the fiber release
episode occurred. The person who discovered and reported the episode and the date of
discovery should also be recorded, as well as a description of the epilode, including the type
of material involved, the approximate amount of material released, possible causes of the
release episode, and the clean-up process.

It will be essential to record the response of personnel involved in the release episode. All
personnel should be trained to recognize a possible asbestos fiber release episode, and should
respond under developed protocol. The Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act
(AHERA) outlines a certain set of actions which can be helpful in establishing response
protocol. Entry to the area should be immediately restricted to only those personnel directly
involved in response to the situation. The air handling system within the affected area should
be immediately modified or shut down. "The released debris should be thoroughly saturated
using wet methods to minimize the potential for additional fiber release to the air, and
cleaned immediately using HEM-vacuuming or steam cleaning techniques. If possible,
on.site personnel should be used to provide a quick response, but the services ot an outside
contractor should be available if the situation requires more involved work. The area from
which the material was released should be repaired, or an alternative response action should
be conducted as necessary. Immediate supervisors and the FACM should be notified of the
release and subsequent corrective action.

A record should be kept of the personnel involved in the release clean-up, if only to indicate
whether or not in-house or outside contractor personnel were used. By evaluating these
response records, better training and/or response procedures can be developed or tailored
to a sperific situation. If air monitoring is performed during the response to the fiber release
episode, a Data Form for Air Samples should be completed. When one or more square or
linear feet of ACM is released, or for any episode expected to result in adverse tenant or
media reaction, the Office of Real Property Management and Safety in Washington, DC,
should be notified within two working days. Additionally, a detailed record or the equipment
used, including personal protective equipment, should be noted.

The FACM or a desisnated alternate should notify the Regional Office of each fiber releace
episode. A telephone call, first to the Safety ane Environmental Management
Branch/DivWon, or if no one can be reached there, the Real Property Management and
Safety Division will be the most effective way for relaying information quickly. Information
provided to the Regional Office should include the approximate amount of material released
and the steps taken to clean up the debris. The FACM or designated alternate may want to
follow up this phone call by sending a copy of the Fiber Release Episode Report
Under Superfund regulations, when mol:e than one pound of friable asbestos is rel =sect into
the environment, or if there is a threat of such a release, the FACM, or the mankger of an
asbestos-related construction project, must immediately notify the National Respordpe Center
at 800-4244802 (in Washington, DC, 202-426-2675). GSA, or the contractor, is responsible
for removing the asbestos from the environment or taking other appropriate remedial action
in response to the actual or threatened release.
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A potentially serious problem occurs when tenant agencies, outside contractors, or
unauthorized personnel perform activities wtich may disturb asbestos without either them
or the Facility Asbestos Control Manager (7." ACM) knowing. In an attempt to minimize or
eliminate such occurrences, all personnel who perform work in an area with identified
asbestos-containing material (ACM) should be required to submit a work control application.

The work control application will include the exact location of the area involved in the work.
This section should include as much detail as possible, especially if this is an area where
more than one type of activity involving different materials may be conducted. Since the
possibility or likelihood exists that the maintenance/renovation work wil' disturb ACM, the
appropriate asbestos control method(s) to be used should be indicated. The approximate
amount of ACM involved or potentially affected should also be included, indicating the
category of material (Le, surfacing, thermal system insulation, or miscellaneous) and the
linear or square footage. The starting and completion dates should be recorded, and these
dates should be monitored to determine any unusual changes in work practices resulting in
project delays.

It should be noted that for a few eases within GSA-operated facilities, special conditions will
exist 4 here national security measures will prevent certain operations from being included
in the %ork control system. Situations such as these will need to be coordinated and dealt
with according to GSA and federal government protocol.

Asbestos may be disturbed by renovations, repairs, maintenance or other activities. All
personnel involved in the maintenance/renovation work should be identified on this form.
If an outside contractor (telephone repair crew, computer cable company, etc.) is to be used,
the name, address, phone number, and supervisor contact should be included. Any in.house
personnel should also be listed if their work should require a work control application.

The tenant agency(ies) affected by this maintenance/renovation work should also be
identified and the contact within each agency included. In the event that an emergency
should arise the name and phone number of an emergency contact should bc kept readily
available.

At the start of the implementation of the work control system, the FACM should ensure that
all contractors or tenant agencies performing alterations or maintenance in the building arc
already aware or are made aware of esbestos conditions which may affect their work, and
that appropriate Asbestos CORVOIS or means of avoiding asbestos disturbance are taken. This
process should continue as new contractors or tenant agency crews start to work in the

This form need not replace existing regional GSA asbestos control forms, but is intended to
supplement them by making smaller-scale maintenance projects easier to plan for and
control.

The FACM will need to complete the bottom portion of this form, and based on the
information supplied to the FACM and his/her knowledge of the building, a decision wal be
made on whether to accept or deny the work control request.
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V talk 011SfUt Ai/WA:144W tuf 6.8.6

Notes to applicam: (I) Submit this application as soon as work which may involve asbestos is initiated,
and attach supponing documents, such as drawings and reimbursable work authorization. Include
information known at the time of application, and discuss revisions with the Facility Asbestos Cotnrol
Manager as the project develops.

(2) Review of the application is based on the asbestos known to GSA; the applicant retains the
responsibility for controlling asbestos the applicant encounten and immediately reporting to GSA any
unexpected materials suspected of containing asbestos, or unexpected conditions of known asbestos.
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This form is designed to provide a quick reference for the Facility Asbestos Control Manager
(FACM) to track when and where a particular abatement activity took place. Delineated by
building area, this form could serve as a review cover sheet for all abatement activity for that
particular Imam Although by no means a complete and thorough record of any abatement
project in and of itself, when used in conjunction With other forms in this Documentation
Package, this form will provide the FACM with the means to track past abatement projects as
well as plan for future action.

For each abatement project within a specified area of the facility, one form should be completed.
The dates during which tbe abatement project took place should be indicated. The type of
abatement operation (removal, encapsulation, enclosure, repair, or Operations & Maintenance)
should be noted, and provisions have been made on the form for inclusion of mote than one
operation if this is the case. The material being abated should be recorded. along with the
approximate amount of material. This can be critical since there may be times when only a
portion of a certain material is affected (i.e., for repair or O&M activity). Additionally, changes
should be made, as appropriate, to existing floor plans, building records and drawings which

lect each area or system which has been abated. Thorough documentation, including date and
project number of asbestos abatement projects, on applicable forms and drawings will assist the
FACM in the identification of any remaining asbestos.containing material. I, is important that
these records can be easily reviewed and interpreted by anyone who may have cause to view such
documents. A description of the material, such as damaged, small arca affected by pipe leak,
etc., should be given to help distinguish between succeasive abatement projects.

Upon completion of the project, the GSA Project Supervisor ot Manager should sign the form.
as should the contractor's Project Supervisor. Finally the FACM should sign the form, indicating
successful project completion according to GSA standards. This step will help keep the FACM
directly involved in the asbestos control program.

To provide maximum benefit in the context of ongoing O&M programs, this form should be
included in an area grouping with other actions within that particular location. Additionally,
when used in conjunction with the Operations and Maintenance Program Activity Form, Work
Control Application for Performing Maintenance/Renovation Work, and the Investigator's Survey
Checklist, the Record of Abatement Projects Form will allow for a more accurate assessment o;
asbestos-related work within a hicuity.
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Iv
Response Action Alternatives

COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVE RESPONSE AcTioNs

=WATER ADVANTAGES ' DISADVArAGFA i
Long Term the of
Operations and

I. May be most appropriate
respome active until renovation

I. Asbestos source matins.

Maintenance Pies or demolition. 2. Sumeillanee (O&M Plan) is
required in areas witb

2. Usually lowest initial costa identified or assumed ACM.

3. Good iMerim plan until funding
becomes available for removal.

3. Costs of training, increased
labor and equipment and
asbestos air monitoring

. Allows asbestos removal to occur
over a period of years, thus
spreading expenditure.

sorseillanze nsay be
significant.

4. Long-term life cycle cost
5. Can be implemented quickly. may be greater than that of

removal.
6. Can usually be done in-house.

5. May not be effective where
control of worker/building
occupant activities is
difficult

Encapsulation 1. May reduce asbestos fiber release
from material.

1. Asbestos source remains and
may have to be removed at
a later date. Encapsulation

2. Initial cost typically lower than
removal or enclosure, although
higher than O&M.

may increase future removal
COIL

2. Inappropriate encapsulating
I ) Fireproofing or insulating

matarial may not need
replan:mum

agent application may cause
asbestos material to
&laminate from saturate,
or may not prevent fiber

. Wei; leraporaty otterecthe
actioe for rimnage to insulatioo

release.

material on piping and associated
mechanical equipment.

3. O&M Plan needs to be kept
active; potenual for damage
may still exist

5. Allows opportunity for
sisnohaneous improvement of
archheciural finishes on surfacing
AOAL

4. All the preparation activities
for asbestos removal need to
be impleasemed thong
encapsulatices.
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COMPARISON OF ALTERNATIVE RESPONSE ACTIONS
(can.)

AIXFara5 ADYAritarda ULSOYANTAGES

1. Reduces luanedisse exposure.

2. Ink lei cost is typicay lower asan
removal, &bough higher than
ORSL

3. Fireproofing and insulation
materials would not need
replacemesit.

Quick, tenyorary corrective
action for damage to Ensulatioo
material on piping and associated
mechanical equipment.

I. Asbestos source remains and
may have to be removed at
a later date. Enclosure may
increase Mum removal cost.

2. Maintenance to systems
behind enclosure requires
the removal of enclosure,
thereby exposing ACM and
increasing cost.

3. O&M Plan still Deeded.
Potential for dasnage may
still exist.

4. Fibers will likely be relemed
during construction of
enclosure (or spray
application of encasement)
and will, therefore, generally
require the same
preparation as that of
removal and encapsulation.

S. Leng.term life cycle cost
may be greater than
removal.

Removal Billings' ACM.

2. Eliminates continued Deed for
O&M Plan.

3 L*cycle cosi way be Iowa: of
alsematives.

Eliminates application of
OSHA/EFA asbestos worker
protection standards repletion (if
an ACM is removed).

I. Replacement material may
be needed.

2. Improper removal may
incrust airborne asbestos
fiber concentration above
prevalent kvels.

3. Initial cost is usually highest
of all methods.

4. Some or all building
()geoid= may have to be
shut down temporarily
during removaL
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CRIIEJR1A FOR RESPONSE ACVONS

Ciangdezeti= Determine which ramie action(s) protem human health end the envirocimenn
wonder local circumstance& e, occupancy and use patterns short- and Wave=
costa, etc.

011411011

ACM in good condition

RraansaAssialLAlicEoulyn

Implement ubence-related Operations and Maintenance (O&M)
?reopens

Institute preventative measures to eliminate the reasonable likelihood
that the ACM will become damaged. deteriorated, or de lamintt.4

Abate materials, if preventive measures cannot be effectively
implemented, or if other corrective actions cannot protect human
health and environment. Immediately isolate area and restrict access
to avoid imminent danger to human health and environment.

Damaged ACM Immediately implement 0*,

Encapsulation.

Enclosure.

Removal.

Repair.

ACM with major damage Immediately isolate and restrict access to area to only authorized
personneL

Notify proper officials.

If ACM debris is loose, air handling system may have to be shut down
or modified to prevent fiber migration.

Evaluate options for response actions.

major damage may limit options to removal,

decide which options are feasible aod can be done sueceufully
to protect human health and the environment.

48



79

V
Project Inspection

EnalailautaramiltskIlit

Construction projects which involve asbestos, including asbestos abatement projects and
renovation projects with some asbestos control or abatement elements, may be managed
by either the regiorsal Design and Construction (D&C) Division or the field office.
depending on their scope and complexity.

Projects which may involve asbestos disturbanct, even small amounts typical of
O&M programs, should consider asbestos in their design. The project designer should
rely on previous asbestos inspection results when suspect materials at the work site were
sampkd, or when sunilar ("homogeneous') areas have been assessed, so that asbestos
is assumed to be present at the work site. (Asbestos abatement projects require new
asbestos inspections as part of the design process.) Where doubt remains about the
presence or conchtioo of ACM at a work si,e, a new inspection and assessment should
be performed as part of the project design process.

r.er.hen this asbestos element of the design process reveals no asbestos, all panics,
;;Ictod,ng the project designer. O&M workers and supervisors, the FACM and projcct
irtspei.tors. TI1U'l be alert to analyze any suspicious materials that are encountered during
co nst ion.

When prvcts are managed by D&C, the Contracting Officer's Representative
(COR) is project manager on the D&C staff. The project inspection will then be
ierfoifTled tl) the project manager or by a contract constniction quality manager (CQM)

hthalf of t1,e project manager. It is advisable to include the field office manager as
a Contractini, nficer's Technical Representative, and to involve the Facility Asbestos
Control Manager (FACM) in review of the design and constniction of the project. The
facility's Planner/Estimators (P/Fs) should usually be involved in the review of these
projects, because of their extensive knowledge of the facility's operating system (e.g.,
HVAC, plumbing and electrical systems). Another advantage to the input provided by
the P/E's is that project inspection checklists can be moeitied to reflect the special
design considerations they may have implemented.

When such projects are managed by the field office the COR is usually the field office
manager. The FACM ar a designated, asbestos-trained, alternate may serve as the
proje.3 inspector, responsibk for insuring that ad work be coaducted according to
written specificatiossa The FACM's position of overseeing all aspects of the asbestos
program withia the facility puts hitn/ber in a position whereby adequate supervision can
take place. ft is important also to include the facility's P/E's in the inspection process.
Because the P/E's will have included any special conditions in the project specifications,
their input can be critical when inspecting an abatemeot project. Additioully, the P/E's
may be able to handle many problems which may arise, serve as troubleshooters in
special instances, and peovide logistical support for temporary power considerations and
HYAC modificatkma
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The project inspectors will be responsible for monitoring; the project and ke ping a checklist
of all aspects of the work. This checkfist will serve as a written record of the operations that
took place including work area preparation, personal protective equipment used, and work
practices employed.

The project investors will monitor the project closely during all stag.6. Work area
preparations will include isolatingthe work area by establishing negative pressure enclosures
according to the specifications, shutting down or modifying the air handling systems making
sure overpn. ssurization does not occur elsewhere in the building, and compliance with
applicab'e EPA, OSHA, and DOT regulations, including EPA and OSHA notification when
required.

It is extremely important that close attention be paid to the actual work practices during
,-..hatement. The inspectors will have to enter the work &ea to monitor work practk.s,
check the i uegrity of containment barriers, ensnre compliance with worker protection
regulations, and determine compliance with special conditions contained in the
specifications. By making repeated inspections, scheduled and unscheduled, during the
abatement project, the inspectors can detect any changes in work practices, rate potential
problems, and act toward correcting them.

Asbestos-related projects will require a close working relationship among the FACM, field
office manager, project manager and project inspectors. Obviously, the larger or more
complex projects may entail more difficult problems, so anything these team members can
do before the project begins will help to alleviate future mishaps. This will include
cooperation oa specification writing, coordination of project inspections, and performing a
thorough visual inspection of the work area prior to clearance sampling.

Abatement projects of a smaller size are usually performed under maintenance contracts
and include mechanical, electrical, and communication maintenance; elevator maintenance;
and carpet installation and removal, among others. Because these projects may involve
workers relatively unskilled in asbestos control procedures, the project may be more difficult
to control. As a result, proper procedures for working with ACM must be explicitly stated
in maintenance contracts. Also, these projects will require dOSCIr inspection by the field
office than larger projects, and may not have the proper engineering controls that would be
found on the more elaborate, large projects. It is bnportant that the PACM be aware of
who is working on any project within the building, and that work practices be closely
monitored.

Among thn resources available for inspection or consultstion on project design are industrial
hysienists from either the regional Safety and Environmental Management (S&EM)
Branch/Division staff or contractors to the Branch/Division. While most O&M ectivities
will not require industrial hygtean involvement. Wine of the moet complex cie rtraltiVe
parjects may, as determined by conotation between the Buildings Manager and tbe S&EM
Chief /Director.
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ClelllaetilleSteclial-Chetkpal

This checklist can be used in conjunction with the Project Inspection Check liu to document

the work practices twat a project's sten to its completion. Mon specifically, the Clearance

Inspection Checklist will be completed after a clearance victim/ inspection is caudated and

following clearance air sampling.

The building, abatement
project' numbe, date, and location of the work area should be

recorded for cad inspection conducted. :cause, in some cases, more than one clearance

inspection may need to be conducted, the number of the clearance inspection should be

recorded. Additionally, to provide a quick reference to some of the project speciEes, the

type of asbestos-containina material (ACM) being abated and an approximate amount of

material abated should be Indicated.

The inspector will look primarily at two criteria: (l) Rhether any loose, residual dust

remains on any surfaces within the work area, and (2) whether any pass or thcompletely

removed contamination exists within the area. if either residual dust or gross contamination

is found, its location snould be noted, and this area should receive additional attention

during subsequent clearance inspections.

. e results of the clearance inspection will be indicated (pass or fail) with space for

addi,,onal comments such as overall appearance of the work area, or reasons for failure of

the inspection.

An indication whether clearance sampling was conducted, the date it was condueted, and

results should be included on this form. A more detailed record of the clearance air

sampling process can be gained by referrina to the Data Form for Air Samples.

Finally, the form should be signed and dated by the inspector and his/her affiliation should

be indicated. The Facility Asbestos Control Manager will also sign and date the form,

indicating completion of the inspection.
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11441..... . .S so s *vas yrs...

Project Nu:

GSA Rldg. No.:

Dau sed Tim Insporsios Surma Compkurd

Asbestos-Coast:Mos Material Being Abated: Surfecius

Thermal System latidatio.

Miscellaneous

Approxioate Assoust of Material Abate& Sq. Pt LF

Inipectims foe Residual Mat

Inspection for Gross Coots:Tanaka

Nome Found

Residual dua found ow

floor horittiotal surfaces

PiPci II VAC equipment

LOW oilier (specify)

Nom Foust,

Grou contutinatioo found mu

Auk

Piftu

boots

Rooks of Quer= Impectioa Pass

Capars

structural members

oacc (war)

MIMICS of Alt Sampling Courbatok Yca No Doc

Resuks of Mama Alf Sampling Ares hoot Yes No
Copies of data Awls attaelieL

Arsa lespestad 1 D.i. Yam_
larpottcal Compiany/Orsesiestiose ?bow

Drota,_
(Facility Asbestos Controi Musson)

54
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Vi

Waste Disposal Record Form

Waste_Msposel Record Pm

This form is to be completed upon the generation of asbestos-containing waste material and

transport to the landfill. Information will be collected as to whether the waste was generated
during wet removal operations, or under chy removal operations which require advance EPA

approval, or as a result of collection of debris. If the material is removed under dry
conditions, a copy of EPA approVal forms should be attached. Additionally, information

should be given regarding the containerization of the waste, whether in labeled 6 mil
polyethylene bags, metal or fiberboard drums, or other approved containers.

Upon in, anon of the waste disposal procedures, a chain of custody should be established.
As each of the disciplines listed on the form (contractor, waste hauler, landfill operator, and
owner) completes hisfher involvement in the chain, the appropriate blank should be checked.

All landfill receipts and forms (including copies of hazardous waste manifests) should be

attached. Due to the potential legal liability associated with disposal of asbestos-containing

wastes, all parties involved should acknowledg .! their receipt a the disposal records, including

the building owner or owner's representative.

The name;addiess, phone number, and landfill contact would be noted on this form.

In following federal requirements concerning disposal notification, all applicable notifications

of Federal, State, and Loral NESIIAP officials in the U.S. EPA or an agency delegated by

the EPA to receive this notification should be indicated. The date of notification should be

recorded, and all verifications of notifications, as well as copies of the original notification,

should be attached.

Although asbestos is not listed by the EPA as a hazardous waste under the Resource
Ccnservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), many states with EPA-approved s:ate RCRA plans

have classified asbestos waste as hazardous, requiring stringent handling and disposal
procedures. The state hazardous waste agency should be contacted in advance of a projett

for approved dispcsal methods, recordkeeping requirements, and a list of facilities accepting

asbestos-containing waste.

Under Superfund regulations, when more than one pound of friable asbestos is released into

the environment, or if there is a threat of such a release, the Facility Asbestos Control

Manager (FACM), or the manager of au asbestos-related construction project, must

immediately not* the National Response Centir at 800-424-8802 (in Washington, DC,
202-426-2675). GSA, or the contractor, is responsible for removing the asbestos frana the

environment or taking other appropriate remedial action in response to the actual Of

threatened release.

The form should be signed and dated by the project inspector, the GSA Contract number

(if appl' able) should be indicated, and tbe FACM should sign the form.
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WASTE DISPOSAL RECORD FORM

Bu iltUnv OSA 814 No.:

Address: GSA Project No.:

Area of Work

WASTE INFORMATION

ACHAnItanil
Wet Removal
Dry Removal (EPA Approval Forms Atuarbed)

CanuactizagnalchukilLtbaupsta

Labelled 6 mil bap
Metal drams (labeled) Fiberboard drums (labeled)
Other (specify)

DISPOSAL NOTIFICATION (Check All That Apply and Provide Copies)

Local NESHAP notification Date:
State NESHAP notificatn Date.
Federal EPA notification Date:
Landfili Operator Date:

CHAIN OF CUSTODY (Attach Landfill Reeelpts/Forma)

Contractor Date Manifest No.:
Waste hauler Date Manifest No.:
Landfill operator Date Manifest No.

DISPOSAL sin

Landfill name:
Mailing address;
?bone nvmber:
Amount of =Wig

Form Completed By

OSA Coatract #

Dace:

Signed: Date:
(Facility Asbestos Control Manager)

57
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VII

Employee Training & Medical Information

Yid Ikailan_aLEIC12112MTralnIns

When woi king around anj with asbestos-containing material, it is important that workers
be trained in the dangers of asbestos and the proper methods of asbestos controL When
awarding a maintenance contract or directing staff maintenance workers, it l hnponant that
those workers involved in potentiall; hazardous situations be trained, and that each Facility
Asbestos Control Manager (FACM) verify this training.

When using an in-house staff for 'the smaller-scale operations, verifiwion will be easier than
when using outside contractors. For all in-house personnel who receive training regarding
asbestos abatement, operations and inaintenance, or custodial programs, a verification form
should be completed and a copy of a ft aining certificate attached. Information on the form
should include the employee name, pordtion or title, and organizational unit. The training
course title and training provid r should also be provided. The date and length of course
should be recorded, and whether the course has been granted full approval by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Apnc7, or by an EPA-approved state program. Additionally, the
employee's name should bc entered into the Master List of Training Information. This
Master List should include Social Security number, organizational unit within GSA, tide of
training received, completion date, and the name of the training organization.

Maintenance morkers should be trained in asbestos-related work practices prior to their
working in a building with asbestos-containing materials (ACM). Custodial workers should
be given asbestos awareness training (including how to avoid disturbing ACM and how to
respond when encountering disturbed ACM) within 30 days after they start work in such
bu ,dings. (GSA custodial workers and contract custodial workers are not to clean up
asbestos debris themselves.) It is recommended that contractors submit verification of
employee training at the time a contract is bid in order to determine qualifications. In the
event this is not feasible, verification of training should be submitted withLn 30 days of the
awarding of the contract. Additionally, proof of training should be submitted no later than
30 days after a new contractor employee begins work within a building containing ACM. By
verifying proper training, the FACM can keep better control of who may work on a project,
and prevent unauthorized or untrained individuals from entering a hazardous area or
performing work improperly.
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Verification Of Employee Training

Emplore Name

Social Security Of

Poseidon

Es3PloYet: GSA Non-GSA

Training Provider

Address

Training Cause Title

Date of Course

Length of Course (Hours)

Was This Course: _ Initial Training Update Training

Does Course Have Full Approval of U.S. Environmental Protection Agency?

Does Employee Participate in Respirator Program? Yee No

Does Employee Participw. in Medical Surveillance Program? Yes No

Attach of Certificate Indicating Successful Completion of Training (including appropriate
examinatia.).

60



MASTER LIST OF TRAINING INFORMAMON

SOCIAL
EMPLOYEE NAME SECURITY DEPARTMENT TRAINING RECEIVED DATE ORGANIUTION

NUMBER

COMPLETION IXAINING

I

i1
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MrslisaLOmealgnnairea
Asbestos-related operations and maintenance work in GSA buildings is covered by the
OSHA Asbestos Construction Industry Standard. It Is GSA practice to have employees who
work with sibestos-containing materials in abatement or operations and maintenance obtain
annual meditml examinations. This approach is consistent with the OSHA Constniction
Industry Asbestos Standard, described below, bin provides greater protection for the workers
by not requiring waiting until thc action level is exceeded before starting the exam cycle.

Employees covered under OSHA's Asbestos Standard for the Construction Industry (29
CFR 192638) must be enrolled in a medical surveillance program when asbestos exposures
meet or exceed the action level of 0.1 fibers per cubic centimeter of air based on an 8-hour
time weighted average and/or the excursion limit of 1.0 fibers per cubic centimeter of air
based on a 30.minute time weighted average, for 30 or more days per year, or those
employees who wear negative pressure respirators. me medical surveillance program will
include completion of the attached Initial Medical Questionnaire (Part I) upon initial
examination, and completion of the Periodic Medical Questionnaire (Part II) on an annual
basis.

While the OSHA standard requires that medical records be retained for the duration of
employment plus 30 years, GSA requires that medical records for GSA employees be
retained permanently with an Asbestos Records Label on all asbestos m.sdical file folders.

The GSA building manager or Facility Asbestos Control Manager should have a master list
of employees in thc asbestos medical surveillance program and ensure that employees are
current in their medical examinations.

62
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From Federal Itetister/VoL 11, No. ill/Friday, ,Itme 29, 1911/itu les and Regulations

Part 1

INiTIAL MEDICAL QUESTIONNAINI

I. Name e
2. Social Security

1 2 3 4 9 $ fl
3. CLOCK NUMBER

"W". IT 14

4. PRESENT OCCUPATION 41.11 wm1000.

S. PLANT

I. ADDRESS

7.
(zip Cade)

I. TELEPHONE NUMBER

I. INTERVIEWER

10. Date
14 17 1$ lif 20 21

11. Date of Birth
Ti If ir

12. Place of Birth

1$. Sex 1. Male
1. Female 111=1,1.1110

14. What Is your marital status? 1. Single 4. Separated/
2. Married

.1,
Divorced

3. Widowed
IM1.111101..11.

11. Ise* 1. White 4. HisPenks
2. Black

.111.10
IL Indian

3. Asian S. Other go.

11. What Is the highest grade completed in :school?
(1Por example, 12 years Is completion of high school)
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OCCUPATIONAL HISTgar.

11 E. Have yOU ever worked MI Om, 1. Tea 2. No
(S hours per week or more) foe

ar meat

Ili YES TO nike

11. Have you ever worked for a year 1. Yes L He

or more in any dusty job? 2. bogs Not Apply

Specify job/Industry Total Years Worked

Was dust exposures I. MN 2. Moderate 3. Severe

C. Have you ever been exposed to gas or 1. Yes 2. No
chemical fumes In your work?
Specify job/industry Total Years Worked

Was exposures I. Mild _2. Moderate 3. Severe

D. What has been your usual o.n.. nailor. ur job the one , au have worked at the
longest?

I. Job occupation

2. Number of years employed In thls occupatIoe

3. Position/job title

4. Buslne&s, field or industry

(Record on lines tne years in which you have worhed in any of these industries, e.g.,
1960-111211)

Have you eves worked:

0.1.1.

I. in a sine?

V. Is a wane

0. la a totockft

H. la pottage

I. Is a Dolton, flax, beasp

J. With asbestos? **

YES NO
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1$. FAST MEDICAL misroity

YRS NO

A.. Do you consider yourself to be in good health?

IltoN(r state mama

13. Have vou any defect of vision?

IF NyEr stat nature of defect

C. Rave you any hearing defeat?

If nEs. state nature of defect

D. Are you vliffering from or have you ever suffered from

a. Epilepsy (or fits, seizures, convulsions?)

b. Rheumatic fever?

0. Kidney disease?

d. Bladder disease?

I. Diabetes?

f. Jaundice?

=11.

19. CHEST COLDS AND CREST ILLNESSP3

19 A. If you get a cold, does it usually 1. Yu I. No
p to your chest? (Usually means S. Don't pt colds
more than 1/3 the time)

20 A. During the past 3 year% have you 1. Yes No
had any chest Wnemes that have
kept you off work, Indoors at home,
or In bed?

M11114T......

OW.... ...MIME,

...,

ft TIM TO 3M1
B. Did yoe produce phlegm with any of

time chest Wound 1. Yes I. No
4 3. Does WoMppty ---

C. In the lut 3 pars, how many such Number of Wasson
illnesses with (ineresse41) phlegm did No. Boob Wallow --.....
you have which lasted a week or more?

37-486 - 91 - 4
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21. Did you here any lung troub1e before 1. Yee 1. Nothe age of IS?

IL Have yen ever hod any of the following?
IA. Attacks of bronchitis? I. Yee 1. No

I? Yith ro lAs
B.. Mu it confirmed by a dostoe? I. Yu I. No

S. Does ITirapply

C. At what ago wu your fIrst attack? Age in Years
Does Not Apply

2A. Pneumonia (Include bronchopneumonia! I. Yee 2. No
YIN TO 1A1

B. visa it confirmed by a doctor? I. Tee No
3. Does Not AI. ly

C. At what sge did you first hay* it? Age In Years
Does Not Apply

SA. Hay ?evert I. Yes 2. No
B. Was it confirmed by a doctor? S. Does Not Apply

C. At what age did it start? Age In Years
Does Not APO"-

23. A. Have you ever had chronic bronchitis? I. Tee 1. No
11? YES TO 23As

B. Do you still have It? 1. Yoe I. No
3. Doeigal Apply

C. Was it confirmed by a doctor? 1. Yee 2. No
3. 'Am Nat AMY

D. At what age did 4 dolt Age is Years
Does Not Apply

U. A. Nave you ever had emphysema? 1. Yee 2. No

0.1111111

INNONINNOO...

=111.....,

=.
...10.11mm

IS YU 1'0 24Aa
I. Do you still bare It?

C. Was 11 ocootirmed by a doctor?

1. Tee I. No
I. Does 011

I. Yoe L No
3. Dna MA AMP
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D. At what nit did It start?

U. A. Han you ever had uthma?

qns TO 2Sas
B. Dorn still have It?

C. Was It confirmed by a doctor?

D. At what age dld it start?

IL If you oo lonpr have it, at what
age did ft stop?

211. Have you ever ?midi

A. Any other chest illness?
If yes, Please specify

B. Any chest operations?
if yes, Please specify

C. Any chest Injuries?
If yes, Please specify

Ap Years
Does Not Apply

1. Yes 2. Ne

1. Yes 2. No
S. Does Not Apply

1. Yes I. N.
S. Does Not Apply

Age In Years
Does Not Arply

Age Stopped
Does Not Apply

1. Yn 2. No

1. Yes

1. Yes 2. No

2t. Hu a doctor ever told you that you
had heart trouble?

17 YES TO 27As
B. Have you ever treatment for heart

trouble In the 10 years?

U. A. Has a doctor every told you that
you hod high blo04 pressure?

U.

U.

IP YES TO 21As
B. Have you had any treatment for high

blood pressure (hypertension) In the
pest tee yean?

When did you last hove your chest
wtayedt (Year)

1. Yes 2. No

1. Yes 3. No
3. DoesWii Apply

1. yes 2. No

1. Yes S. No
3. Does Not Apply

-ir ,r IT -Tr
Where did you last have your chest a-reyed (if known)?

What was the outcome?

fr n
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yA MILT EMMY

31. Went either of yoer natural versals ever UM by a doctor that they had a Amnia
lung condition swell ass

FATHER MOTHEZ
1. Yee LN. 3. Don't 1. Yes S. No 3. Don't

Know KnowA. Chronic:
lironchitb? / ONIMINM 0.... ORM., ...I.IIM

lit. emphysema? ---
C. Asthma?

D. 1.ung cancer? .....

FATHER MOTHER
1. Yes S. No 3. Don't 1. Yes 2. Ho 3. Don't

Know Know

E. Other chest
conditions?

F. Is parent currently
alive?

O. Please Specify

H. Please specify
cause of death

111110

Age if Living
Age at Death
Don't Know

-
. w
(01.

Age if Living
Age at Death
Don't Know

2.42921

32. A. Do you may hare a sough? (Cocata I. Yee 2. No.
cough with first smoke or ea first guitar
out of doors. Exclude &taring of throat.)
Of atto skip to gemlike str4

S. Do yov useally cough as eauch a 4 to 1. Yee N. No
them a del 4 or wore days out of tho wool'?

C. Do roc usealty mats at all ea "'Mai I. Yee 2. No
op or first thing le the moroing?

D. Do you unsally cough at ell *rim the 1. Yea I. No
rest of the day or at sight?
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11 TES TO AEI OP ABM (3SA, E. C, or D), ANSWER THE FOLLOWING. 17 NO TO
ALL, CHICK QOM 1W1 APPLY AND SHIP TO NEXT PAOL

K. Do you usually cough like this on most
days for 3 eeasoeutive monthe or mon 3.
during the pert

IP. Tor how many years hay. you had the cough? .

A. Do you usually bring up phlegm from your 1.
chest? (Count phlegm with the first smoke or oa
first going out doors. gaoled* phlegm
from tho nose. Count swallowed phials.)
(It no, skip to 330.)

B. Do you usually bring up phlegm like this 1. Yes I. No
as much as twice a day 4 or more days
out of the week?

Tee
Does Not Apply

Number of Tears
Does Not Apply

iN11,11

Tea 2. 110

C. Do you usually bring up phlegm St all 011 I. Yes 2. NO
getting up or first thing in the morning?

D. Do you usually bring up phlegm at all 1. Tes 2. No
during the rest of the day or at night?

IF YES TO ANY Or THE ABOVE (33A, B, C, OR 13), ANSWER THE FOLLOWING,
IF NO TO ALL, CHECK DOES NOT APPLY AND SKIP TO 34A.

L Do you bring up phlegm like this on most 1.
days for 3 consecutive months or more 3.
during the year?

F. For how many years have you had trouble
with phlegm?

EPISODES OF COUCH AND PHLfOIN

$4. A. Have you had periods or episodes of
(Ineroasee) cough and phlegm lasting
for S weeks or more each year?
*Roe poems who usually havo cough
and/or phlegm)

K. 111 TO TO 34As
Yee how long have you had at least 1 such
episode per year?

Yes L No
DoesTra Apply

Number of Years
Dews Not Apply

.1111.1MMOil

L Tee 1.No

Number of Years
Does Not Apply

41..1.01111!
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WHEWJIQ

U. A. Does your chest ever sound wheesy or
whistling
1. When you have a cad,
1. Oecasleoafly apart from Golds?
S. Most der or nights?

B. 11, YES TO 1, I. or 3 In 22A1
?or how many years has this beers presen?

32. A. Have you ever had an attack of wheezing
that has mad* you feel short of breath?

IF YES TO SSA:
B. How old wen you when you had your first

such attack?

C. Have you had 2 or more such episodes?

D. Have you ever required medicine oe
treatment for the(se) attack(s)?

1. Yes 2. Ho
1. Yes 2. No
1. Yes 2. N.

Number of 'tem
Does Hot Apply

1. Yes I. No

.41.

Ap In Team
Does Not Apply

1. Yea 2. Ho
3. Does Not Apply

I. Yn 2. No
3. Does Not Apply

BR EATIILESSNESS

37. If disabled from walking by any condition
other than heart or lung disease, please
describe and proceed to questfon 31A.
Nature of condition(s)

31. A. Are you troubled by shortness of breath
when hurrying on the level or welkin'
up a slight hill?

IPY!STOUM
Do you have °a walk slower then people
of your age co the level became of
breathlessmas?

Do you ours have to stop for truth when
walking at your own pare as the Wel?

Do yes ever here to stop foe breath after
wallas. shout 123 yards (or after a few
indoetail as the level?

Are you too breethleue to leave the house
or breathless on dressing or climbing ow
flight of stairs?

I. Yes 2. No

1. Yin 2. No
S. Doeacii Apply

011=111111

L Yee 1. No
3. Doom Apply-
1. Yes S. No
3. DoesTa Apply

Yes LKo
Does.Not Apply
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TOPACCO $1110111NQ

U. A. Have you ever smoked cigarettes?
(No mes* ,. I. than n packs of cigarettes
or 12 os. ei tawco in a lifetim of
less than 1 cigarette a day' for 1 yeir.)

LT YES TO Ms
Do you now smoke cigarettes (as of
one month ago)?

How old were you when you first started
regular eige.rette smoking?

If you have stopped smoking cigarettes
completely, how old were you when you
stopped?

How many cigarettes do you smoke per
day now?

On the average of the entire time
you smoked, how many cigarettes
did you smoke per day?

Do or did you inhale the cigarette
smoke?

40. A. Have you ever smoked pips regularly?
(Yes means more than 12 oz. of tobacco
In a lifetime.)

1. Yes $ Mo.

I. Yes 1. No

Aye In Year,
Does Not Apply

Age Stopped
Cheek if still smoking
Does Not Appli

Cigarettes per day
Does Not Apply

Cigarettes per day
Does Not Apply

1. Does Not Apply
2. Not At All
3. Slightly
4. Moderately
5. Deeply

1. Yes 2. No

IP YES TO 40AI
FoR PERSONS WHO HAVE EVER SMOKED A P115

B. I. How old were you when you started
to smoke a pipe regularly?

L If you have stopped smoking a pipe
completely, how old were you when
stepped?

C. On the average over the entire time you
smoked a pipe, how much pipe tobacco did
you smoke per week?

Age

Age Stopped
Cheek if still
smoking pipe
Does Not Apply

oa. per week
(a standard poueh
of tobacco cootains
1.1/3 oz.)
Does Hot Apply___

1
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D. How much pipe tobacco are yosimeoking now?

E. Do you or did you Inhale the pipe smoke?

41. A. Have you ever smoked cigars regularly?
(Yes means more then 2 elpr a week far
a year)

IF YES TO 41As
FOR PERSONS WHO HAVE EVER SMOKED

E. 1. How old were you when you started
smoking cigars regularly?

2. If you have stopped smoking cigars
completely, how old were you when
stopped?

G. On the average over the entire time you
smoked cigars, how many cigars did you
smoke per week?

D. How many cigars are you smoking per week
now?

IS. Do you or did you innate the cigar smoke?

Date

Ox. per week
Not currently
smoking a pipe

1. Hexer smoked
2. Nos at all
3. Slightly
4. Moderately
S. Deeply

1. Yes Z. No

CIO Alt!

Age

Age Stopped
Check If still
smoking cigar.
Does Not Apply

Cigars per week
Does Not Apply

Cigars week
Cheek if not
smoking cigars
currently

1. Never smoked
3. Hot at all
$. Blistgly
4. hoderstely
2. Dosply

lIMO

11111111110

1.1.111011M

...,

.111.

41
ICIMMIIMta

MIMINO
.11.1114111111.1
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Yeas ritagiiniesevel. $1, K. 1111/Priday, June 21, 11201tu1es and Rep latices

Part 2

reructqic MEDICAL QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Haase

2. Soo lel Security 3I 2 $ 4 II a "T II --1---

3. CLOCK NUMBER

4. PRESENT OCCUPATION

IL PLANT

L ADDRESS

t.

--a- -rr -a- -rr ir rr-

(Ztp Code)

S. TELEPHONE NUMBER

V. INTERVIEWER

10. Date -Tr 1? 1$ "ir IT 21

11. What Is your marital status? 1. Single 4. Separated/
2. Married Divorced
3. Widowed

OCCUPATIONAL HISTORY

12 A. In the past year, did you
worked full tient (311 hours
per week or more) for $ months or
more?

IP YES TO 12As

1. Ye, ........

12. E. hi the past year, dld you work 1. Yes 2. Wo

Is say dusty fob? 3. Doanrai Apply

IS. C. Was dust exposures. 1. 1411d 2. Moderate 3. Severe

IL D. lc the past year, were you 1. Yes 2. No
soared to gas or chemical
fumes Is your work?
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13. 8. Ma levees's: 1. NM 3. Moderat

12. IF. In the pas? yea;
what was mei 1. JoWoecupetiew

L Position/job titIst

13. RECENT Mlnicm. HISTORY

13. A. Do-you eonsidcr yourself to be
In good lmaltbt

If NO, state reason

13. B. In the put yeery hay you
dvelopeds

3. Severe

Yes No

Emphysema?
Rheumatic fever?
KIdney diseust
Madder disease?
Diabetes?
Jaundice?
Cancer?

14. C II EST COLDS ANO CHEST ILLNEsse4

14. A. If you get a cold, does it usualk
go to your chest? (Usually means
more than 1(2 the time)

1$. A. During the past 3 years, have yell
had any chest illnesses that hare
kept you off work, indoors at bone,
or in bed?

15. 13. IPUSrOIW
Did you produce phlegm with say se
these chest Illnuess?

IL C. Is the peat Tem% bow many est*
illnesses with (ineressed) phlegm did
you haus which lasted a week co mon?

1

I. Yes 2. No
1. Don't get colds

1. Tee L No
3. Does IV-4ply

1. Yes 2. No
3. Does Mit Xprrly

Number of Musses
No. such Illnesess
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11. USPHIATOST flflIM
hi the pate year, have you he&

Asthma

litvechltle

Hay Fever

Other Allergies

Paeumatia

ilaberculade

Chest Surgery

Other Long Problems

Heart Disease

Do you bum

Frequent colds

Ctsrostle trough

Stiortmse of breath
whoa walking or
elimblrq; Gee Hight
ol Maio

Do yeas

Wheelie

Coulit sP

S moke sigmas'

Further Comment oa Positive
A Alain

Further Comment on Positive
Tsi or No Antwerl

1111111011.

Peaks per day Now many years

Date Signature
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Mr. McMillen.
Thank you, Ms. Fisher. I presume that these further steps you

have described are not going to be taken in the next few weeks, so
that we have nothing specifically to hold the record open for in ref- 1111-

erence to questions. But the record will be held open for 30 days,
and if there's anything you would care to submit, or if any ques-
tions come in, we'll be forwarding them to you as they come in. So
we thank you very much.

Ms. FISHER. Thank you.
Mr. LUKEN. It looks like we have a vote on. In the interest of

moving along, we will take the next panel. We are going to rear-
range things a little bit because of plane schedules. The next panel
will be Dr. Levin and Dr. Gee. We flipped a coin and we'll go al-
phabetically.

Dr. Gee, we have your testimony, which we will receive. We will
give you approximately 5 minutes to summarize it or tell us what
you can. I'm sure there will be questions to amplify it.

STATEMENTS OF J. BERNARD L. GEE, PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE.
YALE UNIVERSITY ACHOOL OF MEDICINE; AND STEPHEN M.
LEVIN, MEDICAL DIRECIVR, MOUNT SINAI-1RVING J. SELI-
KOFF OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CLINICAL CENTER, NEW YORK
CITY

Mr. GEE. I will not read my statement, and I'm going to pass up
a lot of the preliminary stuff in here and try to address three or
four things straight out.

Let's start by just reminding ourselves of three or four important
differences that get mingled up. I think the first one is to recognize
that asbestos is a commercial term and it isn't anything else other
than that. It's not even a scientific term.

Broadly speaking, there are two groupsthe amphiboles, which
we'll call "nasty", and the chrysotile, which, in spite of some of the
testimony that will be given later, we'll not call safe, but we'll say
"safer". Second, the commonest form of that in buildings is chryso-
tile, mostly from Canada.

A second very important distinction is to recognize there are two
kinds of people in buildings. There are two populations, those who
work on and those who either work or dwell in buildings. The
latter are a majority and that's what that Science article primarily
addressed. They are the responsibility of EPA.

By contrast, there's a group of people who work in buildings and
who are, in some instances, necessarily working with asbestos. I
certainly have seen over the years a number of people whose busi-
ness it is to take care of the boilers of a number of rather substan-
tial Connecticut insurance companies who clearly have evidence of
their asbestos exposure. This is not a new observation. It has been
known for a long time. Although we may have some more data on
it, that group clearly is a worker with asbestos as, indeed, would be
an abatement worker, and a ificparate and appropriate management
of that has to be considered. Whether it's an OS1LA. regulation or a
specific legislative act is for you ladies and gentlemen to decide.

With th.at preamble, let me now address the other crucial distinc-
tionand there are several hereon the kinds of disease that as-
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bestos produces. The great name of the game in obfuscation is to
mix everything up and allow it to part and assume they're all the
same. They are not. The first disease is asbestosis, or lung fibrosis.
I submit there is not ore scrap of data to indicate that in American
schools, or any other buildings, by dwellers in or workers in as op-
posed to on, that asbestosis has occurred.

Now, that's the fibrosis. The reason for that is dose. It's entire
compatible with the numbers that have been observed of airborne
levels in workplaces contrasted with what we see i !I the buildings
al,d, for that matter, in outside air.

The second issue is lung cancer, which is clearly far mere alarm-
ing. I simply must address this issue. The primary cause of lung
cancer in everyone is smoking. The major dominant factor in even
asbestos workers is still smoking. I am not, by that, seeking to dis-
inculpate, if that's the right word, asbestos in all lung cancers in
asbestos workers. That would be wrong. But there's no doubt that
most of them are smokers.

The point I want to make is that for society we have now got to
look at a population of people who are exposed to something be-
tween 1/200th to 1/2000th of the historic exposures and 1/200th of
the allowable exposures to asbestos, whose smoking habits are
drastically changing and should be enforceably changed, certainly
in public buildings, and in whom the switch from nonfilter to filter
cigarettes, which by the way has an additional risk if you don't do
it, has all changed.

The point I want to make is that asbestos alone, in the concen-
trations being observed, in ambient air and buildings alone, with-
out smoking, is a minuscule risk for lung cancer. If we wish to pay
the abatement business to save smoking, I think, as a personal citi-
zen now, that is in error.

The third point I wanted to makeand this is the issue of the
schoolsthat is, that mesothelioma, which is a separate lung
cancerI'm sorry. Let me rephrase that. It is a separate cancer af-
fecting the lining membrane of the lung. This is a totally different
disease. Fortunately, it's rare, and the exact incidence is of the
order of 20 cases per million per year in the entire population.

Now, there is a lot of argument about this, but I personally be-
lieveand with all due respect, I would suggest that those who
hold conferences should invite people to that conference who have
these views and who are in a position to prove it--that the evi-
d-mce that chrysotile caused this is minimal. That is the so-called
safe as oestes.

Now, there isn't any doubt that the others will do it. There is
some doubt whether chrysotile ever does it. The problem that is
quite correctly pointed out is that what is called chrysotile is
rather like asking what's in ice cream. Sometimes there are things
in it you're not quite sure about. In this instance, there's another
fiber called tremolite that accounts for 1 percent of it. That is a
very definite agent capable of causing mesothelioma.

However, there are a number of reasons to believe that that's
not a big issue in buildings, which we could discuss if you wish.
The point I still want to make is that the epidemiology on which
that is based treats chrysotile soup, that is, chrysotile prostremo-
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lite, as the substrate. In other words, the data is based on the mix-
ture, not on the pure form. So it's still valid.

I think those are the main points about the types of asbestos that
need to be made, and I think. I will just briefly tell two very quick
stories, because although they're actually very small numbers, they
are horrifying examples of what unfortunately is the truth.

Any of us who grew up in London during World War II will
know that we all had gas masks, and the God-given civilians got
chrysotile in their filters. The unfortunate gentlemen or others
who had to fight got a military i,;as mask in which the amphibole
crocidolite was the filter. Those were made by women working in
the north of England. There was one mesothelioma in the chryso-
tile group and that was due to another exposure. Fifteen percent of
the people who worked with massive doses of this pure crocidolite
went down NN ith mesotheliomas 20 to 30 years later.

Now, without naming the cigar company, there is one compa-
ny that used asbestos in its filten +ome of them were crocidolite,
or rather amphiboles. Some of them were not. The chrysotile man-
ufacturing totals had no trouble. The reverse was true with the
others. Those are small groups, but thty have the misery of being
the kind of experiment you can only normally do on rats and had
the misfortune, out of ignorance, at that point to do on people. It
really clarified the issue. There is a stack of epidemiology to prove
it, and this should have been represented at all meetings on this
subject.

I would like just to turn to a couple of final summary remarks
and then, with your permission, I would like to read something
that really reflects me as a person rather than as a scientific
person. I want to conclude by saying that for asbestosis there is no
risk. For lung cancer, the risk is a voluntary one; it's smoking. For
mesothelioma, it is an involuntary risk, but it's tiny, provided as-
bestos is kept at the present levels and is not messed with.

By the way, the worst job an insulator ever had to do was rip out
dry asbestos. That's called abatement. I testified once in a Federal
institution, a Nav-y yard, on behalf of workers who were doing ex-
actly that, who all they wanted, unfortunately, was hazardous pay.
I wanted that, but I also wanted a better system for doing it. The
testimony was given on the basis of showing some British Navy
types running around in your spacesuits ripping the stuff out of
the interiors of British aircraft carriers, a practice that was not
going on 10 years ago in certain parts of this community.

All right. To conclude, first, as Ms. Fisher has eloquently said,
and cleanly said, I have nothing but praise and appreciation and
sympathy with what she is saying. We did not lampoon the EPA.
The editor did; we didn't. We just said that the net result of the
EPA, when it got out in schools, was the reverse of what I think
they really meant and certainly what they mean now. Abatement
was the order of the day, not containment.

Secondand this I think is absolutely crucialit is imperative
that the general public should be addressed by prcfessional news
media and physicians alike with balanced education, with what can
only be called staged disple: and demagogic exercises with more
heat than light. There are plenty of them in various parts of the
press.

r
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I submit that we require all asbestos and abatement workers be
subject at least to the equivalent of the OSHA regulations, that in-
place maintenance with limited abatement by properly trained and
equipped workers is all right, that public education is essential
and I want to address that in a momentand finally, I would like
to remark that the committee that is now meeting, to which Ms.
Fisher referred, should, in fact, have an opportunity to report. In
my neck of the woods there's an old saying, "If it ain't broke, don't
fix it. But if it is broke, fix it right."

Mr. LUKEN. You've run over your 5 minutes, but please conclude
within 60 seconds.

Mr. GEE. I will conclude then, sir, by saying thpt is my testimo-
ny. I would like to introduce just two sentences into evidence from
various reports.

This one is from an address by William K. Reilly, Administrator
of the U.S. EPA, given on July 12, 1990:

Based on recent meetings I have held with school officials, including a delegation
based on the U.S. Catholic Conference, on discussions with members of Congress,
and on a recent spate of inaccurate and sometimes tendentious articles and columns
in the news media, it is clear to me that a considerable gap has opened up between
what the EPA is trying to say about asbestos and what the public has been hearing.

One final one, from a recent article in Science, by people who are
in the business of risk management. It says:

Society's system for managing risks to life and limb is deeply flawed. We overact
to some risks and virtually ignore others.

Thank you for letting me read those into the record. I would like
to at least ask permission to enter them----

Mr. LUKEN. Without objection, they will be received.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Gee follows;]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF J. BERNARD L. GEE, PROFESSOR OF MEDICINE, YALE UNIVER-
SITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND DIRECTOR, WINCHESTER CHEST CLINIC, YALE NEW
HA V EN HOSPITAL

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: Thank you for the invitation to
testify today. My name is Bernard Gee. I am a Professor of Medicine at Yale. In
1971 I editorially supported the lowering of the OSHA asbestos standard (1). I once
testified for workers involved in asbestos removal. In the last 2 years, having re-
viewed many medical records, I subsequently testified in court on seven occasions at
the request of counsel for asbestos product manufacturers

I am a coauthor of tv,o reviews (2,3), one by an international interdisciplinary
group, on asbestos and health matters. I have sent copies of my earlier testimony
before the Senate Subcommittee on Toxic Substances, Environmental Oversight, Re-
search and Development together with related correspondence to Judy Lamson, Es-
quire.

Asbestos in the workplace has unquestionably been a very senior , cause of mor-
bidity and premature deaths from insidious lung fibrosis and malivasnt respiratory
disease for certain workers, and sometimes for their families. In the face of such
tragic consequences, asbestos acquired a fearsome reputation.

The purpose of my testimony is not to deny the past but to address the present
situation of asbestos in buildings including schools.

Asbestos is a commercial term for a group of fibrous minerals which differ miner-
alogically and in their biologic effects. Two types are important, curly chrysotile and
rod/needle amphiboles (crocidolite, amosite and tremolite). After lung deposition (an
essential prerequisite) both can cause asbestosis but differ in tarcinogenic capabili-
ties, which also depend on fiber dimensions. Historically work place airborne fiber
levels were highcommonly 100 f/cc. The OSHA asbestos standard is now 0.2 f/cc.
In further sharp contrast, airborne fiber levels of biologically critical dimensions in
buildings, schools and outside air are all less than 0.001 f/cc (200 to 2,000 times less
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than the OSHA standard). The validity of these data is discussed in the Harvard
Symposium and in letters to Science (4).

There are at least two populations in buildingsthose who work on and those
who either work or dwell in buildings. The latter, the majority, art the population
at large for which EPA is the regulatory agency. The former, a minority who work
on buildings obviously become, where asbestos is involved, asbestos workers who
should be subject to OSHA regulations.

It is not news that some such workers (e.g. heating/boiler engineers in schoels)
develop asbestos-related disorders. All of us who see such patients have known this
for some years and this was recognized in our papers and letters. Peer review publi.
cations of reeent studies of similar worker cohorts are awaited. We agree with Sena-
tor Metzenbaum that asbestos abatement and other such asbestos workers should be
subject to the same OSHA or other appropriate ations, be the building a school
or 'Trump Plaza! In general the resulting disoreArtelirs are most commonly pleural
changes which can produce aome lung function loss.

It is this worker group to which the airborne "fiber" data of Dr Sawyer (personal
communication) apply since the measurene sea were made after structural disturb-
ance. He largely employed the then readily available phase contrast microscopy
which, though chrysotile was present, overestimates the true asbestos fiber num-
bers.

Asbestos and the General Public. Here again certain issues have become commin-
gled for some scientists and more so for John Q. Public, It is essential to consider
the asbestos-related disorders separately since their risk factors vary widely.

(1) Asbestosislung fibrosishere the risk factcr is dose. Asbestosis has never
been shown clinically to occur in the general public but only in either asbestos
workers or rarely in household contacts since the general airborne fiber levels are
far too low.

(2) Lung Cancer. Since smoking, a voluntary act, alone accounts for the vast ma-
jority of lung cancers, it is tobacco not asbestos that is the risk factor accounting for
130,000 deaths annually. Asbestos alone, without smoking, even in the workplace
with historic high exposures, is a rare cause of' lung cancer. The contribution of as-
bestos to lung cancer in the smoking general public becomes tiny when it is recalled
that (a) early observations were based on histeric high cigarette (often nonfilter) and
very high (100 f/ml) asbestos exposures and (b) that ambient critical asbestos fiberlevels in or outside buildings are now 1/200th-1/2000th of the present OSHA
standard of 0.2 f/ml. Further, to the extent that asbeetos-related lung cancers in
smoking workers only occur in the presence of asbestoses, the general smoker popu-
lation has nearly no risk for asbestos-related lung cancer since asbestosis rarely if
ever occurs in general society.

Finally, the maximal estimate of 6 lung cancers per 10 million sehoolchildren ex-
posed 0.001 f/ml of asbestos for 6 years is a worst ease scenario employing the
ighest nonthreshold risk escimate known for the commonest building asbestos ma-terial, chrysotile.
One wonders how many of our children are exposed in their homes to passive

smoking at levels of a pack a day per parent?! The Surgeon General has recenfiy
emphasized this risk.

While there are different lung cancer rates with different asbestos tspes, these
differences are small.

(3) Mesothelioma. This is a totally distinct disease from lung cancer, arising from
different cells in membranes (pleura and peritoneum) and unrelated to smoking
This fatal disorder is fortunately uncommon i20 cases/minion pervons/vear) and in
our opinion, the risk factor here is fiber type. The risk is highest with crocidolite
and least with chrrotile by factors of between 15 and 300. Tremolite, an amphibole
present in chrysotile ores, also causes mesothelioma in both mar: and rat but only
when the tremolite is in the fiber form. While it is not entirely certain that chryeo-
tile does not cause mesothelicana in man, the approximately 1 percent tremolite
contamination of serne chrysotile ores is likely to be the cause of the rare mesothe-
homata associated with such chrysotile usage. The evidence that chrvsotile in indus-
try has a minimal mesothelioma risk was summarized in testimony liefore the above
Senate Committee. Briefly (a) women (generally not occupationally exposed to asbes-
tos) show a stable mesothelioma incidence of 4/million women/year over some 20 +-
years; contrast the men who work with asbestos; (b) epidemiologic evidence from the
1.3,S.A.. S. Africa, U.K., Austria, Canada demonstrates at least a 15-fold mesothela
sins risk gradient for crocidolite to chrysotile "only" exposure, (c) autopsy lung fiber
hurdens are consistent with this view; (d) peritoneal (abdominal) mesothelioma do
not occur with chrysotile. These views are expressed in a World Health Organiza-
tion report, International Agency for Research on Cancer report. Ontario Health
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Commission Report, amendments to the British Asbeatos Working earty Report by
Dr. Acheson and in the Harvard Symposium; te) studies of filter manufacturers con.
firm this view; and (f) studies of Austrian cement workers show mesothelinmata
only with amphiboles.

Thus for the involuntary risk of mesothelioma, as opposed to lung cancer with its
dominantly voluntary risk from tobacco, in place asbestos (>90 percent chrysotile)
poses little risk, at the most 1/million students.

To conclude: First, as Ms. Fisher [EPA] has now pointed out, the risk to the gener-
al public for in place asbestos is small and removal may well not be the appropriate
response. Second, it is imperative that the general public should be addressed by
professional news media and physiciars alike with some balanced education rather
than staged diaplays and demagogic exercises with more beat than light.

Third, the current annual cost of abatement exceeds the annual budget of the
entire National Institutes of Health!

Fourth, I submit for your consideration that action on asbestos in buildings be ad-
dressed as follows: (a) 411 asbestos/abatement workers be subject to OSHA regula-
tion; (b) in place maiatc.nance with limited abatement by properly trained and
equipped workers; (c) public education; and (di await report of the currently sitting
Hea/th EffectF Institute-Environmental Public Health 0.-aximittee (not research re-
sults) before further legislat've action.

In short, "If it ain't broke :!'an't fix it," but if you have to fix it do it right!

Mr. LUKEN. Mr. Reilly, I believe, has not given that statement
yet. What date did you say he gave that?

Mr. GEE. This is published, sir, in a document with his letterhead
on it, called the American :1.interprise Institute, Environmental
Policy Conference, the Vista Hotel, Washington, DC, June 12, 1990.

Mr. LUKEN. I'm sorry. I thought you said July.
Mr. G. I'm sorry.
Mr. LUKEN. Thank you very much. We'll be backI think we

may have two votes, so it may be mon than 10 minutes.
[Brief recess.]
Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Dr. Gee, for your testimony.
Dr. Levin, we have your testimony and we appreciate your in-

forming the subcommittee in any way you think will be helpful.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN M. LEVIN
Mr. LEVIN. Mr. Chairman, I want to than you for letting me

come discuss these issues with you. My name is Dr. Stephen Levin.
I'm medical director of the Mount Sinai Occupational Health Clini-
cal Center. In the past decade or so, I have accumulated a consider-
able amount of clinical experience in the area of asbestos-related
disease, since I began my training with Dr. Selikoff hi 1979.

My current responsibilities include examining individual pa-
tients with a history of asbestos exposure, among other exposures,
and designing and conducting clinical studies of groups of workers
who have been exposed to asbestos in a variety of settings. In
recent years, these have included insulators, pipefitters, plumbers,
powerhouse workers, industrial electricians, railroad workers, and
a number of other trades where asbestos exposure is part and
parcel of their daily worklife. W have also studied in recent years
school custodians. I'm going to want to address what our findings
were in that group in just a moment.

It is also one of my responsibilities to design the analysis of the
data that we collect during these studies and to develop reports
that are based on these analyses.

Now, my clinical experience in the last 10 or so years has cer-
tainly given me an appreciation for the seriousness, from a public

1
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health point of view, of the consequences of exposure to asbestos.
Among these building trades groups that we've looked at, we find
very high rates of asbestos-related dizeice on x-rays- -the findings
known as aaestosis or scarring of the lung tissue, sometimes scar-
ring of the lining of the lung, also known as pleura thickening or
pleura scarring. We find these thirgs at very high rates. When
we're talking about sheetmetal workers or pipefitters, we're talking
about rates of abnormality on x-rays that exceed 60 percent.

Now, asbestosis has even been found among firefighters with
more than 20 years since they began their work, because they are
exposed in buildings after fires when they do what is known as
"overhaul" work, where they are looking for remaining smoldering
fire. They are called upon to use rakes and picks on charred and
burnt material and are exposed in this setting often to asbestos
that is so badly ch,Arred that it's not recognizable. What we find
among these worker groups who have a long history of exposure to
asbestos, and a long time since they began their exposure to asbes-
tos, is a predictor fo- what is going to happen to those workers who
do similar work but who have less seniority on the job.

I think the schools custodian study that we recently have com-
pleted and reported on is relevant to the considerations today. That
is a study of some 660 school custodians, who all are employed by
the New York City Board of Education. We looked at those who
had begun their exposure as school custodial workers 35 or more
years earlier. Among that group, 39 percent showed evidence--

Mr. LUKEN. Dr. Levin, I don t usually interrupt, but if you're
going to talk about that study, do we have anything on that study?

Mr. LEVIN. I can get you a copy.
Mr. LUKEN. Has the study been published? Has any summary

been published?
Mr. LEVIN. What I can provide you is the report that we issued

to the New York City Board of Education, which is now in the
public domain, and I can make sure that you have a copy of that.

Mr. LUKEN. You did have a report to the
Mr. LEVIN. Yes, issued to the New York City Board of Education.

It's in the public domain. It's been widely distributed to all who
have asked for it, and we can certainly provide you with that as
well.

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you.
[The report was not received by time of publication.]
Mr. LEVIN. Now, we looked at a subgroup of school custodial

workers who had had no exposure to asbestos outside the school en-
vironment that we could determine. Among that subgroup, who
had school-related exposure to asbestos only, for those who were
more than 35 years since the," had begun their work in schools, 53
percent showed changes on x-rays consistent with prior asbestos ex-
posure.

Now, trades that have been exposed to asbestos in this fashion,
whose death experience has been studied, invariably show that the
scarring lung disease that's found among them is an indication
that these trades have been exposed to enough asbestos to raise
their risk of lung cancer, cancer of the lining of the lung, or meso-
thelioma, as well as other malignancies that are associated with as-
bestos exposure. These trades, for the most part, have gotten their

6
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exposures during the 1950's and 1960's, when building construction
in the United States markedly increased.

The postwar boom in construction activities was enormous, and
that is when asbestos was put into buildings, and those buildings
are now just 30 and 40 years old. They are now in somewhat dete-
riorating condition and they are now undergoing renovation and
repair activities, in some cases demolition activities, and, as a con-
sequence of those activities, there is opportunity for exposure to
construction workers, building maintenance workers, and others
who are in these buildings, because these materials are deteriorat-
ing.

A survey was done in New York City looking at commercial and
public buildings. That survey demonstrated that 84 percent c)f the
buildings evaluated contained asbestos products in poor or only fair
condition. In other words, these materials had been damaged. Op-
portunities for disturbance of these materials which would gener-
ate dust with consequent exposure to anyone in that area of dis-
turbance was identified quite clearly.

Not only the workers who disturb these materials directly are at
risk for asbestos-related disease. Anyone who is present in an 'area
where asbestos dust is generated is at some increased risk for as-
bestos-related disease. There is a dose response relationship, as Dr.
Gee indicated. Where there is considerable exposure, there is a con.
siderable increase in risk of disease. Where exposure is minimal,
there will be a minimal increase in risk of disease.

Now, again, the issue that we are concerned about with regard to
the occupants of buildings, schoolchildren, teachers, secretaries,
other people who occupy buildings where asbestos surfaces may be
exposed and where disturbance might occurthe issue is not scar-
ring lung diseasethe issue is, in fact, the increased risk of mali
nancy. School custodians certainly have scarring lung disease. We
certainly expect that a mortality study done of school custodians
will indicate that they are at increased risk of malignancy in pro-
portion to their scarring lung disease. What we are concerned
about when it comes to children and teachers in schools, other oc-
cupants of buildings where asbestos might be present, is, in fact,
the cancer risk.

Now, in New York City we certainly have had a lot of attention
to asbestos in the past year or so. You probably are aware that
there were a series of steampipe ruptures involving various areas
of Manhattan, and the newspapers covered these issues vigorously.
We at l`count Sinai were asked to consult with the New York City
Depar Inent of Health and the mayor's office to try and address the
question of the risk posed by such exposures, both to the building
occupants as well as to others who might have been present during
those unfortunate episodes. Our role, principally, was to reassure
the builciing occupants, the residents of those apartment buildings
whose apartments had been plastered with asbestos-containing
mud, that if they did not disturb that material, if they left the
premises and were not further exposed, their actual risk of disease
was vanishingly small, well below 1 in 10 million, from our sim-
plest calculations. There was a lot more concern about the Con
Edison workers, the utility workers who worked cleaning up and
repairing those steampipes for 4 or 5 days without being told that
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this material contained asbestos. In certain respects, that bears on
the question of maintenance personnel and custodial personnel
who encounter these materials in buildingsand I'll get to that in
just a moment.

The article in Science magazine, published in the January 19,
1990 issue, has had, I think, a particularly distressing effect on the
public health perspective on the asbestos hazard. I did, in fact, hear
Dr. Gee quoted on WCBS, the all news radio station in New York
City, saying that most Americans don't have to worry about asbes-
tos in place in buildings because, for the most part, they're exposed
to the safe form of asbestos. He was speaking, as we know, about
chrysotile, the type of fiber that is in most :ommon use in the
United States.

The main arguments of that Science article include that asbestos
in place in schools and in other buildings really poses no risk to
health, especially to the building occupants, since most of it is chry-
sotile and the air levels in schools are far below OSHA standards. I
should point out that if we put personal sampling monitors on our
school custodians, if we put personal sampling monitors on the
pipefitters who show over a 69 percent rate of x-ray abnormality
after 30 years on the job, they would fall far below the OSHA
standard fbr permissible occupational exposure, far below, even
though the rate of abnormality in the x-rays is quite persuasive
that they've been exposed. Because the OSHA standard calls for a
time-weighted average. It averages out the exposures over a 40-
hour week.

What we are considering when we talk about maintenance per-
sonnel, custodial personnel, and anyone else occupying a building
where asbestos might be disturbed, are not the general background
levels of exposure only. They play a role in contributing toward
risk of disease but, in fact, it'r.; the peak exposures, when materials
are disturbed, generating high fiber counts for hours at a time,
when then settle back to a 'background level, that represent the
greatest source of risk not only to those maintenance personnel
and custodial workers but to anyone else in the building as well. To
say that the background levels of asbestos fiber in buildings is
0.002 fibers per cubic centimeter ignores the question of the peak
exposures that result from the disturbance of these materials.

We have good data that say that when relamping goes on
through an asbestos-containing ceiling material, when wires are
drawn through an air return plenum through a drop ceiling, levels
of asbestos fibers in the air for several hours at a time can achieve
a measurable concentration greater than 50 fibers per cubic centi-
meter and ev:--7) as high as 100 fibers per cubic centimeter. These
peak, brief, intense exposures represent a public health hazard that
has been ignored by the writers of the Science article but repre-
sent, I think, the main exposures that the workers that we've
looked at have experienced and has resulted in their disease.

Dr. Nicholson and others of our laboratory at Mount Sinai have
responded to the Science article, and I won't cite in detail from
that, but I want to make several points that are included in that
article.

No. 1, chrysotile asbestos, the type that's being described as a
safer form of asbestos, is a potent carcinogen to the lung and is as
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potent as ary other fiber type that is in use. As a matter of fact,
the single study demonstrating the highest risk of lung cancer per
unit dose of asbestos has been found in a South Carolina textile
plant where virtually the only fiber type in use was chrysotile as-
bestos. There was an attempt to say that it was a mineral oil ap-
plied to the fiber that was the real agent that raised the lung
cancer risk, and a recent study by Dr. John Dement has shown
that, in fact, mineral oil added to the fiber played no role whatso-
ever, that it was the fiber itself.

Now, studies also show a substantial risk of mesothelioma,
cancer of the lining of the lung, from chrysotile exposure. Argu-
ments that these malignancies result from the tremolite contami-
nant are entirely speculative, and the reason for that is that virtu-
ally all the asbestos that's been brought into the United States,
chrysotile from C;:,nada, has tremolite in it. Tremolite remains in
the lung longer than chrysotile. We have no reason to believe that
chrysotile, because it "'Paves the lung more rapidly than other fiber
types, is any less cancer causing because it leaves earlier. Benzine,
which causes leukemia in humans and animals, can't be found in
the body even 4 or 5 days after the exposure has occurred. Yet, the
leukemia risk is clearly elevated. The persistence of the fiber is not
thr: only issue as regards its cancer-causing properties. The fact
that all chrysotile brought into the country contains tremolite
makes the issue somewhat a moot point. Whether it's the chryso-
tile alone or the tremolite that's causing the increase in cancer is
not the real issue. We know that the Canadian miners develop
mesothelioma. We know that railroad car mechanics exposed
almost exclusively to chrysotile develop mesothelioma at high
rates. This has been reported in the medical literature. There's a
recent study done in Japan of individuals whose tissues were exam-
ined and found only to contain chrysotile asbestos, and these were
mesothelioma victims. It's very persuasive that chrysotile is capa-
ble of causing mesothelioma.

Now, Dr. Gee indicated that mesothelioma is a rare form of
cancer. That's very true in the general population. Nevertheless, it
caused approximately 9 percent of all the deaths of the insulators
followed by Dr. Silikoff over a period of two decades. So for the
general population it is, indeed, a rare form of cancer; for asbestos-
exposed workers, it is, unfortunately, not rare enough.

Risk to building occupants and users, even if' we take the data
provided by the authors of the Science article, are certainly lower
than the risk for workers. But, nevertheless, if we take the fiber
concentrations reported in buildings that were discussed in the Sci-
ence articlewhich, by the way, the authors themselves would
agree are at least tenfold less in concentration than virtually all
the other studies of buildings V- t have been reported in the litera-
ture, and the methodology has ueen questionednevertheless, if we
take that concentration that was reported and use the EPA's own
risk estimates, we're talking about a risk to schoolchildren who
spend 13 years in school of approximately one in a million, if we
use their figures. That's a conservative estimate, to be sure, and
only considers background levels of asbestos fiber and not the peak,
repeated episodes that we just discussed.
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We now regulate contaminants in drinking water which may be
carcinogenic when they increase the risk of cancer one in a million.
To regulate asbestos in school buildings which may pose a one in a
million risk to schoolchildren is not outside the mainstream of reg-
ulatory activity in this country. So trying to trivialize that risk by
saying it's too low to be considered necessary to regulate in this
fashion I think flies in the face of actual regulatory practice.

Now, I am not of the opinion that all asbestos that's present in
buildings has to be removed immediately. That's not my position.
You want me to finish?

Mr. LUKEN. I think we're either going to ask you to finish or give
Dr. Gee another 10 minutes.

Mr. LEVIN. All right. Let me just finish by saying this.
Asbestos that's in good condition, that doesn't release dust, that

will not be disturbed in a fashion by maintenance or renovation ac-
tivities or demolition, need not be removed. It has to be watched
carefully. If there's going to be maintenance activity, that mainte-
nance activity must be proceeded by removal in a fash'-m that is
safe. We certainly have the technical ability to remove asbestos
safely and to work with it in a fashion that doesn't expose the
workers or any other occupants of the building to the risks from
such a disturbance. But to monitor such materials is absolutely key
if we're not going to remove them. The issue of whether they're re-
moved immediately or at the time that renovation and demolition
is ultimately going to occur is an economic decision and not princi-
pally a scientific question.

I do want to make this last point. Unless we pay attention to the
history that we've accumulated with asbestos exposure and asbes-
tos-related disease, we are certainly going to be harvesting the con-
sequences of today's exposures in the next two or three decades, so
that clinics like ours at Mount Sinai will be seeing victims of asbes-
tos exposure who are developing these asbestos-related malignan-
cies in the year 2010 and 2020 if we don't pay attention to the his-
tory that's been accumulated.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statement of Stephen M. Levin followsd

PREPARED STATEMENT OF STEPHEN M. LEVIN. M.D., MOUNT SINAI SCHOOL. OF
MEDICINE

My name is Dr. Stephen Levin. I am medical director of the Mount Sinai-Irving J.
Selikoff Occupational Health Center in New York City. I am a physician board cer-
tified in occupational medicine and have accumulated a considerable amount of clin-
ical experience in the area of asbestos-related disease since I began my training
with Dr, Selikoff in 1979.

My current responsibilities include examining individual workers and designing
and conducting examinations of groups of workers who have been exposed to asbes-
tos in a variety of settings. In recent years, these have included (but are not limited
to) insulators, pipefitters, plumbers, utility (powerhouse) workers, industrial electri-
cians, railroad employees, stationary firemen, turbine manufacturing workers, con-
crete and cement workers, carpenters, building maintenance workers and school
custodians. It has also been my task to design the analysis of the data obtained
during group examinations and to generate summary reports based on those analy-
se&

My clinical experience in the past 10 years has given me an appreciation of the
seriousness of the public health consequences of exposure to asbestos. To cite just a
few examples, the prevalence of asbestos-related scarring lung disease seen on chest
x-rays among pipefitters who began in their trade 35 or more years before their ex-
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amination in our center was 69 percent. Very nearly the same rate of asbestos-relat-
ed x-ray abnormalities (>60 percent) was found among sheet metal workers with
comparable seniority. Asbestos has even been found among firefighters with more
than 20 years on the job, who have been exposed in damaged and demolished build-
ings in which the asbestos-containing materials were no longer recognizable, What
has been found among these more senior workers can serve as a forecast of what
might be expected for those with shorter time since they began employment in their
respective trades.

In what may have ..reicular relevance to the issue of asbestos-containing materi-
als in place in public buildings, the rate of x-ray abnormally was 39 percent for cus-
todians employed in the New York City Board of Education schools at least 35 years
previously. For custodians who said they had no previous asbestos exposure apart
from their work in schools, the rate of such abnormalities was somewhat higher

It should be noted that the great majority of the trades in which we have found
these high rates of disease have been ex to asbestos product.; put in place in
factories, ships and buildings during 193r137.3 The boom in new building construc-
tion which followed World War IT entailed the use of vast amounts of asbestos, as
boiler and pipe insulation, as fireproofing for structural steel, as soundproofing for
school auditoriums and gymnasiums, and in many other applications. Where the as-
bestos has remained intact, undisturbed and undamaged, little human exposure is
likely to occur and very little disease can be expected. These buildings have aged,
however, and the asbestos-containing materials in place have aged along with them,
frequently sustaining damage and often becoming friable and capable of shedding
fiber upon disturbance. Surveys in New York City of commercial and public build-
ings demonstrated that 84 percent contain asbestos products in pNor or only fair
condition. Disturbance of these materials in the course of maintenance, repair, ren-
ovation or demolition work in such buildings will often result in human exposure to
airborne asbestos fiber released as a consequence of these activities. Not only are
the workers who disturb asbestos themselves at increased risk for asbestos-related
illness, but all those who are present at the time fiber is released or who work in
areas which have been contaminated by the asbestos dust are at risk as well. Asbes-
tos-related diseases exhibit a dose-response relationship. That is, where there is
little exposure, there is little likelihood of disease; when there is more exposure, one
can expect more disease.

The rates of scarring lung disease, asbestosis, visible on the chest x-rays of those
we have studied is in itself a basis for serious concern, since the scarring process in
many cases will compromise lung function and reduce the affected individual's ca-
pacity for physical effort. But a more serious concern from a public health perspec-
tive is the increased risk of asbestos-related cancer such workers incur as a conse-
quence of the asbestos dust deposited in their lungs in the course of many repeated
episodes of exposure, All construction trades which have been found to exhibit as-
bestos-related scarring lung disease and whose cancer death rates have been stud-
ied, have also experienced increased rates of lung cancer, mesothelioma (cancer of
the lining of the lung or abdominal organs). and often cancers of other organs. We
have certainly seen many such eases at Mount Sinai. Rates of cancer associated
with asbestos exposure also follow dose-response relationships, and there is no avail-
able information which indicates the existence of a "threshold dose" below which
there w1:1 be no increase in the risk of malignancy. Over the next few decades, un-
fortunately, we can expect to see increasing numbers of asbestos-related cancers
emerging from the millions of construction and building maintenance workers ex-
posed the past few decades. This, in part, because fewer may die early from asbes-
tosis, their exposures being lower than in the 1940's and 1950's, and now live long
enough to develop the cancers which asbe.itos can cause.

To my knowledge, no one has conauct ed a study of cancer death rates among
school custodians. Unless they respond to asbestie dust differently from other
trades, one can expect their disease experience to show excesses of the same malig-
nancies. The degree of excess among school custodians will depend on their actual
cumulative exposure to asbestos.

In recent months, the issue of the hazards by asbestos have been the subject
of considerable public attention, certainly in OtclYork City. As many will recall, in
late summer and early fall, steam and water _pipes erupted or exploded with what
seemed weekly regularity, sending showers of asbestos-containing mud and debris
over surrounding areas. There was great concern, understandably, among the com-
munity residents, whom we were generally able to reassure that their exposures
had been brief and represented a very low cumulative dose, and that their risk of
asbestos.related illness was extremely small. We had greater 2oncern for the utility
workers who were involved for several days in the repair of the ruptured steampipe,
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surrounded by drying asbestos-containing mud, without the basic protection neces-
sary to prevent the inhalation of the asbestos dust generated by their activities.

Even more recently, asbestos has been in the news as a result of the policy paper
published by Mossman and her colleagues in the January 19, 1990, issue of Science
magazine. It was particularly alarming, given the nature of my clinical work, to
hear on one of the-leading all-news radio stations, Dr. Gee, a coauthor of that paper,
say that most Americans were expoeed to the safe type of asbestos. By this he in-
tended chrysotile, the type of asbestos fiber which represents approximately 95 per.
cent of the total asbestos in place in the United States.

The main argument of the Science article is that the asbestos in place in schools
and other buildings pcses no risk to health, since most of it is chrysotile and air
levels in schools are far below OSHA standards, I have attached a copy of a letter
written by Drs. William J. Nicholson, John S. Harrington, Philip J. Landrigan,
Edward Johnson, and James Melius, which responds critically to the paper by ass-
man et al. and reviews some of the data, not discussed by the Mossman paper,
which argues for a more prudent approach. The main points are these:

(1) Both human and animal data demonstrate that chrysotile asbestos is as potent
a carcinogen to the lung as any other asbestos fiber type. One of the highest lung
cancer rates per unit asbestos dose had been found among a population exposed
almost exclusively to chrysotile.

(2) Studies show a substantial risk of mesothelioma from chrysotile exposure. Ar-
guments that these malignancies result from the presence (1 percent) of tremolite,
another type of asbestos fiber, in chrysotile as a contaminant are entirely specula.
tive. Since chrysotile in commercial products virtually always contains tremolite,
the point is in fact moot.

(3) The Mossman paper treats as inconsequential the exposures of custodial and
maintenance workeis, a problem to be resolved by "worker education."

(4) Risks to building occupants and users are lower than those of asbestos-exposed
workers, but are similar quantitatively to other environmental risks currently regu-
lated by government agencies.

I am not of the opinion that all asbestos must be removed immediately from all
buildinp in which it is present. If the material is not shedding fiber now and will
not be disturbed by maintenance, repair, renovation, or foreseeable accident, a man-
agement plan to assure its continued good condition is certainly appropriate. If itwon't be a source of human exposure to dust, it won't cause disease. If the asbestos
is in poor condition and human contact with the dust can occur, the need for reme-
diation is urgent and essential, because human illness can result. Similarly, where
asbestos is subject to accidental disruption with the intermittent release of fiber, as
is common with sprayed on applications, action must be taken to isolate or remove
the material. For asbestos which is likely to be disturbed recurrently by the need
for maintenance or repair, removal will be necessary ultimately, as it is when ren-
ovation or demolition occurs.

As a sociecy, we have made a mistake (more an honest one for some than for
others) in our widespread use of a material which has proved a serious danger to
health. The point of departure from a public health perspective now should lae how
to prevent preventable illness and save as many lives as possible. Studies of workers
(and their families) previously exposed to asbestos have taught us that past failures
have led to a current public health tragedy. By doing what we can to reduce expo
sure among workers (and others) now, we can hope that the burden of asbestos-re-
lated illness and death will be lessened for the next generation

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Dr. Levin.
Dr. Gee, you indicated, I believe, in your verbal testimony, that

chrysotile is safer. Dr. Levin said, however, it's not safe. Would you
agree with both of those statements?

Mr. GEE. No, not even by a trick of mind can I think that one. I
would like to respond by addressing the issue I tried to open up. It
depends upon the disease of which you speak. For asbestosis, there
is little difference between the forms of asbestos that we commonly
talk about.

Mr. LUKEN. In your answerlet me pose another one to incorpo-
rate in your answer. You enumerated asbestosis and lung cancer,
and Dr. Levin described a third condition, I believe--

Mr. G. He did, and so did I.
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Mr. LUKEN [continuing]. Of lung scarring; is that what you call
it?

Mr. LEVIN. What I addressed wasasbestosis is the term given to
scarring of the lung tissue itself. There is a pleura scarring, a scar-
ring of the lining of the lung which is not traditionally given the
term asbestosis but which is a scarring effect of asbestos. But we
also spoke about mesothelioma, a cancer of the lining of the lung,
very specific to asbestos, which is a form of malignancy.

Mr. LUKEN. Include that in your answer.
Mr. G. I would be happy to. I'm glad you asked this.
Let me run back to the original form. For asbestosis, we have

never, nor do we say, that the fiber type is crucial. For lung cancer,
we believe there are differences, but we do not believe them sub-
stantial enough to make decisions, at least in my mind--and
there's some difference about thisfor legislative purposes. They
should be so regarded as a group, but recognizing my insistence, if
I may, that lung cancer is a smoking related disease, even in asbes-
tos workers.

The third point has to do with mesothelioma. We are of a some-
what different opinion on this point. I think, if I may say so,
there's a little bit of flip-flopping going on. For instance, to say that
9 percent of insulation workers die of mesothelioma is tragically
true, but it's also tragically true to point out that that's a very
high load of amphiboles. Most insulation workers have access to
chrysotile, but they also have a lot of amphibolesin other words,
the crocidolite and so on. That statistic is not a fair one to use. It's
a heavily mixed exposure. You have to look at the relatively simple
exposures.

I gave you the two cleanest examples because they are well-de-
fined. I'm sorry, but I just have to defer to the scientific litera-
tureand I think I sent to attorney Lamson copies of the relevant
data which I presented before a Senate committee on this issue,
which essentially show a striking gradient between chrysotile and
other forms of asbestos with respect to mesothelioma.

The other point I would just like to make before coming back to
your scarring issue is that mesothelioma is still rare in the chryso-
tile group, extremely rare, and that is still at concentrations way
over the level that is so far engaged. I wouldn't want to start the
fight on whether it is chrysotile or tremolite when, in fact, the mix-
ture is both, except I would point out there ari.1 ample studies in
other mining situations, such as talc and vermiculite and so on, in
which tremolite is clearly the culprit for mesothelioinas.

Now, corning back to this issue of fibrosis, Dr. Levin has .T.iite
properly pointed out that asbestosis is scarring of the lung and
pleura disease is a separate entity. I would respectfully dissent
f'rom his view that scarring of the lining membrane, per se, has a
greatly significant prognostic import. In other words, I don't think
you can predict lung cancers from that, and I personally believe,
though he may not agree, that that statement is valid and there is
am le literature.

Second, I'm a little edgy about reports that end up in the New
Yorkthat come out in a nonpeer review journal. Maybe it s been
already submitted and accepted. If it has, this comment is no
longer relevant.
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Mr. LEVIN. It's been submitted and is under review.
Mr. GEE. And that journal being?
Mr, LEVIN. The American Journal of Industrial Medicine.
Mr. Gsx. That journal is, of course, edited largely by your own

group.
Mr. LUKEN. I'm &My. I didn't hear that, Dr. Gee.
Mr. GEE. That printet: journal is largely edited by your own

group.
Mr. LEVIN. It received an award for a scientific journal last year

in national competition.
Mr. GEE. Okay. Let's leave it at that.
Mr. LUKEN. From whom?
Mr. LEVIN. I think a national publications review committee. It's

a very well-respected journal and certainly incorporates the scien-
tific production from others outside of our own laboratory, even
some from Yale as I recall.

Mr. GEE. Oh, it would, and it does. It does have some good stuff
in it. But I th:nk, if I were in your position, I would send it to a
journal that would give you an independent review, precisely be-
cause of the concerns that this raises. Anyway, I'm just pointing it
out.

The issue here is an important une. Aside from the prognostic
value, I have actually seen a copy of your report and, in fact, have
it with me. Maybe I could ask you a courlc of questions--

Mr. LUKEN. Which report now are we talking about?
Mr. GEE. This is the one I believe you sent to New York, which

you said was in the public domain.
Mr. LEVIN. Yes, if we're talking about the New York City school

custodian report.
Mr. LUKEN. Is there a possibility that someone has it en hand

today?
Mr. GEE. Yes.
Mr, LUKEN. In your hand?
Mr. GEE. No, but I can get it. I can get it before the end of the

hearing, sir. I think it can. I have certainly seen it, but I'm not ab-
solutely certain I brought it with me.

Mr. LUKEN. I'm inclined to agree wit; Dr. Levin, from what I've
heard about it. It has been commented upon generally, but it is elu-
sive as far t v.-. tying it down.

Mr. GEE. Well, he can speak to that.
I believe, if I read it correctly, what you're calling lung scarring

is one zero and zero one, and I'll explain that--
Mr. LEVIN. That's absolutely incorrect,
Mr. GEE. All right. Could you tell me those numbers?
Mr. LEVIN. Our criterion for abnormality, since we followed the

guidelines of the ILO's classification scheme, is one zero or greater.
Any film read as 0/1 is considered a normal x-ray.

Mr. LUKEN. I think I will--
Mr. LEVIN. This is a technical discussion and I'm sorry we're--
Mr. LUKEN. I think I will have to rule that any further questions

be directed to the Chair.
Mr. GEE. I beg your pardon, your Honor.
Mr, LUKEN. I said any further. There's no reason to--
Mr. GEE. Okay.
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Mr. LUKEN. I Call see where we may get a little bit too cantan-
ker )us, even.

Mr. GEE. Well, I thought I was being polite.
Mr. LUKEN. You were, up to that point. But I can see where it

may lead.
Mr. GEE. Yes. There's 80 miles difference.
All right He has answered the question. Thtft means that I

would attach somewhat more weight to it than I would on the basis
of what I think I've seen. I'm just a little edgy about solely this
report as it now stands, as far as I can see it. I need to see more of
those films to have a personal opinion on it. But a lot of the num-
bers are this one zero.

If I might explain, the one zero simply says I look at this x-ray
and I think it's just abnormal, and that's what one means, and
zero, I look at it again, and I'm not so sure. You turn it the other
way around and you say well, I think it's normal but I'm not quite
sure. There's a lot of that kit of reading involved. Dr. Levin
should speak to that. I can't. I haven't seen his x-rays and he has.

The second point I would like to make is I think we need more
verification of this in terms of quantity. Third, I basically agree
with him, nonetheless, that there is a risk to workers in this situa-
tion. I believe he specified this. What I'm concerned about is blow-
ing this risk up into a situation in which we're dealing with the
general residents of a buildint

Mr. LUKEN. General what!
Mr. GEE. The general residents in the building, as opposed to

workers.
I should say that one of the bills that I had the pleasure of spon-

soring, or at least cosponsoring, have been a number of acts in the
State of Connecticut, one of which involved the right to know. It
mean that asbestos workers were certainly supposed to know they
were handling it. Once you know, you're in a lot better position
than otherwise. So we share some of these concerns. So, although it
may look as we're being impolite, there is actually a good deal of
common ground in terms of worker protection.

Mr. LUKF.N. I believe Dr. Levin said that Canadian miners who
are exposed only to the chrysotile contact mesotheliorna. Are you
aware?

Mr. GEE. I am, indeed, aware of that.
Mr. LUKEN. What comment would you have on that statement?
Mr. Gbox. I think there are three comments to make. The first

one is that the number that was actually produced in the letter to
Science, that responded to our article, I believe used the number
67. I am informed by Canadiansand I have letters, if you wish
that that number is not correct. It's at least half that.

Second, I am quite prepared to believe there are such mesothelio-
mas aside from the observations because there is tremolite there.

Mr. LUKEN. You would agree that they were exposed only tothe
Mr. GEE. Well, it's a chrysotile mixture, which includes--
Mr. LUKEN. There is a mixture.
Mr. GE.E. There is I percent tremolite in much of that.
The point I really want to make, though, is here is almost the

w.)rld's biggest hole, with the world's biggest asbestos mine, for
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almost the world's longest time, and you can come up with 30 me-
sotheliomas. Are you going to extrapolate that to a set of buildings
with infinitely less fiber count levels and make some argument
from it? I'm a little perplexed why, even accepting the corrected
numbers, which may be argued about, that that becomes such a
strong point.

In any event, the way to resolve that issue is to determine to
what extend the tremolite is airborne in buildings, and that needs
to be done.

Mr. LUKEN. I believe you made the comment that mesothelioma
is rare in a chrysotile environment?

Mr. G. I did make that comment and I think it's correct.
Mr. LUKEN. Do you want to discuss any of these points, Dr.

Levin?
Mr. LEVIN. A couple of those points, yes.
No. 1, the presence of the tremolite at 1 percent in Canadian

chrysotile that's produced for commercial purposes may or may not
be playing a role in the development of mesotheliomas that are
seen. I do think it is something of a moot point to the extent that
all the chrysotile contains tremolite. We're not going to be able to
know whether the chrysotile acting alone is, in fact, contributing to
the risk of mesothelioma or not. There are some recent Japanese
studies, both animal data as well as human studies, which have
shown that some chrysotile coming from Canada is tremolite-free
and yet mesotheliomas have been seen. Certainly experimental
work with standard chrysotile specimens which have been looked
for, mineralogically, for the presence of tremolite and it has not
been found to be present. Those samples, when introduced by inha-
lation into laboratory animals, definitely induce mesotheliomas at
the same rate as any other fiber type somewhat more potent than
others.

Let's talk for a moment, though, about the use of chrysotile com-
mercially. When one mines chrysotile, the fibers remain bundled
into relatively thick bundles. When the material is then processed
and used in place as insulation material in other settings, those
thicker bundles are fragmented into tinier fibrils. This is well rec-
ognized and it can be demonstrated with electron microscopy. The
use of these materials in buildings, the disturbance of materials
that are already in place, in fact, are much more likely to fragment
the chrysotile into a dimension, into physical properties, that make
it much more cancer-producing than the original mined ore. This is
again something that is fairly widely accepted as to what happens
to chrysotile when it is in use.

There is very little debate over-whether chrysotile can induce
lung cancer. To say that the lung cancer burden is virtually all at-
tributable to smoking I think begs the question. Asbestos exposure,
in and of itself, raises the risk of lung cancer approximately five-
fold in the insulators that were studied, and that was a limited
population of nonsmokers because most blue collar workers
rnoked. We have very few data from human populations to answer
+he question: how much increase in lung cancer occurs from asbes-
tos alone independent of smoking? But the several studies that
have been done show that asbestos, in and of itself, without ciga-
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Tette smoking, can markedly increase the risk of lung ap-
proximately fivefold in other studies as well.

The laboratory animals that have been exposed by inh Alation to
all forms of asbestos develop a markedly increased rate of lung
cancer, and we don't have any information to indicate that they're
smokers.

I think to exonerate chrysotile as a public health hazard, which
is what I think the Science article goes toward, sows confusion
among those who have to make deciGions about what to do in build-
ings today. We see evidence of that already. The consequence of the
quotation from Dr. Gee in the news, and the way the media picked
up the Science article's implications, gave pause to building
owners, gave pause to school administrationsdo we really have to
worry about this material at all.

I can tell you that the custodians in New York City still have not
received a level of training that would enable them to recognize as-
bestos in place and to work with this material safely so that they
protect their own health and protect the health of the schoolchil-
dren and the teachers in those louildings. We know this because the
head of the custodian union's health and safety department said as
much only several days ago. They still have not implemented the
right-to-know law so that the workers are informed about what's in
place and how to work with it.

To say that we know how to protect workers, we know the conse-
quence of exposure to workers, we know how to protect them, I
think very severely begs the question; that is, how can we develop
the kind of training programs that will, in fact, protect them in
building after building, where small renovation jobs are done,
small repair jobs are done.

We do have some difficulty monitoring abatement activities. We
don't do such a wonderful job of that. But at least those jobs have
to be registered with local governments. They have to be monitored
by an onsite inspector. The small job with the disturbance of mate-
rials in place that occurs in building after building, school after
school, are not monitored. The repairs of pipes, the repairs of boil-
ers, the repairs of lighting fixtures, are not monitored by any in-
spector. We know that our custodians are not being trained ade-
quately to protect themselves and protect the children. Therefore, I
have very grave concern about the public health consequences of
just leaving these materials alone.

Mr. LtnIxasT. We've all got concern. What do we do about it? What
are we doing about it under AHERA? Is there any adequate re-
sponse under AHERA at the present time?

Mr. LEVIN. Adequate from a public health point of view? I would
say not yet. Does it go in the direction of an adequate response? I
think we are ahead of where we were before the AHERA act was
passed.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, what about the specific response that's going
on out there? Do you believeand I believe you said notthat all
asbestos should be removed?

Mr. Lirmr. Not necessarily. No, I believe asbestos need not be re-
moved if it's in good condition---

Mr. Luxim. If it is not removed, then aren't those workers inevi-
tably going to be exposed somewhere down the line?
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Mr. LEVIN. If renovation or repair or demolition is going to
occur, there's the potential for exposure, and before those activities
can occur.

Mr. LUKEN. But even before repair. What about just normal
maintenance repair?

Mr. LEVIN. If normal maintenance repair is going to disturb the
material in place, it's going to have to be removed; that's absolute-
ly correct.

Mr. LUKEN. You say it's not monitored, so the exposure is going
to take place if it's not removed, isn't it?

Mr. LEVIN. You're forcing me into my true position, which is
that since all buildings have a lifespan, they are not eternally ex-
istent. The question of whether asbestos is intact or to be disturbed
is a dynamic situation and not a static condition. In fact, ultimate-
ly all asbestos is going to have to be removed.

Mr. LUKEN. That's what I said, ves. Go ahead.
Mr. LEVIN. Ultimately, all asbestos is going to have to be re-

moved, because there ultimately will have to be repair, renovation
or demolition.

Mr. LUKEN. Now you're getting further away from the question.
Come back a ways. What arc we going to do now?

Mr. LEVIN. At this point, asbestos that's in place has to be sur-
veyed, has to be assessed for its current condition, and where there
is opportunity for any human exposure to dust, ifs going to have to
be removed or enclosed in a sufficient enclosure so that no disturb-
ance can occur.

Mr. LUKEN. As long as we leave it there, workers are going to be
exposed.

Mr. LEVIN. There's the potential for that.
Mr. LUKEN. The workers are going to be exposed down the line,

if the building is destroyed tomorrow.
Mr. LEVIN. Before it's destroyed, hopefully someone will remove

the asbestos so that it doesn't represent a source of contamination
for those near the building or at some distance.

Mr. LUKEN. There doesn't seem to be any satisfactory solution, or
at least not one that covers 100 percent or anywhere near 100 per-
cent protection. What if we remove it? Aren't we then stirring it
up?

Mr. LEVIN. There's no question that we're stirring it up.
New Jersey has established a track record on this and has been

looking at the results of abatement projects that have been carried
out. The great majority of those projects have, in fact, been done
safely the first time around, have left asbestos levels in schools
below those that were present prior to the time that the abatement
occurred. It is certainly possible to do thiE work and--

Mr. LUKEN. Does it make any sense to only monitor after you
take it out?

Mr. LEVIN. After you take it out?
Mr. LUKEN. We don't monitor beforehand, do we, or if we do, we

don't use it as a criterion for whether or not we take it out.
Mr. LEVIN. And properly should not use that as a criterion be-

cause it's exactly the occasional--
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Mr. LUKEN. Well, that's what you say, but you only have your
argument from authority to back that up. What do you back it up
with other than you say so?

Mr. LEVIN. Which argument is that, sir?
Mr. LUNEN. The argument you just made, that we shouldn't take

it out.
Mr. LEVIN. No, no. You recall that you forced me into my true

position.
Mr. LUKEN. Only by bringing out the facts.
Mr. LEVIN. Yes. You see, in fact--
Mr. LUKEN. I didn't slant the facts any, die I?
Mr. LEVIN. No. In fact, what I think building owners are doing

ultimately is voting with their feet on this matter. Most of them
recognize that their buildings will ultimately require renovation,
repair activities, and that these materials will be disturbed, and
are saying it costs me less to remove the material row than to es-
tablish an operations and maintenance program which ultimately
down the road will only result in removal of these materials and
I'm going to do it now. I think that has been the practice in the
majority of circumstances.

But, as I said, it's predominantly an economic decision. There are
ways to enclose asbestos, not to encapsulate it but to enclose it, so
that there's no human contact, at least for a period of time. That is
an interim measure only because, in fact, these buildings have a
finite lifespan and ultimately the material will have to be removed.

Mr. LUKEN. All right. We're going to have to move along.
But, enclose and encapsulate, words of art, huh?
Mr. LEVIN. Well, encapsulate usually means you're spraying a

sealing material--
Mr. LUKEN. You know, we're getting technical. I hate for ome-

body to say it "usually" means.
Mr. LEVIN. Okay. Well, in fact, encapsulation means--
Mr. LUKEN. Obviously, they're not words of art if it only is "usu-

ally".
Mr. LEVIN. I'll be more precise.
Encapsulation means sealing off the exposed asbestos surfa,:e

with a material that Nnetrates into the asbestos surface, trying to
retain fiber from shedcling.

Mr. LUKEN. There's a difference in degree, to enclose or encapsu-
late,

Mr. LEVIN. Enclosure usually means building an actual, physical
enclosure around the asbestos itself, which, in fact, can prevent
contact with that material, where sealant materials don't work so
well.

Mr. LUKEN. It's temporary?
Mr. LEVIN. It's temporary to the extent that ultimately those en-

closures will have to be broken down if maintenance activities or
demolition is required.

Mr. LUKEN. We are going to have to move along to the other
panel, but, Dr. Gee, I wonder if there's anything that's been said in
the last couple of minutes that you would like to shed any light on?

Mr. GEE. Very quickly. I think your questions are very pertinent
and both of us would have trouble writing good regulations. On the
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one occasion where I tried to help the DEP in Connecticut write
regulations, I realize how hard this is.

&cond, I would like to stress that it is entirely proper and easy
to get people to take seriously the training of workers. If that is
done, then I would suggest to you that the airborne data is crucial.

Mr. LUKEN. I don't want to insult anybody, but I've never tried
to train a janitor--

Mr. GEE. I'm not trying to train a janitor. I'm trying to tell him
how to deal with asbestos.

Mr. LUKEN. You say train workers, don't you? Aren't you talking
about janitors?

Mr. G. Well, I think I know what you're saying, but I'm trying
to say and avoid what I think you may be implying, that you're
training him to deal with asbestos, and if you can't, you get some-
body else to do it. Janitors aren't really the people. It's mainly
people involved with structural building changes, things like boil-
ers and pipes and insulation and things above the ceiling, rather
than just the janitor, quite frankly.

Mr. LUKEN. Well, if we're talking about schools, we must be talk-
ing about a lot of janitors.

Mr. G. Yes, but I'm not sure---
Mr. LUKEN. That's what we're talking about here.
Mr. G. Well, I'm not sure that the janitors is really where the

risk is. I think it's people with more specialized skills.
Mr. LUKEN. Well, we've been talking about janitors and mainte-

nance people being those at risk.
Mr. GEE. I don't want to say never.
Mr. LUKEN. You can't say that they're not.
Mr. GEE. I think they're a very small risk, sir.
Mr. LUKEN. I understand your answer.
Do you want to try the last word?
Mr. LEVIN. If I'm granted the opportunity.
I think the point with regard to janitors is that they are very

often the personnel who clean up---
Mr. LUKEN. Incidentally, I don't use janitor in a denigrating

sense, in that a janitor is a person of low skill. I am bringing it up
to indicate a person who has variegated duties and is dealing in sit-
uations, a kaleidoscope of situations, where the training manual is
going to be challengmg to any of us rocket scientists or whatever
we are here. I don't think any of us could do the job any better.

But it seems to me, putting myself in the position of those people
who come in with the spacesuits and all of the equipment and so
on, they can be trained because they're doing the same thing over
and over again, The janitor is doing a thousand different things in
a thousand different circumstances. The rules are going to be, first
of all, just like the problem we have all the time in passing laws,
laws that are universal that apply to a particular situation. A jani-
tor is going to have a hell of a time figuring out how to apply those
rules to the variable situations that he or she runs into.

Mr. LEvm. You said eloquently what I was about to say. I think
the janitorial staff in any building, in fact, is at risk because of
cleanup after the maintenance activities of other workers. Their
tasks are very varied and they will not be trained to be genuine
asbestos specialists, that their exposures will be ongoing, unfortu-
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nately, and will yield disease for decades to come unless we protect
against those exposures now.

Mr. Ltacm. Well, limitations of time prohibit us from going fur-
ther into it. I would enjoy going into it for a much longer time, but
I'm not sure much of the audience would enjoy it. You have been
very helpful and very patient, very forthcoming, both of you. I can
say that without any caveat at all. If there's anything further you
want to submit, the record will be held open for 30 days.

I thank you, Dr. Gee, and Dr. Levin.
Mr. G. Thank you for allowing us to come.
Mr. LEVIN. Thank you.
Mr. LUKEN. The rest of the witnesses, please come forward. Any-

body who thinks they qualify as a witness, please come forward.
All of you, Ms. West, Mr. Billirakis, Mr. August, Mr. Veith and

Ms. Herber, we have your testimony which, without objection, will
be received into the record of the subcommittee. Each of you please
try to adhere to the 5 minute rule in explaining your position. We
will start off with you in the center, Ms. Herber.

STATEMENTS OF KATHARINE L. HERBER, COUNSEL, NATIONAL
SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION; MICHAEL BILLIRAKIS, VICE
PRESIDENT, 01110 EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, ON BEHALF OF
THE NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION, ACCOMPANIED BY
JOEL PACKER, LEGISLATIVE SPECIALIST, NEA; JAMES D.
AUGUST, OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY SPECIALIST.
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL
EMPLOYEES; SARAH WEST, VIRGINIA PTA STATE LEGISLATIVE
CHAIR, ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL PARENT-TEACHER AS-
SOCIATION; AND C. GREGORY VEITH, MANAGER, FACILITIES
SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION. ARCHDIOCESE OF CHICAGO,
ON BEHALF OF THE COUNCIL FOR AMERICAN PRIVATE EDU-
CATION

Ms. HERBER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for inviting us to testify
here today. The National School Boards Association is very pleased
to be here.

Mr. LUKEN. Yes. Introduce yourself, if you don't mind, who you
represent, and whatever you want to say that's pertinent.

Ms. HERBER. Okay. I'm Kate Herber, the legislative counsel at
the National School Boards Association. We represent approxi-
mately 95,000 local school board members who are responsible for
the governance and operation of the local public school systems.

There are approximately 33,000 local education agencies, public
and private, in the United States which contain no less than 96,000
school buildings. Following passage of AHERA, each LEA was re-
quired to inspect each school building under its jurisdiction for the
presence of asbestos, develop a management plan for each school
building which was found to contain asbestos materials, and imple-
ment the management plan no later than July 9, 1989.

The Federal law requires that LEA's use EPA accredited inspec-
tors, laboratories, management planners and asbestos contractors.
State law generally requires that these individuals be licensed,
bonded and insured.

37-486 - 91 - 5
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EPA originally estimated the total cost of LEA compliance with
AHERA to be approximately $3 billion. Although public LFA's con-
sistently maintain that the EPA estimate was understated, data in
support of that position was unavailable until 1989, when NSBA
conducted a surva:. of 671 of the 17,000 local public schools. The
NSBA survey results revealed that by April I. of this year, 671
public LEA's would have expended nearly one-sixth, over $464 mil-
lion, of the total amount EPA estimated AHERA compliance would
cost all 33,000 public and private LEA's over the lifetime of asbes-
tos in school buildings. I might add that that figure is only the cost
of inspections, management plans, and any encapsulation, contain-
ment or abatement work and does not include the cost of replacing
asbestos that was used as an insulator.

Based on these initial survey results, NSBA believes that it is
not unreasonable to assume that the actual cost of public LEA's
only compliance with AHERA will exceed $6 billion.

Despite the significant cost of AHERA compliance, the only Fed-
eral money available to LEA's is that available to the Asbestos
School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984. ASHAA, as you know, insti-
tuted a program under which both public and private LEA's may
apply for a loan and/or grant to supplement the cost of activities
undertaken in response to the presence of asbestos in school build-
ings. During the period 1985 through 1988, 1,819 LEA'*; submitted
loan and/or grant applications to EPA covering 12,706 asbestos
abatement projects, totaling $929 million. Of those applications,
EPA awarded $157 million, or less than 17 percent of the total
costs requested, to only 642 LEA's.

In 1986, AHERA amended ASHAA to provide for the establish-
ment of an asbestos trust fund to provide additional financial re-
sources to needy schools. The amendment authorized Congress to
appropriate $25 million a year in fiscal years 1987 through 1990 to
the trust fund and required that all loan repayments would be paid
into that account. However, Congress has never appropriated any
money to the trust fund and, although loan repayments have re-
suited in a trust fund balance of $8 million, such funds have never
been made available to needy schools.

Following enactment of AHERA, LEA's were forced to immedi-
ately undertake long-term, complex and expensive compliance ac-
tivities which were in addition to and not in substitution for any
other activity LEA's are required by law to undertake or services
they are required by law to provide. In most instances, the absence
of adequate State or Federal financial assistance has required these
agencies to cut education programming in order to pay the cost of
AHERA compliance. Moreover, many LEA's anticipate that further
reductions in basic education services will be required to meet the
cost of new rules governing reroofing and roofing repair projects.

For instance, the Broward County, FL, School Board originally
estimated the total cost of their asbestos program to be $24 million.
Nevertheless, in the wake of these new rules governing roofing
projects, they have been advised that they can expect the actual
cost of their program to increase from between $10 to $20 million
over the next several years.

School districts across the country are facing inordinate demands
on limited taxpayer resources. In large measure, many of those de-
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mands are the result of Federal laws which impose significant new
and costly requirements on schoolsunrelated, I might add, to edu-
cationbut which provide no funds for implementation, such as
the financial responsibility requirements for leaking underground
petroleum storage tanks or hazardous waste disposal. In addition,
other Federal laws may abrogate the ability of local public school
districts to impose and collect taxes. For instance, the Financial In-
stitutions Recovery and Reform Act which, with respect to proper-
ty held by the FDIC or RTC, restricts the taxing authority of local
school districts. The State of Texas currently expects to lose $200
million in real property taxes to fund education in fiscal year 1990-
91.

School board members want to assure that students, teachers
and other building occupants enjoy a safe and hazard-free environ-
ment. However, due to a lack of Federal financial assistance, school
board members are in the unenviable position of being forced to
provide that safe environment at the expense of educating our stu-
dents. Therefore, we request that Congress iecognize both its
unmet and continuing obligation by reauthorization of ASHAA to
increase the loan and grant program to $1 billiondon't faint
when I say thatto immediately direct that amounts held in the
trust fund account be made available to needy LEA's, and provide
that in future years the trust fund account balance is available to
needy LEA's on an annual basis.

I know that time is short here today and, therefore, I will close
by thanking you for having us testify. We did raise other issues in
our written testimony, but I will let that stand on its own merits.

Thank you very much.
[The prepared statemer md attachment of Ms. Herber follow]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF KATHA. tE L. HERBER, LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL, NATIONAL
SCHOOl BOARDS ASSOCIATION

The National School Boards Association [NSBAI, is pleased to have this opportuni-
ty to testify before the House Subcommittee on Transportation and Hazardous Ma-
terials on implementation of the asbestos abatement program in schools and reau-
thorization of the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984.

NSBA is the only major education organization representing the over 95,000 local-
ly elected and appointed school board members across the nation, Currently mark-
ing its fiftieth year of service, NSBA is a federation of State school board associa-
tions with direct local school board affiliates, constituted to strengthen local lay con-
trol of education and to work for improvement of education. Nationwide, local
school board members are poRically accountable to their constituents for the pru-
dent operation and fiscal management of the local school districts they serve. As
government officials, school board members are uniquely positioned to judge Feder-
al legislative programs purely from the standpoint of public education, without con-
sideration to their personal professional interest.

There are approximately 33,000 local education agencies [LEA's] in the United
States which contain no less than 96,000 school buildings. Following passage of the
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act [AIIERA], each LEA was required to in-
speet each school building under its jurisdiction for the presence of asbestos, develop
a management plan for each school building which was found to contain asbestos
containing materials, and implement the management plan no later than July 9,
1989. Moreover, each step in the AHERA process requires that LEA's use inspec-
tors, management planners and asbestos workers who are accredited by the Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency [EPA].

EPA originally estimated the total cost of LEA compliance with AHERA to be ap-
proximately $3 billion. Although public school districts consistently maintained that
the EPA estimate was understatecl, data in support of that position was unavailable
until 1989, when NSIM conducted a survey of 671 of the 17,900 public LEA's. The
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NSBA survey results revealed that by April 1, 1990, 671 public LEA's would have
expended nearly one-sixth (over $464 million) of the total amount EPA estimated
AIR'RA compliance would cost all LEA's over the lifetime of asbestos in school
buildings. Based on the initial survey resulta, NSBA believes that it is not unreason-
able to assume that the actual coet of public school district (only) compliance with
AHERA will exceed $6 billion over the lifetime of asbestos in school buildings.

Despite the significant cost of AHERA compliance, the only Federal money avail-
able to LEA's, who must meet the stringent Federal standards, is that available
through the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act of 1984 IASHAA]. ASHAA in-
stituted a program under which both public and private local education agencies
[LEA's] may apply for a loan and/or grant to supplement the oast of activities un-
dertaken in response to the presence of asbestos in school buildings. During the
period 1985 through 1988, 1,819 LEA's submitted loan and/or grant applications to
the Environmental Protection Agency [F2A] covering 12,706 asbestos abatement
projects totalling $929 million. Of those applications, EPA awarded $157 million (or
17 percent of the total costs requested) to 642 LEA's.

In 1986, the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act [AHERN amended
ASHAA to provide for the establishment of an asbestos trust fund to provide addi-
tional financial resources to needy schools. The amendment authorized Congress to
appropriate $25 million a year in fiscal years 1987 through 1990 to the Trust Fund
and required that all loan repayments would be paid into the Trust Fund account.
However, Congress has never appropriated any money to the Trust Fund, More(,ver.
although loan repayments have resulted in a Trust Fund balance of approximately
$8 million (A/0 June 1989), such funds have not been made available to needy
schools.

Following enactment of AHERA, LEA's were forced to immediately undertake
complex and expensive compliance activities which were in addition to, and not in
substitution for, any other activity LEA's are required by law to undertake (or serv-
ices LEA's are required by law to provide). In most instances, the absence of ade-
quate State or Federal financial assistance has required LEA's to cut education pro-
gramming in order to ray the cost of AHERA compliance. Moreover, many LEA's
anticipate that further reductions in basic education services will be required to
meet the cost of new rules governing reroofing and roofing repair projects.

As a result of AHERA, school districts across the country are facing inordinate
demands on limited fmancial resources. In large measure, many of those demands
are the result of Federal laws which impose significant new requirements on LEA's,
but which provide no funds for implementation (i.e., financial responsibility require-
ments for leaking underground petroleum storage tanks or Hazardous waste dispos-
al). School board members want to assure that our students and teachers enjoy a
safe and hazard-free environment. However, due to a lack of Federal funding, school
board members are in the unenviable position of being forced to provide that safe
environment at the expense of education.

When ASHAA was enacted into law, the projected cost of the asbestos in schools
program was $3 billion. Since that time, NSBA has learned that the cost of compli-
ance for public LEA's alone is at least double that amount. Nevertheless, the
ASHAA loan and grant program has never received full funding and monies held in
the asbestos trust fund have never been released. Therefore, NSBA urges Congress
to recognize both its unmet and continuing obligation to LEA's by enactment of leg-
islation to: (1) reauthorize the ASHAA loan and grant program at $1 billion; (2) im-
mediately direct that amounts held in the Trust Fund account be made available to
needy school districts; and (3) provide that in future years the Trust Fund account
balance is available to needy school districts on an annual basis.

In September, the Inspector General for Audit released a Report of Audit on the
Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act (Audit Report No. EIF,18-03 0161-9100486,
September 20, 1989). NSBA urges Congress to include provisions to implement cer-
tain recommendations contained in the report (see Attachment) in the bill to reau-
thorize ASHAA. Specifically, NSBA urges Congress to include in a final bill provi-
sions which direct EPA to: (1) solicit and utilize applications on an annual basis,
notwithstanding the fact that the Agency has not sought funding of the ASHAA
loan and grant program in its budget request; (2) require that repayments for reim-
bursement projects commence no later than 6 months following the final award pay-
ment to the LEA; and 3) require that repayments for work-in-progress [WIPJ
projects commence no later than 6 months from the date work is completed and 90
percent of the award has been paid to the LEA.

NSBA believes that inclusion of these provisions in a final bill is necessary to
ensure that LEA's do not encounter unnecessary delays in receiving ASHAA fund-
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ing, and to assure that the maximum amount of Federal resources are avaiiable to
needy schools.

Over the past year, the news media has published reports which sti:eest that the
type of asbestos commonly found in school buildings does not pose a risk to human
health. In many instances these reports are attributable to publication of a recent
study undertaken by a group of scientists. Several members of the group have
served as expert witnesses for defendant asbestos manufacturers in cases arising out
of the presence of asbestos in buildings. In response to these reports (and in the ab-
sence of a new study which contradicts the study on which such reports are based)
local taxpayers have begun to question the wisdom and neceasity of their school dis-
trict spending millions of dollars to comply with AHERA.

NSBA believes that Congress must assume a leadership role in responding to the
confusion and alarm generated by the recent study by authorizing a grunt of
$500,000 to fund an objective international study of the asbestos health hazard. In
that regard, to preserve the integrity and reliability of the Congressionally author-
ized study, NSBA believes that no individual should be allowed to participate in the
study if (sihe has at any time appeared as an expert witness for either a plaintiff or
a defendant in a case ariMny out of the presence of asbestos in buildings.

Since enactment of AHEM, the EPA Office of Toxic Substances has provided an
invaluable service to LEA's through the development of numerous publications de-
signed to apprise building occupants of the heahh hazards of asbestos and LEA's of
the many activities they must undertake to comply with AHERA. EPA professional
staff in both Washington, D.C. and EPA regional offices have been consistent in
their willingness to assist LEA compliance with AHERA through participation in
seminars and conferences for school board members, teachers. parents, and facility
managers. Moreover, many of the activities undertaken by the Office of Toxic Sub-
stances have served as models to other offices within EPA (i.e., Office of Drinking
Water) as they attempt to implement environmental laws which apply to LEA's and
other units of local government.

NSBA believes that the success of school district compliance with AIIERA will, in
large measure, depend on the continued availability of assistance from the Office of
Toxic Substances. Because that is so, NSBA urges that reauthorization of ASHAA
include funding adequate to ensure that the current level of EPA assistance to
LEA's is continued without interruption.

EPA Raeowr OF AUDIT ON THE ASBESTOS SCHOOL HAZARD ABATEMENT Acr ASHAA),
AUDIT REPORT No. E1E18-03-0161-9100486, Sem:tame 20, 1989

FINDINGs AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. EPA NEEDS TO AWARD ABHAA FUNDS MORE EFFECTIVELY

EPA's implementation of the application process in the ASHAA program has de-
creased the effective utilization of over $34 million in ASHAA funds, During fiscal
years 1987 and 1988 EPA did not allow sufficient time to solicit new applications
prior to awarding ASHAA funds. Instead, EPA utilized applications on hand for
projects which were not significant enough to receive funding in the prior year.
Many of these projects were boiler rooms with minor damage instead of classrooms
with major damage and significantly more exposure hours. EPA could have used
the funds more effectively if awards were made using data in the new applications.
By funding new applications, we estimate that an additional 2 million exposure
hours would have been abated on projects with major damage.

The change in the application process was made necessary by EPA not allowing
sufficient time to solicit new applications within the Congressional deadlines for
awarding the funds. The intent of the Congressional deadlines was to ensure funds
are awarded timely so that LEA's can begin work in the summer months. Congress
has allowed ample time for new applications in the deadlines provided EPA initiates
the award cycle in a timely manner. However, EPA has routinely resisted the
ASHAA program by not seeking funding for this program in its budget request to
Congress. The Agency's policy not to participate in the ASHAA program has in the
past resulted in Congress approving a joint resolution forcing the Agency to spend
the ASHAA funds. This discord between the Agency and Congress concerning the
continuance of this program has delayed the release of ASHAA funds until well into
the fiscal year. To compensate for the funding delays. EPA staff had to expedite the
application process by using previous year applications to award ASHA.A funds.
These old applications contained many low priority projects, and in part, because of
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the low priority, were not funded in the previous year. The funding of old applica-
tions by EPA was not the most effective use of ASHAA funds.

The delay in recebting ASHAA funding, combined with the Congressional dead-
lines, makes it extremely difficult for the Hazard Abatement Assistance Branch
[HAAB] to properly administer the ASHAA program. HAAB personnel cannot
ensure the funds are used most effectively when the funds do not become available
to the Agency until 1 month before the Congressional deadline to award these funds
elapses. EPA has the fiscal responsibility to ensure ASHAA funds are used effective-
ly. We recommend that the Agency solicit and utilize applications on an annual
basis and in a timely manner prior to awarding ASHAA funds for the fiscal year. If
HAAB cannot obtain new applications within the Congressional deadlines, the
Agency should request a time extension from Congress.

Prior to awarding loans and grants, each LEA's application is ranked by EPA in
accordance with the guidance in the act. The applications are evaluated based on
the physical characteristics of the asbestos hazard in the school. Several key indica-
tors are included in this hazard categorization and ranking; such as, degree of
damage (major or minor), exposure (direct or through an air plenum) and exposure
hours (weekly exposure hours). Those schools with severely damaged asbestos are
ranked in Category I and schools with minor damage are ranked in Category II. The
exposure hour total is derived for a project area by multiplying the number of
people (students or employees) exposed with the amount ofhours exed each week
(persons X hours/day X days/week). For example, a classroom ud for five 1-hour
classes of 30 students 5 days a week has an average weekly exposure hour total of
750 130 students X 5 classes X 5 days). The combination of damage and the exposure
hours results in a unique ordering or listing of all projects, known as the National
Hazard Ranking iNH12).

Of the two project characteristics (damage and exposure hours), damage is more
important because EPA ranks projects with major damage and one exposure hour
higher than a project with minor damage and 100,000 exposure hours. Projects with
major damage include asbestos containing material that is dislodged, hanging or
missing, while projects with minor damage only require evidence of some physical
contact not severe enough to dislodge portions of the asbestos containing material.
The effect of the classification of either major (Category I) or minor (Category II)
damage can be substantial because EPA does not consider the square footage of the
damaged area. To illustrate the difference, one project with major damage could in-
clude dislodged asbestos in several classrooms exposing thousands of schoolchildren
while another project with minor damage may include a boiler room with only some
evidence of abrasions on the asbestos material. Accordingly, there is a significant
difference in the health hazard associated with potential release of asbestos fibers
between the two projects. To ensure ASHAA funds are used effectively, the Agency
has to fund the projects of needy I,EA's with the most serious health hazards.

The ASHAA law required that States submit new applications on an annual
basis. This is important because applications need to reflect current and accurate
information on such items as the degree of hazard, costs of abatement and the fi-
nancial condition of the LEA. Al) of these items can change dramatically within a
year, Accordingly, EPA should rank applicants annually to ensure ASIIAA funds
are targeted to the needy LEA's with the most hazardous projects.

Several factors contributed to not soliciting new ASHAA applications. In fiscal
year 1987, Congress directed EPA to accelerate the award process by ensuring
awards are made by April 1, 1987. This would enable school districts to complete
necessary asbestos abatement work prior to the end of the 1987 summer schoolrecess.

While Congress wanted EPA to expedite the award process, EPA requested that
Congress rescind the ASHAA funds in fiscal year 1987 as part of the budget-cutting
effort, The Assistant Administrator of OPTS has stated in written testimony to a
Congressional Subcommittee that: ". . . direct Federal funding of abatement
projects in schools does not represent the most effective use of Federal resources."

However, Congress approved a joint resolution forcing the Agency to spend the
ASHAA funds appropriated for fiscal year 1987. This resolution was not approved
until March 1987 5 months into the fiecal year. Nevertheless, EPA still attempted
to meet the awani deadline of April 1, 1987,

To accommodate the April 1 deadline, EPA decided to have two award cycles in-
stead of one. The first award cycle was for $34.2 million awarded to projects left
over from qualified applications submitted in 1986. This was necessary because new
applications could not have been obtained by the April 1 deadline. However, most of
the projects with major damage and high exposure hours were already funded in
1986. Many of the remaining projects from 1986 consisted of less significant projects
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such as boiler rooms with minimal expcvure hours or minor damage. As a result,
EPA funded a total of 663 projects, of which only 171 or 26 percent had major
damage with over 50 exposure hours per week. We found that 25 percent of the
funded projects were for small areas such as boiler rooms, storage rooms and tun-
nels with exposure hours ranging from only 2 to 20 hours per week.

Subsequent to the first award cycle on April 1, 1987, EPA obtained new applica-
tions for approximately $8 million to be awarded on May 29, 1987. This amount was
set aside to ensure that each State received $250,000 provided the State had enough
qualified projects. In this second round of new applications, projects totalling $94
million qualified for funding based upon EPA's hazard and financial need criteria.
Many of these projects were far more hazardous than the left over projects from
1986. However, EPA only had $8 million remaining in fiscal year 1987 funds. Ap-
proximately $5 million of the $8 million was needed to ensure that each State re-
ceived the minimum of $250,000. Consequently, EPA was only able to fund 66 of
1,769 potential projects. Furthermore, 65 of the 66 projects were funded out of
hazard sequence with over $1 million awarded to projects with minor damage.

The next chart illustrates the positive effects that could have been obtained by
awarding the $34 million toward new applications ranked as category I.

OLD APPLICATIONS VS. NEW APPLICATIONS

knouct (In
mikes c4
**an)

7-

LW"
hours

ACTUAL AWARD 1981 ROUND 1- OLD APPLICATIONS

Category 1 682,843 12
Category 2 1,781,769 22

Total funded category 1 exposure hours . 682,643 34

POTENTIAl. AWARD 1987 ROUND 1 -NEW APRICATIONS

Category 1 ((unded 1987 round 2) 454,308
Category 1 (funded 1988) 2.164,545 23
Category 1 (un(unded 1984) . ' 227,614 4

Total categofy 1 exposure hours... . . 2,846,461 34

Estrulted.--assumug $12 rnallon cakcl abate 682.843 ezposure hows .1 1987 $4 fmnicc mid abate 227,614 evoswe hours t 4/12 X
682.843)

If EPA utilized the $34 million Round One award amount toward the new applica-
tions, the above chart illustrates that EPA could have abated an additional 2.2 mil-
lion exposure hours for projects with major damage (2,846,467-682,84:3). The health
hazard associated with exposure hours from major damage (Category I) is far more
severe than exposure hours from minor damage (Category II). Major damage repre-
sents asbestos containing material that is dislodged, hanging or missing while minor
damage only requires evidence of some physical contact not severe enough to dis-
lodge the asbestos materials,-

A similar situation occurred in fiscal year 1988, when the President did not sign
the Congressional Appropriation language until December 22, 1987. In this appro-
priation, Congress required a March 1, 1988 award date for $23 million in ASHAA
loans and grants. Accordingly, EPA used the fiscal year 1987 priority list, which was
now almost a year old, to satisfy the impending Congressional deadlines. The effect
of using the old listing in fiscal year 1988 was not as significant as in fiscal year
1987, because in fiscal year 1987 only $8 million was awarded to the new applicants.
Consequently, a significant number of major projects remained on the list for fund-
ing in fiscal year 1988. However, we believe that a new round of applications would,
as in the previous rounds, have funded more high priority projects than the left
over projects from fiscal year 1987.
Agrney Reply to 010 Draft Report

OPTS agrees with the 010 that annual solicitation of new school applications is
preferable. However, this has not always been possible, given late appropriations,
the congressional deadlines mandated by the ASHAA appropriation language and
the Federal requirements for application review and approval.

The Agency has made every effort to solicit new applications each }Tar, so far as
funds were provided rind sufficient time was available to accomplish the lengthy ap-
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plication approval, distribution, completion, and review process. In fact, EPA has
used applications which were previously on hand only twice, in 1987 and 1988. In
1987, EPA had about a month and, in 1988, the Agency had approximately 2 months
to make awards, once funds were available.
Auditor's Comments

The Agency has responsibility to ensure ASHAA funding is ured most effectively.
We recognize that the Agency is faced with a number of consuaints in adequately
administering this program. However, when these constraints such as late appro-
priations and Congressional deadlines make it impomible to properly administer the
program, the Agency must not sacrifice t effectiveness of the ASHAA program.
The Arncy must allow the Hazard Abatement Assistance Branch adequate time to
proper y administer the ASHAA p . Adequate time would enable EPA to so-
licit new applications from LEA's ;Ill% most serious and current health hazards.
If adequate time is not available, the Agency should request a time extension from
Congress.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Assistant Administrator for Pesticides and Toxic Sub-

stances solicit and utilize applications on an annual basis and in a timely manner
prior to awarding ASHAA funds for the fiscal year. Whenever possible, EPA should
send out applications early, rather than wait until funding is approved. This would
give EPA additional time if funding was delayed, and would allow the Agency to
comply with Congressional deadlines in awarding the funds.

2. EPA NEEDS TO RNVISE EEPAYMENT TERMS FOR ASHAA LOANS

EPA allows an inordinate amount of time to begin repay ment of some ASHAA
loans. We estimate that by establishing a more reasonabh repayment schedule,
EPA could have returned an additional $1.5 million to the isbestos trust fund by
December 1989 plus an additional $700,000 each year therer fter (See Appendix Ai.
The additional resources could have provided more loans ard grants to other finan-
cially needy LEA's for their asbestos abatement. EPA allows all loan recipients a 2
year grace period after the award date before requesting 'payment of the loan to
begin. However, the work on many of the funded projects ha' already been complet-
ed prior to the award date or was finished within a year of tF iward date. In these
instances, EPA paid 100 percent of the loan within a few mc .ths of the award date.
This allows the LEA use of interest-free money for as long ba 2 years before begin-
ning a loan repayment program. We believe EPA should require LEA's to com-
mence repayment within 6 months after completion of the abatement work. This
modification to the loan agreement will enable EPA to fund additional health haz-
ards at other financially needy LEA's.

According to the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act [ASHAA), all loans
awarded under ASHAA will be interest free and will have a maturity period of 20
years or less. The law also provides that EPA determine the time and amount of
repayments within the 20 year tirneframe. EPA decided that repayments will be
made in equal, seniiannual installments (of not less than $2,500 each) beginning 2
years after the loan offer is made. Repayments will continue in installments for 18
years or until the balance is paid in full. As stipulated in the Asbestos Hazard
Emergency Response Act of 1986, all loan repayments under ASHAA win go to an
asbestos trust fund. This fund will be used by EPA to award additional loans and
grants to financially needy schools.

EPA funds two types of projects. The first type of project is called a "Work-In-
Progress" [WIP] projeet. The WIP project consists of abatement work typically start-
ed after the award date. On WIP projects the LEA requests funds to pay for costs
incurred during work in progress. The second type of project is a "Reimbursement"
project, whereby all the abatement work was complete prior to the award, but after
January 1, 1984. The act provides that EPA cannot award financial assistance for
abatement actions completed prior to January 1, 1984. Accordingly, EPA stated that
any project completed after that date is erwible for reimbursement. On "Reimburse-
ment' projects, EPA policy states that LEA's may receive the entire loan within 90
da s of the award date.

ardless of the type of inoject, EPA allows a 2 year grace period before request-
ing t e first repayment. This grace period coincides with the 2 year project period
which EPA allows for completion of the abatement work. Since many of the LEA's
receive funds as the work transpires, the full amount of the loan is generally not
received until the project is completed. Consequently, EPA decided to postpone the
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first loan repayment for 2 years after the award date, the maximum time for which
the LEA has to complete work on the project.

We obtained a computer listing from the Grants Administration Division contain-
ing the type of funded project (reimbursement or W1P) for all awardees from fiscal
years 1985 through 1988. We reviewed all reimbursement projects from this listing
and any WIP projects with a loan amount greater than $100,000. Between 1985 and
1988. EPA had awarded 599 loans totalling $112 million to various LEA's. Discus-
sion with OPTS personnel revealed that $17 million of the $112 million awarded as
loans was for reimbursement projects and $95 million was for WIP projects.

LEA's received $17 million for reimbursement projecth and had use of interest-
free money for 2 years before any repayment was required. For example, one LEA
was awarded a loan of $349,000 on July 28, 1986 for work completed prior to that
date. The LEA received the $349,000 by Novtrnber 1986. However, this LEA was not
required to make the first of 36 repayments until December 1988, over 2 years later.
The amount of the repayments is $9,700 semiannually over 18 years. Since this LEA
already funded the work without an ASHAA award, we do not believe the LEA
should be given a 2 year grace period before initiating repayment. This same LEA
was awarded another loan for $240,000 in March 19E7, and received the full amount
by June 1987. Again, the LEA was reimbursed for abatement work which was al-
ready completed and paid for by the LEA, however, the repayments on the ASHAA
loan would not begin until June 1989. In both instances, we estimate that, had the
repayments been initiated within 6 months of the award date, the Trust Fund would
have an additional $43,200 for future ASHAA awards.

We believe EPA should revise the repayment terms for applicants with reim-
bursement projects. Repayment should begin on the first semiannual repayment
date following the final payment by EPA on the project, or 2 years, whichever is
earlier. EPA s current repayment schedule requires LEA'S to make repayments
every 6 months, the end of June and December each year. We believe EPA could
initiate repayment sooner under the same semiannual repayment schedule thereby
maintaining the same uniformity and cost effectiveness under the existing payback
process.

In addition to the reimbursement projects, many of the WI? projects were com-
pleted within 6 to 12 months of the award date. This occurred bmause the award
was made in early spring with the work scheduled for that summer. When this hap-
pens, the LEA receives all funding within 6 to 12 months of the award and is not
required to begin repayment until 12 to 18 months later.

or example, one LEA was awarded a loan of $652,823 on March 25, 1987 for
work to be completed after the award date. The LEA completed the work and re-
ceived the $652,823 by March 1988. However, this LEA was not required to make
the first of 36 repayments until June 1989, over 1 year later. The amount of thp
repayments is $18,134 semiannually over 18 years. Since the LEA completed the
work and received all of the award within 1 year, we do not believe the LEA should
have use of the interest free money for an additional year before initiating repay-
ment. We estimate that, had the repayment been initiated within I year of the
award date, the trust fund would have an additional $36,268 for future ASHAA
awards.

We were unable te compute the total number of WIP projects completed within
the first year of the award. However, from our sample of 90 projects, 44 of the
projects (49 percent) were completed early in the 2 year period. These LEA's com-
pleted the work from 7 months to 20 months before the first repayment was due.
EPA should initiate the repayment process promptly after the project is completed.

Furthermore, EPA should not wait 2 years until the awardees receive 100 percent
of the award to require repayment. LEA's receive 90 percent of the award as costs
are incurred, however, EPA retains 10 percent of the award until all of the final
documentation is submitted. We found numerous applicants were not receiving the
full amount of the award for several reasons, many of which were the fault of the
LEA. One such reason was that the applicants were not submitting all the neces-
sary documentation. We believe these applicants should be required to in"-iate re-
payment when the work is completed and 90 percent of the award is paid. This
would allow EPA to accumulate more funds in the asbestos trust fund for future
awards.
Agency Reply to OIG Druft Report

OPTS, acting on the OIG finding, is working with GAD and the Agency's Las
Vegas Financial Management Center [LVFMC] to determine if a revised repayment
system would be feasible and advisable for the 1990 or any future ASHAA award
cycles. We expect a determination on this issue before the 1990 awards.
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While we understand and appreciate the OIG's objectives in this matter, two fac-
tors in particular may mitigate against adopting the OIG recommendation. First,
the period between an ASHA A award to a local education agency (LEA, which is a
public school district or a pri te school) and the date of the first repayment install-
ment, approximately 2 years Later, was established to provide sufficient time for
LEA's to conduct abatement actions or to complete specific financial procedures re-
lated to receiving the award.

Second, a uniform repayment schedule was selected to improve the efficiency ef
EPA's financial monitoring activities. While LVFMC and GAD are unable to pres-
ently quantify the additional costs and resource requirements which might be in-
curred by the OIG's recommended repayment system, which would track each indi-
vidual ASHAA award on a separate payment initiation schedule, they would likely
be significant. Further, this extra cost to EPA would not produce any immediate
benefits to LEA's since funds repaid to the asbestos trust fund are not presently
available for redistribution to other financially needy schools.

Nevertheless, we agree that a speedy return of the money to the asbestos trust
fund would be beneficial in the event Congress allows EPA access to these funds.
Thus, OPTS will continue to work with GAD and LVFMC to evaluate alternate re-
payment schedules and make any appropriate program changes in time foi a 1990
award cycle.

A udi tor 's Comments
It is important to ensure the timely and effective use of ASHAA funds. Many

ASHAA awardees have either already completed the asbestos abatement prior to re-
ceiving the EPA award or will complete the abatement within the first summer
after the award. We recognize that the awardees must still complete certair admin-
istrative and financial procedures even after the abatement work is complete. How-
ever, we believe that EPA and the LEA's should be able to complete the necessary
procedures within 90 days after completion of abatement. Accordingly, this would
allow LEA's to initiate repayment as much as 18 months earlier.

Further, we are not suggesting that the Agency track individual awards on a sep-
arate time schedule. We are recommending that the Agency continue to use the
present semiannual repayment periods (June and December); however, the Agency
should revise the loan repayment schedules to initiate repayments earlier. Since the
repayment periods would remain the same, the additional coots and resources to
revise the system would not be excessive. We believe the benefits from accumulating
additional funds for needy schools would exceed the costs of revising the repayment
schedules.

Finally, we are issuing a finding on the asbestos trust fund which will hopefully
resolve the Agency's inability to use the Fund. See finding entitled "ASBESTOS
TRUST FUND NOT AVAILABLE TO LEA's."
Recommendation

We recommend that the Assistant Administrator for Administration and Re-
sources Management modify the future loen agreement to revise repayment terms
for applicants receiving loans. Repayment for reimbursement projects should com-
mence 6 months after the award date. Repayment for WIP projects should com-
mence on the next semiannual repayment date after the work is completed or 2
years after the award date, whichever is earlier.

Mr. LUKEN. Thank you, Ms. Herber. Certainly that is a very
clear and forthright statement which will be helpful to the subcom-
mittee.

Mr. Billirakis, you're with the Ohio Education Association and
speaking, I believe, on behalf of the NEA; is that right?

Mr. BILLIMKIS. That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. LuKEN. We will be pleased to hear from you.

STATEMENT OF MICHAEL BILLIRAKIS

Mr. BILLIRAKIS. Mr. Chairman, I am Michael Billirakis, vice
president of the Ohio Education Association.

Mr. LUKEN. Are you related to another Bilirakis around here?
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Mr. BILLIRAKIS. That's correct, sir. He is a Congressman from
Florida, my first cousin. He spells his name with one "1" and I
spell mine with two. My father threatened to disown me if--

Mr. LUKEN. He always was confused. We've noticed that.
Mr. BILLIRAXIS. My father promised to disown me if I changed it.
Mr. LUKEN. He was a member of this subcommittee and was so

confused that he left.
No, he's a very valued member and a good friend of ours. We

wanted to make sure you associated yourself with him.
Mr. BILLIRAKIS. We do hold great regard for him, a great love for

him. Thank you for saying what you did.
Accompanying me is Joel Packer, legislative specialist for the

NEA. On behalf of the 2 million members of the National Educa-
tion Association, I appreciate the opportunity to comment on the
threat of hazardous asbest the schools.

In 1984, NEA was instrc ental in the development and enact-
ment of the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act. Since that
time, almost 1,800 schools have received $245 million to assist them
with abatement projects. These funds represent 8 percent of the $3
billion EPA estimates it will cost for comprehensive asbestos abate-
ment. Since 1985 in Ohio, Mr. Chairman, there have been 115 LEA
awards, encompassing 88 school districts, with a total award of
over $30.5 million. In 1984, in the ad hoc asbestos advisory commit-
tee in Ohio, it was estimated that $400 million would be needed to
remove asbestos from our schools in the State of Ohio at a cost of
$3 to $4 per square foot. The cost currently is between $8 and $10
per square foot.

Hazards of friable asbestos are well-known. Its link to cancer and
other disease is widely recognized. EPA has estimated that as
many as 15 million children and 1.5 million school employees are
regularly exposed to friable asbestos. Young children are particu-
larly at risk. A child exposed from age 5 to 10 has about 10 times
the chance of developing cancer as an adult exposed to the same
amount of asbestos between the age of 35 and 40.

Recently, a number of scientists have attempted to minimize the
dangers of asbestos. Reasonable people may debate whether all as-
bestos in the schools represents a hazard, but no one can challenge
whether asbestos that is present in the State that is damaged or
likely to be damaged must be abated in a responsible manner.

NEA strongly maintains support for the Asbestos Hazards Emer-
gency Response Act. AHERA does riot require removal of asbestos
in most cases. It requires schools to inspect for asbestos and devel-
op a comprehensive asbestos management plan. Repeal or weaken-
ing of AHERA will lead to increased lung disease and deaths
among school employees and children.

In addition, schools must receive financial assistance to address
the most serious asbestos hazards. Between fiscal years 1985 and
1990, only 15 percent of schools seeking assistance under ASHAA
have been funded. Only one-third of the high priority projects have
been funded under AHSAA.

The need for continued assistance under ASHAA is clear. Indeed,
in fiscal year 1990, more than $260 million in requests under
ASHAA were ranked as qualified for funding by EPA because the
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asbestos was friable, damaged, and exposed, and the school district
was financially needy.

The Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Reauthorization Act
would reauthorize this program through fiscal year 1995 and
double the annual authorization. NEA strongly supports the pro-
posed improvements in the application and award process. In addi-
tion, we urge Congress to provide funding levels to meet the au-
thorized levels. The most Congress has ever provided for ASHAA
was $50 million in fiscal year 1986. It is likely that the costs to
schools for implementing management plans will increase over the
next few years.

We are deeply disappointed that the House Appropriations Sub-
committee on VA, HUD and Independent Agencies recommended
only $48 million for ASHAA for fiscal year 1991. We strongly urge
the members of this subcommittee to support an increase in the
fiscal year 1991 ASHAA funding. At present, funds repaid to the
Federal Government from ASHAA loans are placed in the asbestos
trust fund established by AHERA. H.R. 3677 would be greatly im-
proved by the addition of language that gives EPA authority to dis-
tribute such funds as they are repaid. It makes no sense to allow
money dedicated far school asbestos abatement to go unspent when
the need is so clear.

In addition, we recommend the committee examine the financial
need criteria for ASHAA. EPA uses only one factorper capita
income of the school district. The committee should direct the EPA
to consider other economic factors in determining financial need.

NEA strongly urges you to extend, expand and improve ASHAA,
and we pledge to work with you to see that the threat of asbestos
and other environmental hazards in the schools are completely
eliminated. Thank you.

[The prepared statement and attachment of Mr. Billirakis
follow.]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF MICHAEL BILLIRAKIS, VICE PRESIDENT, OHIO EDUCATION
ASSOCIATION, ON BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: I am Michael Billirakis, Vice Presi-
dent of the Ohio Education Association. I am here today on behalf of the 2 million-
member National Education Association which represents professional and support
employees in elementary, secondary, vocational, and postsecondary schools through-
out the nation. I appreciate the opportunity to comment on an issue of critical im-
portance to health and safety of mill4ons rl American students and school staff: the
threat of hazardous asbestos in the schools.

My testimony today will primarily focus on support for H.R. 3677, the Asbestos
School Hazard Abatement Reauthorization Act [AAA), as well as NEA's contin-
ued support for the Asbestos Hazard 'Emergency Response Act [AHERN. I am
pleased to note that just last week the ASHAA reauthorization was reported by
unanimous voice vote from the Senate Environment and Public Works Committee.

The issue of asbestos in schools has been the subject of extensive Congressional
and Administrative review for over a decade. In 1979, the Environmental Protection

ency [EPA) instituted a technical assistance program to help schools respond to
asbestos problems. In 1980, Congress enacted the Asbestos School Hazard Detection
and Control Act, administered by the U.S. Department of Education, which estab-
lished a program of loans and grants to assist schools financially with asbestos de-
tection and abatement. Unfortunately, no funds were ever appropriated for this pro-
gram.

In 1984, NEA was instrumental in the development and enactment of the Asbes-
tos School Hazard Abatement Act [ASHAA] which transferred this program from
the Department of Education to EPA and authorized $100 million per year to carry
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out the program. The authorization has since been increased to $125 million per
year. Since that time, 1,739 schools with the most serious problems, and the fewest
resources to address them, have received $245.2 million to assist them with 2,400
abatement projects. These funds have helped eliminate more than 19 million hours
of exposure to asbestos by students and school employees. Federal funds appropri-
ated for grants and loans is only a fractionabout 7.9 percentof the $3.1 billion
the Environmental Protection Agency estimated it will cost for comprehensive as-
bestos abatement in accordance with AHERA. Other estimates project the cost to be
as much as $6 billion.

The hazards of friable asbestos are well-known. Its link to cancer and other debili-
tating and potentially terminal diseases is widely recognized. EPA has estimated
that as many as 15 million children and 1.5 million school employees work in more
than 44,000 school buildings containing friable asbestosnot just asbestos that is
present and not likely to be disturd, but asbestos that is easily crumbled and
likely to deteriorate in locations that represent a serious threat to health and life.
In addition, virtually all of our nation's 107,000 schools contain nonfriable asbestos,
which can also release fibers under certain conditiors.

Research shows that young children are particulLrly at risk. In 1983, the EPA's
Office of Toxic Substances cautioned: "The age at which asbestos exposure occurs is
very important in determining the lifetime risk of developing mesotheliorna
(cancer). This fact creates a special concern for asbestos exposure to children . . . A
child ex from age 5 to 10 will have aut 10 times the chance of developing
mesotheroVa

bo
as an adult exposed to the same amount of asbeetos between ages 35

and 40. In addition, children appear to be more susceptible than adults to (other)
asbestos-related diseases."

Articles published last year in the New England Journal of Medicine and Science
magazine suggest that concerns about asbestos in schools are unfounded. These arti-
cles do not represent new research; they are simply reviews of preexisting studies.
NEA rejects the idea that "chrysotile asbestos, the type of fiber found predotainant-
ly in U.S. schools and buildings, is not a health risk in the nonoccupational environ-
ment," as reported by 13rooke Mossman, Morton Corn, Bernard Gee, et al. in Sci-
ence.

This exact question has been reviewed by Congress in July 1985 during a Senate
hearing on ASHAA Former Senators Stafford [R-VT] and Abdnor [11-SD) wrote to
several scientists requesting their views on "the health effects of in'haled chrysotile
asbestos." In response, Dr. James 0. Mason, then director of the Centers for Disease
Control, submitted a statement that concluded, "(Scientific studies) conclusively
demonstrate that chrysotile asbestos is a hazardous substance and poses a substan-
tial health risk when inhaled."

EPA in its July 1989 final rule on banning future manufacture, importation, and
distribution of asbestos stated categorically that "It is well recognized that asbestos
is a human carcinogen and is one of the most hazardous substances to which
humans are exposed in both occupational and nonoccupational settings." The EPA
also stated, "All commercial forms of asbestos have been shown to produce lung
tunn s and mesotheliorna . . in laboratory animals with no substantial differences
between the form of asbestos io carcinogenic potency." Moreover, this regulation
was the result of 3 years of review and some 45,000 pages of comments.

The contention of the Science article is clearly out of touch, not only with these
statements, but also with the conclusions of the Consumer Product Safety Commis-
sion, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health, and the American
Cancer Society, among many others. The contention that asbestos in buildings is not
a health threat has been answered by numerous well-qualified experts, including
llr. Christine Oliver of Harvard Medical School, Dr. 'Philip Landrigan and Dr.
Steven Levin of the Mount Sinai School of Medicine, and Dr. James Melius of the
New York State Department of Health.

Dr. William Nicholson of the Mount Sinai School of Medicine challenged the con-
clusions of Mossman et al., specifically the contention that exposures of 0.002 fibers
per cubic centimeter are not a health threat. Writes Nicholson, "It has been calcu-
lated that the lifetime risk for a 13-year exposure at this level, beginning at age
five, ranges from 4 to 12 asbestos cancer deaths per 100,000 exposed . For a
school rpulation of 20 million pupils, this translates into 800 to 2,400 cases of
cancer.

Most other carcinogens are regulated by EPA when projected to cause one cancer
death per 1 million people, well below the projected cancer deaths cited here.

In fact, levels of asbestos in schools may be higher than the level of 0.002 f/cc.
particularly in the absence of an asbestos management plan. In its February 1988
report to Congress on public buildings, EPA found that the mean level of asbestos in
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41 surveyed school buildings was 0.03 f/cc. The highost reading found was 0.1 f/cc,
equal to the action level of allowable occupational exposure established by the Occu-
pational Safety and Health Administration [OSHA]. Even the 0.03 f/ec level is more
than 100 times higher than the exposure levels of 0.00024 f/cc suggested by Moss-
man et al.

Moreover, the real concern is not with current average indoor air concentrations
of asbestos. The impetus for AHERA stems from the fact that friable asbestos,
unless properly maintained, will become damaged and release fibers. Even routine
maintenance activities can lead to peak fiber release episodes of 100 to 1,000 times
average levels. A 1977 study by Dr. Sawyer measuring asbestos levels in a college
library found a mean level of 0.02 f/cc. And yet, routine activities, such as cleaning
and moving books, resulted in airborne levels skyrocketing to 15.5 f/cc, while main-
tenance work, such as removing a section of ceiling, raised levels even higher: to
17.7 f/cc.

Indeed, while some publications have characterized current Federal law concern-
ing asbestos in schools as "fiber phobia" or "paratoxicology," recent evidence shows
school custodial workers suffering disproportionately high levels of asbestos-related
lung disease. The rate of such abnormality in a study by Mount Sinai was 39 per-
cent for a group of New York City school custodians with at least 35 yeare of work
experience. Interestingly, of those custodians who had no other asbestos exposure
outside of schools, the abnormality was higher. A 1989 study of 121 Boston Public
School custodians by Dr. Oliver of Massachusetts General Hospital found asbestos-
related scarring of the lining of the lungs in 40 percent of these individuals, includ-
ing 21 percent of those custodians without any other known asbestos expesure.

In addition, Dr. Henry Anderson. chief State epidemiologist for Wisconsin, has
said that a new study of mesothelioma cases in Wisconsin found a three- to four-fold
increase in the risk of mesothelioma among firefighters and police officers, school
employees, postal workers, and janitors. He specifically identified individuals who
worked in buildings with asbestos and later died of mesothelioma including two
school maintenance workers, a teacher, and a school cafeteria cook.

Anderson also concluded from studying chest x-rays of school inaintenance work-
ers that 43 percent of those workers with 30 or more years on the job have asbestos-
related lung abnormalities.

NEA strongly maintains our support for AHEM Most critics of the statute have
misrepresented what it does. AHERA does not require removal ef asbestos in the
vast majority of circumstances. The statute requires schools to inspect for asbestos,
assess its condition, develop a comprehensive asbestos managenient plan, and imple-
ment appropriate response actions, including special operatioas and management
procedures, repair, enclosure, encapsulation, or removal.

NEA and other reeponsible advocates have never contended that removal of as-
bestos was always the solution. Indeed, a July 1989 joint EPA/NEA/PTA publica-
tion. "The ABCs of Asbestos in Schools", states "Most asbestos-containing material
can be properly managed where it is. In fact, asbestos that is inanaged properly and
maintained in good condition appears to pose relatively little risk to students and
school employees. Accordingly, the AHERA schools rule rarely requires the removal
of asbestos materials."

A thorough inspection and responeible, ongoing management of asbestos is war
ranted by the evidence of asbestoe research and the investigations of school build-
ings across the nation. Even Dr. Corn, who attempts to discount the risk of asbestos
in buildings, acknowledged in a statement before the Ilouse Subcommittee on
Health and Safety on April 3, 1990, ". . , Asbestos must be treated with respect.
There should be requirements for surveying buildings to determine where the A,CM
(asbestes-containing material) is located, the occupants of buildings should be alert-
ed to its presence and informed of the concentrations of measured concentrations of
asbestos-in-air in the buildings . . (And) the maintenance personnel in the build-
ings should be instructed in an O&M (operations and maintenance) plan containing
specific procedures relative to their building and the specific maintenance that they
perform." These elements are all part of AHERA.

Some members of Congrees have introduced legislation to repeal AHERA. We
strongly oppose this and believe repeal would be totally irresponsible. As former
EPA Administrator Lee Thomas stated in a February 26, 1988 letter to Congress,
". asbestos in schools . represents a potential health hazard that deserves
careful attention. We should be very careful not to take steps which undermine the
t AIIERA school asbestos programs') completion."

AHERA was specifically designed to put in place a comprehensive, rational frame-
work to clean up asbestos where it is presently a hazard and put in place preventive
measures to manage in-place undamaged material. As of October 1989, 94 percent of
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all school districts had prepseed management plans. Repeal would mean that
schools would not have to do anything to respond to damaged asbestos, not have to
follow worker and building occupant protection standards during abatement, not
have to utilize workers who are accredited either by States or EPA, not have to
notify parents, teachers, and other school employees of whether and to what extent
asbestos is present in their school building, not have to meet the reoccupancy clear-
ance levels after an abatement action, and not have to follow asbestos transport and
disposal regulations.

Put simply, repeal or weakening of AHERA will lead to increased lung disease
and deaths among school employees and children.

Let me emphasize that, as of July 1989, AHERA provides school districts with a
great deal of flexibilitynot only in which response action to choose, but also the
timing of implementation. While there were strict fitAlines for completing the in-
spection and preparing the management plan, there are few remaining deadlines
beyond Julzr 1989. Schools are required to conduct a visual review of asbestos mate-
rial every b months, but the review does not have to be performed by an accredited
person. Once every 3 years schools must conduc, a formal reinspection. Other than
that, schools may set their own schedule and selsct their response actions, based on
the advice of the plan developer. A school can also revise its management plan in
conjunction with the plan developer. One key condition for any response action is
that it must be sufficient to protect human health and the environment.

A much more responeible alternative to repeal of AHERA is the amendment to
the ASHAA reauthorization adopted by the Senate Environment and Public Works
Committee which requires EPA to send additional information to schools about
their options under AHERA. In fact, we have strongly encouraged EPA to do so and
cooperated with EPA in the publication of the "ABCs of Asbestos", as well as a pub-
lication soon to be released, "The Environmental Hazards in Schools Handbook".
The proposed ASHAA reauthorization also allows up to 5 percent of funds each year
to be used by EPA for training, technical assistance, and information dissemination.

NEA believes that any amendment that would weaken AHERA or its regulations
is not justified at this time. EPA is in the process of evaluating implementation and
effectiveness of AIIERA and we believe it would be prudent to wait for the results
of these studies.

In the most recent round of applications for ASIIAA grants and loans appropri-
ated for fiscal rar IIWO. 863 local education agencies applied for funds amounting
to $403 million to carry out 1,856 asbestos abatement projects. The $43.4 million
Congress provided last year to fund ASHAA loans and grants is sufficient to pay for
les.; than 11 percent of those requests

Between fiscal year 1985 imd fiscal year 1990, only 15 percent of the 11,560
schools seeking assistance under ASIIAA have been funded. Over thv lifetime of the
program, about onefifth of all local education agencies have requested funding
under ASHAA. Some 40 percent of the projects proposed were considered Hazard
Category I, the most serious rating in EPA's system for evaluating asbestos dangers.
Only onethird of' even these high-priority projects have been funded under ASHAA,

Hazard Category I projects are characterized by friable asbestos-containing build
ing materials exposed or in an air plenum and considered to arise from (1) damaged
or sigmficantly damaged thermal system insulation; (2) significantly damaged sur-
facing materials: or (3) significantly damaged miscellaneous material which has
been isolated to protect human health and the environment.

The need for continued tissistance under ASHAA is clear. Indetd, in fiscal year
1990, more than $260 million in requests under ASHAA were ranked as qualified
for funding by EPA because the asbestos was friable, damaged, and exposed. and tl-w
school district was financially needy. This $260 million is the l:irgest yearly amount
that EPA has ever received in qualified requests, and is more than double the fiscal
year 1989 level. Obviously, as schools implement their management plans, financial
pressures will remain great over the next several years.

Support for the program is also widespread. NEA coordinates the Asbestos in the
School Coalition, which has lobbied actively for increased ASHAA funding for the
past 6 years. The 40 Coalition members include school groups, environmental,
health, and labor organizations. Reasonable people nmy debate whether all asbestos
in the schools represents a hazard. But no one can challenge whether the presence
of airborne asbestos is a health hazard. And no one can challenge whether asbestos
that is present in a State that is damaged or lilwly to be damaged must be abated in
a responsible manner.

The Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Reauthorization Act (H.R. 36771, with
more than 80 cosponsors, would reauthorize the program of grants and loans to
schools to address serious asbestos hazards through fiscal year 1995. It would in-
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crease the annual authorization from $125 million to $250 million. It is important to
note that al- aut 70 percent of the funds have been provided as loans to be repaid to
the Federal Government.

In addition, the measure would make a number of improvements in the adminie-
trat'on of the program. It would require EPA to distribute applications to local edu-
cation agencies within 45 days of the enactment of any appropriation for ASHAA
and require EPA to make awards no later than April 30 of each year. The provision
will prevent problems, such as those that have occurred in the past, with delays in
distribution of applications and awards. It will also prevent OMB from prohibiting
EPA from distributing applications at all, as was the case in fiscal year 1987.

Moreover, the legislation would require that LEA's must have prepared and be
implementing a management plan in compliance with AHERA, and that abatement
projects be carried out by -accredited personnel, te be considered for an
award. The measure also allows 6 percent of ASHAA funds to be used to assist
schools with reinspection and training. NEA strongly supports these improvements.
At the same time, we strongly urge Congress to provide funding levels that meet the
authorized levels. The most Congress has ever provided in a fismil year for ASHAA
awards to schools was $47 million in fiscal year 19F5less than one-half of the au-
thorized amount. Every year, the White House has reeommended no new funds
despite clear evidence that the hazards continue to exist. In fact. President Bush's
budget for fiscal year 1991, ontv ain requests no funds for ASHAA. In the past,
the Office of Management and Bu has stated that "additional funding would go
to low priority projects." And yet 'PA's own statistics on applications shows this
not to be the case. It is likely that costs to schools for implementing management
plans will increase over the next few years.

We are, therefore, deeply disappointed that last week the House Appropriations
Subcommittee on Veterans Affairs-Housing and Urban Development-Independent
Agencies, which has jurisdiction over EPA funding, only recommended PS million
for ASHAA for fiscal year 1991. This represents level funding after the Gramm-
Rudman reductions in the fiscal year 1990 appropriation. We strongly urge the
members of this subcommittee to work actively to seek an = -crease in the fiscal year
1991 ASHAA funding as the appropriationa process proceees.

The ASHAA reauthorization would provide funds to continue to assist schools
that have demonstrated asbestos hazards and are in compliance with AHERA regu-
lations for inspection and management. Moreover, the grants and loans are provid-
ed only to those schools with the most severe economic impediments to address the
health threat. EPA reported in 1986 that SO percent of the projects funded in the
ASIIAA program were in school districts where the per capita income is less than
65 percent of the national average; more than one-third of the awards went to
schools where the per capita income is about 50 percent of the national average

At present, funds repaid to the Federal Government from ASHAA loans are
placed in the asbestos trust fund established by AIIERA. H,R. 3677 would be greatly
improved by the addition of language that gives EPA authority to distribute such
funds as they are repaid. The puose of this Fund was to have repaid loans made
available to provide additional ASIIAA awards. OMB projects that about $25 mil-
lion will available in the Trust Fund by fiscal year 1991. However, funds can be
spent from this Fund only subject to appropriations. Unfortunately, no money has
ever been released from the Trust Fund and the $25 million therefore serves simply
to contribute minutely contribution to reducing the overall deficit.

New data NEA has just obtained from EPA indicates that without any new appro-
priations, the asbestos trust fund will grow to $33 million in fiscal year 1992, $44
million in fiscal year 1993, $57 million in fiscal year 1994, and $70 million in fiscal
year 1995, finally reaching $431 million in fiscal year 2010 (See attachment). It
makes no sense to allow money dedicated for achool asbestos abatement to go un-
spent year after year when the need for the money is so clear.

NEA. believes ASFIAA should be amended to give EPA the authority to provide
ASHAA awards from the Trust Fund to schools that meet EPA's own criteria.
Indeed, for any year in which qualified application requests exceee appropriated
funds, EPA should provide Trust Fund moneys to these qualified applicants who
would otherwise go unfunded.

Without question, funds for asbestos abatement--when necessary will reduce the
total resources available in a school district for the full range of programs and serv-
ices necessary to provide quality educational opportunities. And we must not force
those schools at the lower end of the economic scale to chooee between quality edu-
cation and the health and lives of its students and staff.

In addition, the committee needs to examine the financial need criteria used ny
EPA in determining whether a dietrict is eligible to receive ASHAA assistance.
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Since the program's inceAion, EPA has used only one factorper capita income of
the school district for public schools. Those in the top 30 percent are automatically
considered ineAOle.

This standard fails to take into account the cost of the abatement project in rela-
tion to the sche,-...!'s overall budget. It ignores any differences in terms of variations
of the cost-of-living across geographic lines, or any other circumstances. NEA recom-
mends that the committee direct EPA to consider factors such as these in determin-
ing_financial need.

1VEA strongly urges you to extend, expand, and improve the Asbestos School
Hazard Abatement Act, and we pledge to work with you to see that the threat of
asbestos and other environmental hazards in the schools are completely eliminated.

Thank you.

NEA A'rrACHMENT

Table 1.ESTIMATE OF YEAR-END BALANCES IN THE ASBESTOS TRUST FUND, BASED ON

REPAYMENT Of LOANS AWARDED IN FISCAL YEAR 1985 THROUGH FISCAL YEAR 1990

Asttslos trust
hind balance

Fiscal yeau
1987 $837,000
1988 ...... ,...... ..... ..... 3,426,000
1989 7,810,000
1990 14,941,000
1991. 22,692.000
1992 32,627.000
1993 44,208,090
1994 56.704.000
1995 70,186.000
1996 84,734,000
1997 100,432,000
1598 117,369,000
1999 135,644,090
2000 155,364,400
2001 176,641,000
2002 . 199,599,000
2003 224,370,000
2004 251,099,000
2005 279,190,000
2006 307,776.000
2007 336,863,000
2008 367,042,000
2009 398,471,000
2010 430,811,000

Mr. litaum. Do you have a formula for distribution?
Mr. BILLTRA.KIS. I'm not an expert, but my expert might.
Mr. LUKEN. Well, we'll call upon you next. Could you incorporateyour
Mr. PACKER. Well, I'm not a witness, but--
Mr. LUKEN. Go ahead.
Mr. PACKER.. We don't have a specific formula, but I think, as

Mr. Eckart mentioned, EPA should look at such factors as the total
cost of the abatement project in relation to the school's budget. I
think they need to look at variations in income and cost to

Mr. LUKEN. But you've got to come up with a formula.
Mr. PAMIR. I think what the committee might want to do is--
Mr. LUKEN. Otherwise, you'll have EPA looking at everything

but deciding nothing.
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Mr, PACKER. That's possible. 1 think what the committee maywant to do--
Mr. LUKEN. It's not their fault, if we don't tell them how to

decide.
Mr. PACKER. Right. I think they should be directed to a mini-

mumas Ms. Fisher indicated, they are considering already an ex-
ceptions policy. Right now, if the school district is in the top 30 per-
cent of per capita income, they don't look at their application
beyond that. They don't look at how much the project costs; they
don't look at how hazardous the project is. I think their current
policy is just too inflexible.

If the committee doesn't want to specify an exact formula, they
should sort of at least mandate that they have an exceptions policy
so that they at least look at the rest of the application and see if
the schools, even though they may be in the top 30 percent of per
capita income, have a need for funding.

Mr. LUKEN. And would you identify yourself for the record? The
following person said the forego;ag.

Mr. PACKER. My name is Joel Packer. I'm a legislative specialist
on the staff of the National Education Association.

Mr. LUKEN. I think you've illustrated that finding a formula is
difficult, as it has been for the Ohio State Legislature and other
legislatures. I doubt if we're going to be a whole lot better at it at
the Federal level.

Mr. August.

STATEMENT OF JAMES D. AUGUST
Mr. AtiatisT, Thank you,
I am James August. I was one of the American Federation of

State, County and Municipal Employees representatives during the
negotiated rulemaking, so I go way back with this one.

Among our 1.3 million members, we represent school employees,
including janitors, and many thousands more--

Mr. LUKEN. Did you bring the New York report with you?
Mr. AUGUST. No, I'm afraid not. I thought that would be coming

on the plane. But we can get it for you.
Mr. LUKEN. Promises.
Mr. AUGUST. We represent building service workers in schools as

well as nonschool buildings. I have provided training over the last
5 years to custodians as well as trades people, so I am very familiar
with the problems of training and what it takes to do the job right.

Many AFSCME members and retirees have died or become seri-
ously ill as a result of their exposure to asbestos. That includes as-
bestosis, not just the cancers, as Dr. Gee was alluding to. These ex-
posures occurred as a result of day-to-day, routine exposures, not
large asbestos jobs under removal projects.

One thing that's clear, that's been said by witnesses on all sides,
is that schools need more money if they are, in fact, going to imple-
ment AHERA. AFSCME has conducted a survey of its members in
the Ohio public schools and we discovered that a majority of
schools have failed to implement basic AHERA requirements
which are necessary to prevent the exposure to building occupants.
The failure of local education agencies to properly manage asbestos
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has therefore subjected workers and students to unreasonable
levels of asbestos exposure and continues to do so.

In all places where compliance has been a significant problem,
LEA's have cited the shortage of funds as the main reason they
have not or cannot implement particular AHERA requirements.

Now, despite problems with implementation, it would be very
wrong to conclude that AHERA was a bad idea all tegether. More
money and better enforcement are needed to make AHERA effec-
tive. By way of analogy, no one suggests that we repeal laws which
prohibit drinking and driving just because such statutes do not
deter all individuals from driving while intoxicated and law en-
forcement fails to catch all offenders.

A new epidemic is emerging among those who have been exposed
to asbestos fibers that have been released from asbestos materials
already in buildings, and that population at risk certainly includes
the other building occupants and not just the workers. I won't
repeat what Dr. Levin said on those points.

I will say, though, I thought Dr. Levin would cover the fact that
Dr. Oliver at Harvard has done similar studies of Boston custo-
dians and has found very, very similar findings. In addition, Dr.
Anderson, with the Wisconsin Division of Health, presented evi-
dence and cases very recently on mesotheliorna cases among public
employees in Wisconsin, and these included 8 municipal building
workers, 11 school maintenance workers, 13 teachers, and 3 other
school employees. These mesotheliomas are always deadly.

The emerging body of evidence clearly indicates that asbestos is
a potential hazard for occupants as well as building service work-
ers.

Unfortunately, not everyone agrees about the risks of asbestos.
An organization known as the Safe Buildings Alliance, for exam-
ple, has spearheaded an unconscionable public relations effort
aimed at dismissing the risks of asbestos. There is nothing safe or
benign about SBA, which is comprised of former manufacturers of
asbestos products. The industry merely seeks to defeat or delay
health protective laws and regulations by denying that asbestos in
buildings poses a hazard and thereby ultimately reduce their own
financial and legal exposure problems.

Let's remember that, for decades, the asbestos industry denied
any health risks from their products at all. When thousands of
manufacturing, shipyard and other installers of asbestos products
died, the industry reluctantly conceded that there was a problem.
Now that disease has been documented among building service
workers, such as custodians, the asbestos industry reluctantly
admits that these workers may be at some risk. Should we listen to
these same parties now when they tell us that occupants are not at
risk?

To support their claims, the asbestos industry has cited the com-
mentary which appeared in Science magazine. Mossman and Gee
and the other authors assert that chrysotile asbestos, the most
comment form of asbestos, is less toxic than other asbestos forms
Again, we've just heard that discussion. The point is, there are no
inhaler-friendly fibers.

What is even more disturbing about that article, though, is the
public policy conclusions they draw. They argue that the discovery

BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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of asbestos in a building creates panic, which they have called
"fiber phobia". This results in unnecessary and even dangerous re-
moval jobs, they assert. The article perversely concludes that the
aim of public policy should be to curtail the so-called asbestos panic
in this country. We, quite frankly, think that asbestos is the
hazard.

AHERA recognized that it's not possible to base policy on air
measurements of asbestos because, once it's in the air, you've lost
the battle to prevent exposure.

Now, to address the point that you made about what are we
going to do until it's all removed, there are interim steps which
AHERA nicely lays out about how to monitor, survey and control
exposures. Now, if you don't remove it, that doesn't mean that
you're off the hook in terms of the expense. The cost of properly
conducting operations and maintenance activities in the building
are also substantial. It includes training and equipment and all
sorts of other things.

Our study of compliance with AHERA by Ohio schools revealed
that the majority of schools have failed to implement even the
most basic elements of their asbestos management plans. Only two-
thirds of custodial and maintenance staff had been informed of the
locations of asbestos. Just over half the employees reported that
warning signs had been posed in their schools. Only about one-
third of the employees engaged in activities involving small
amounts of asbestos have had proper training and have been issued
a respirator. Only one-third of the workers who have been issued a
respirator have received fit testing and required medical exams.
Only one-fifth of the workers have IIEPA-equipped vacuum clean-
ers to clean up and repair asbestos, and as many as one-third to
one-half reported that they are expected to perform various custo-
dial and maintenance activities which are prohibited where asbes-
tos is involved.

The report on Ohio schools has implications for preventing expo-
sure in public buildingsand I'll end with this point. As pointed
out before, there are hundreds of thousands of buildings that con-
tain asbestos, and in many of those buildings it's damaged asbestos.
Asbestos is obviously no less a hazard in the other buildings as
they are in the schools. To remedy the situation, AFSCME is cur-
rently involved with other labor unions in a lawsuit against the
Environmental Protection Agency to force just such action, because
unless the material is inspected, there is no way that you can have
a reasonable or intelligent response to the presence of asbestos.

In conclusion, there are problems and have been problems with
implementation. Even so, schoOls have clearly and substantially
improved their efforts to address asbestos since the passage of
AHERA. However, schools clearly need far more financial re-
sources if they are to fully comply with AHERA and thereby ade-
quately protect the entire school population. AHERA is not only es-
sential for protecting school populations from asbestos, it is also
the type of model which we need for other buildings.

I thank you.
[Testimony resumes on p. 180.]
[The prepared statement and attachments of Mr. August follow:]
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Prepared Statement of James August, Occupational Health and Safety Specialist
American Federation of State, County

and Municipal Employees

tntroduction

I am James August, Occupational Health and Safety specialist wth the American
Federation of State. County and Municipal Employees tAFSCMEI I am a Master of Public Health,
have received accreditation as a building inspector for asbestos-containing materials [ACM] and
management planner, and have been trained in proper work practices for operations that involve
asbestos. For five years I have provided technical assistance and training to AFSCME local unions
across the country to protect our members from exposure to asbestos. I was one of AFSCME's
representatives for the Asbestos Hazare Emergency Response Act fAHERA1 negotiated rulemaking
which developed the Environmental Protection Agency's jEPiN asbestos in schools rule I also
represented AFSGME at the recently concluded EPA policy dialogue on asbestos in public and
commercial builds qs,

NatiormIty. AFSCMEs 1.3 million members work in a wide range of job classifications,
primarily in state and local government, hospitals, and nonprofit organizations. AFSCME represents
school employees across the country, and many thousands more custodial and maintenance workers
in nonschool buildings. The matority of AFSCME members work in buridings that contain asbestos

AFSCME members and retirees have died or become seriously ill as the result of their
exposure to asbestos in schools and other builemgs It is critically important to emphasize that most
of the workers inhaled asbestos as the result of custodial or maintenance tasks in which disturbances
of asbestos materials were not controlled Therefore, their deaths and illnesses are primarily the
result of routine, day to day exposure to asbestos, not large asbestos removal protects.

AHERA requires that schools implement a set of measures to prevent exposure, and
thereby protect school populations from the deadly hazards of asbestos. Unfortunately, too many
schools across the country have done a very poor Job of implementing AHERA's requirements.
AFSCME has provided this Committee with a study recently conducted by its Health and Safety staff
which documents a dismal record of compliance with AHERA by Ohio schools In all probability. Ohio
is not unique is this respect.

Despite shortcomings in implementation, It would be wrong, dead wrong, to conclude that
AHERA was a bad idea. By way of analogy, tne nation's laws prohibiting driving while under the
influence of alcohol do not dater all individuals from driving while intoxicated, nor is the enforcement

;of Such laws adequate to catch all those who violate these statutes. However, no o ni suggests that
we repeal laws that are intended to discourage people who drink and drive, or not punish those who
do in the case of AHERA, the task before ali those concerned about safeguarding the health of
school children and workers is how to improve the effectiveness of AHE RA

Based on the Union's experience, the single most important factor hindering the full
implementation of AHERA is the schools' lack of funds to address asbestos problems Congress must
appropriate sufficient funds so that schools have the resources they need to initiate measures which
are essential to protect school children and employees from asbestos Full funding of the asbestos in
schools program can do more to guarantee protection from asbestos than any other single factor

Asbestes in Schools endOther Buikiines Peses_a_Sgeous Health Risk

The adverse heafth effects of asbestos have been Clearly and repeatedly established In
the preamble to its 1986 asbestos regulation, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
[OSHA] stated that 'OSI-IA is aware of no instance m which exposure to a toxic substance has more
clearly demonstrated detrimental health effects in humans than has asbestos exposure " Asbestos is
a patent cardnogen that causes mesothelioma, lung, esophagal, stomach, cOlo-rectal, kidney, and
laryngeal cancers. AsbestosiS is 1.,e scarring of lung Vssue caused by the aCCumulation of asbestos
fibers in the lungs, causing death or severe disability. The scarring may be within the lungs, or on
their surface (pleura), or both.

Thousands of workers will continue to die ot asbestos-related diseases through the rest Of
this century from the exposure they received over their working lives. However, the death and disease
will not be confined to workers who encountered their exposures in the manutc.cture and installaton
of asbestos products. A now epidemic is emerging among those who have been oxposed to asbestos
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fibers which have been released from ashostos-containing matenals already placed in buildings, and
the population at nsk includes workers and other building occupants

The public health joroblem posed by asbestos in buadings was documented at a
conference sponsored by the ColkTium Ramazzini, an international academic body of one hundred
and twenty-five of the world's foremost experts in environmental and occupational health sciences,
held the first week in June of this year. The Conference was entitled. "The Third Wave of Asbestos
Disease. Exposure to Asbestos in Place. Public Heatth Contror.

A concerted effort to identify those who have been adversely affected by exposure to
asbestos in buildings has only recently begun, and these findings were presented at the Collegitan
Doctors Stephen Levin of Mount Sinai and Christine Oliver of the Harvard Medical School conducted
examinations ot custodians in New York and Boston, re vely, In New York, thirty-nine percent of
custodians employed by the New York City Board ofT.ecaation for at least thirty-five years had
asbestos-related x- ray abnormalities Among Boston Public School custodians without known
exposure tO asbestos dutside their work as school custodians, pleural plaques were observed in
twenty-one percent of the workers. AFSCME will be conducting additional screenings in the near
future, and Unfortunately. there iS no reason to believe that the findings of doctors Levin and Oliver
will not bo replicated

Dr. Henry Anderson of the Wisconsin Division of Health presented reports of
rnesothelioma cases among public employees, eight municipal building rnantenance, eleven school
maintenance workers, thirteen teachers. and three other school employees The information was
gathered from death certificate data and cancer reporting systems. Dr. Anderson presented more
detailed information on several of the cases One of the school maintenance workers died after thirty-
five years of employment, and the other was a lite-long carpenter who began as a municipal worker
fifty years before he developed his mesothelioma A teacher who worked fur a school district in which
significantly damaged asbestos matenal was identified and removed in 19/9 died at the age of sixty .
six The second school emplore was a cafetena cook who died at the aee of sixty-tour. and in her
hospital records She reported taking asbestos ceiling material had heen in the kitchen and had to be
removed sometime in the 70's.

The emerging body of evidence cleanly indicates that asbestos is a potential hazard for
occupants as well as building service workers Given recent findings of disease among custodians
and other maintenance workers, it would be illogical to assume that no other occupants have been. or
will be affected AHERA. was passed in large part to protect school children trom exposure Although
there is controversy over the significance of the hazard that asbestos poses to building occupants.
there is general agreement that the risk increases with exposure.

Exposures of building service workers are higher than for other Occupants. However, many
custodial and maintenance tasks occur in areas which are inhabited by other people, including
students. If asbestos control measures are not in place, workers cause contamination to themselves
and others Due to the physical characteristics of asbestos, fibers which aro released can be
orcelated throughout the building by the ventilation system, exposing building occupants to asbestos

glairrs,That the Dlngers of Asbestos Have Been Exaggeratea Are Felse

Recen. . parties interested in limiting their liability duo to asbestos have intensified their
public relations efforts sinned at dismissing the risks of asbestos. They employ spurious science to
bolster Inv claims that tear about exposure in buildings ,s exaggerated, and the real problem
"fiberphobia". rather than the asbestos It is a reprehensible effort to portray asbestos in buildings as
virtually harmless, and better off left alone.

One particular party you will hear front in this discussion is the Sate Buildings Alliance
[SBA] There is nothing safe or benign about thris organization SBA is comprised of former
manufacturers of asbestos products Asbestos companies and SBA have resisted all attempts to
regulate asbestos and otherwise protect the public front their deadly products SP 4 was a member of
the negotiating committee that wrote Iho asbestos in schools regulation 38A subsequently
challenged the AHE RA Rule all the way to the U S Supremo Court and lost on il counts Needless
to say, the financial interests in the asbestos debate are already very high As the stakes grow higher.
the claims and tactics of organizations such as SBA become ever more outrage(' us

Present and former manufacturers ot asbestos products and their Allies have engaged in
an unconscionable public relations arid misinformation campaign By den- .ig throne is any problem
from exposure to asbestos in buildings. they seek tO defeat or delay health protective laws and
regulations. and ultimately reduce their own financial and legal exposure problems Their tactics are
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similar to the campaign which has been conducted by the Tobacec Institute However, there is a
difference between expesure to asbestos and smoking cigarettes. la spite of sophisticated marketing
pfessures and the fact that cigarettes are addictive, people are able to quit smoking; and thus
smoking Is to some extent a velunlary exposure. By contrast, exposure to asbestos in buildings is an
involuntary eV0Wre. Workers and occupants are involuntarily exposed when a building has not been
inspected and people are not notified of ACM locations; or when building owners or employers have
not trained and equipped werkers to avoid exposure, or initiated response actions to remove or
otherwise properly manage asbestos materials.

The debate over the risks of asbestos in buildings and what measures are needed to
address those risks escalated with the proceedings of the "Harvard Symposium" and an article by
Mossman et al. in Science In January of this year. The Harvard meeting was Sponsored try the
National Association Of Reaitore the Institute of Real Estate Management Foundation, the Safe
Buildings Alliance and other self interested parties. From the hallowed halls of Harvard. a series of
carefulfy selected presenterS essentially Charactenzed the iSsue of asbestos in buildings as, "Don't
worry, be happy', and spend your money on real problems.

In the case of the Science article, the authors assert that chrysolite asbestos, the most
common form of asbestos, Is less toxic than other asbestos forms We have attached an arliol.--+
written by Dr. William Nicholson of the Mount Sinai School of Medicine which refutes the findings of
Mossman et al. Data discussed at the Collegium Ramazzini provided additional evidence to what has
been known tor many years, that ail types of asbestos are potent carcinogens and producers ot other

rees of disease. There are no inhaler-friendly fibers. Further, EPA Assistant Administrator for
sticides and Toxic Substances. Linda Fisher, testified before the House Committee on Educetion

and Labor Subcommittee on Health and Safety in early April. and stated. "Asbestos is known to
cause cancer and other disease if fibers are inhaled into the lung and remain there, based upon
studies involving human exposure and particularly at high levels While evidence ,s better for some
types of asbestos, there is no clear proof that other types are not as potent."

Of greater concern are the outrageous, misleading, and dangerous conclusions contained
in the article's discussion of public policy implications, to which we will respond. Mossman at al .
assert that asbestos in buildings is not an important risk factor They argue that the mere discovery of
asbestos in buitdings creates panic, and a great l;C/d1 of haphazard asbestos removals have been
conducted which expose the abatement woreers. The article concludes that the aim of public policy
should be to curtail the so-called asbestos panic in this country in order to protect young removal
workers who may develop asbestos-related cancers in later decades.

No reputable scientific body, nor governmental agency such as OSHA or EPA has aver
determined there is a safe threShold of exposure to asbestos, and all aseestos fibers produce
adverse health effects. There is consensus among all those who are knowledgeable arid reputable
regarding asbestos issues that asbestos exposure should be prevented, and certain measures are
necessary to accomplish this objective in buildings which COntain asbestos. The investigations of
doctors Levin, Oliver, Anderson and others clearly demonstrate that asbestos in buildings is a hsk to
human health, not just the health of asbestos removal workers. And in buildings where asbestos has
not been identified andror appropriate steps have not been taken to prevent exposure, the presEroca
of asbestos poses a significant and unreasonable nsk to workerS and occupanis

AHERA feieuires a Proactive Approach to Prevent Exposure to Aseestos

AHERA is different and better than other asbestos laws because it recognizes that it is not
possible to base policy toward asbestos in buildings on air measurements of asbestos. Once
asbestos is in the air, you have lost the battle to prevent exposure AHERA is a proactive approach
requiring protective measures where asbestos has been identified, rather than all concentrations of
asbestos. This entails finding asbestos, and taking measures ranging from management to removalof
asbestos, to ensure that uncontrolled disturbance does not occur.

By contrast, parties who claim the risks of asbestos in buildings are minimal, base their
assertion in part on questionable assumptions about ambient asbestos levels under so-called normal
conditions. The air monitoring studies of buildings which have been cited are no reason for comfort or
complacenCy. Arr samples taken at a time when nothing is oeCurnng in the buildine do not provide any
information about exposures that result atter building materials or aseestos debns are disturbed and
release fibers into the air Air monitoring studies of repair and maintenance jobs have repeatedly
demonstrated that peak exposures do occur, creating air concentrations of asbestos many times
above existing OSHA action and permissible exposure levels. Dr. Keyes and others have recently
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released data which further documents this fact
When asbestos is disturbed, 4 does not harmlessly dissipate or disappear. When

unprotected workers go above a drop cetting. pull off pipe insulation, or sweep asbestos dust, some of
those fibers are not going to be measured because they are in the lungs of the workers and
bystanders who happen to be in the vicinity Of the work. Unlike other asbestos regulations, AHERA
requires that asbestos be identified, and an assessment be conducted of the present and potential
hazard posed by the material. This information is critical in order to choose appropnate response
options. These alternatives range from managing material in place to removal, or a combination of
these strategies. Asbestos removal which is properly conducted, represents the only permanent
solution tor preventing exposure to asbestos. Asbestos removal can tie accomplished without causmg
exposure to removal workers, or contaminating areas outside the work site.

Unfortunately, there are unscrupulous andior incompetent removal contractors engaged in
asbestos removal and othor abatement activities. Parties interested in limiting their liahility for the
costs of asbestos removal have pointed to the existence of unqualified companies as reason to
conclude that asbestos removal causes unacceptable exposure to asbestos, and therefore removal
Should be avoided wherever possible. Avoiding or discouraging removal is not the answer Instead.
requirements for training and ark practices for asbestos removal should be more stnngent and
vigorously enforced.

The alternative to asbestos removal is managing the material in place. As an option
allowed by AHERA, schools have relied heavily on managing asbestos in place to prevent exposure.
The decision to manage asbestos in place requires an ongoing program of actions which are
necessary to prevent the release of asbestos fibers, potentially for decades. Proper management of
asbestos is much easier said than none, and is not necessarily an inexpensive alternative The cost
of repair and encapsulation operations approaches that of removal in part because regulated areas
must be established tho same as for removal work, and these expenses reOcour with removal. The
cost to properly conduct operations and maintenance activities in a building can also be substantial
The expenses include training for building service workers and providing respirators. The use of
respirators requires a meoical surveillance program, fit testing, and other elements of a reqaireo
respiratory protection program, Equipment must be available for planned activities which disturb
asbestos, to respond to unanticipated events that damage asbestos matenals, and to conduct routine
custodial tasks in areas that contain asbestos matenals.

The bottom line is that all options to adequately respond to the presence of asbestos in
schools and other buildings cost money. SChOOIS need financial assistance regardless of whether
asbestos must be removed or managed in place. To the extent possible, society should impose the
costs of preventing exposure and compensating, its victims on those who have created the hazard In
the meantime, that help must come from the federal government

'cheqls H a v e Failed to_Ettectieraelatelement AHERA

AHERA was passed unanimously because Congress found that the r...:nvirOnmental
Protection Agency's 1982 school inspection rule was woefully inadequate. AFSCME supported Me
passage Of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act [AHERN of 1986. and was also a
member of the negotiating committee which developed the EPA asbestos in schools regulation. The
AHERA model of addressing asbestos hazards is sound. AHERA requires that local education
agencies (LF.ASI inspect primary and secondary school buildings tor asbestos, identify the need tor
responses to asbestos, describe appropriate response actions, establish procedures for ongoing
surveillance of ACM. establish an operations and maintenance 108M1 program, and implement other
measures necessary for proper asbestos management.

In October 1989, EPA announced that ninety-four percent of the nation's public school
districts and private schools had inspected school buildings and submitted management plans by the
dates required in AHERA The quality of Inspections and management plans has not yet been
evaluated. It is apparent, however, that many schools have not impleniented the plans Local unions
in Ohio and across the country have contacted AFSCME headquarters for assistance where local
education authorities have not taken steps necessary to protect their health.

AFSCME initiated a study to determine whether schools had implemr,,led important
elements of their management plans. as AHERA required by July 9, 1989 To answer thiS question.
the investigation focused on the extent to which schools had complied with notificatron, training, and
work ern-lice requirements specified rn the EPA Asbestos.ContainIng Materials in Schools Final Rule
Approximately fourihundred and fifty custodians and maintenance employees who work in schools
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that contain asbestos provided Information regarding asbestos management practices in Ohio scnooi
districts of va 'ng sizes throughout the State. The findings in this report clearly show that schools
have not im mented bast AHERA requirements necessary to prevent asbestos exposure for
workers, se nts, or other occupants.

The first issue examined was whether custodians and maintenance staff had been
informed of the locations of asbestos in the bundings they work Schools must provide all custodians
and maintenance workers with awareness traning which informs them of the locations of asbestos in
each school building in which they work. Schools are also required to post warning signs in routine
maintenance areas such as boiler rooms.

Eighty-four percent of respondents reported that they have received the mandatory
asbestos awareness training. However, rt appears that the training did not accomplish one of rts
principle objectives: who received training answered they had been told where all asbestos is located
Only sevemyhree percent of those As for additional notification requirements, only forty-one percent
of the school districts have complied with all of the following; informing staff of the locations of ACM,
providing awareness traininia. arid posting warning signs.

The next area investigated in this study concerns respiratory protection for school
personnel. Aocording to responses of Wilting service workers concerning their work assignments.
schools have not provided appropriate respiratory protection to their employees. Only thirty-four
percent of workers expected to respond to minor and major cesturbances of asbestos have been
issued respirators. Compoundng the problem, schools not only fated to issue respirators where
necessary, but most often did not follow the most basic elements of a required respiratory protection
program. Only thirty-two percent of those who had received a respirator responded that they were the
only one who used the respirator, had bean given a physical exam before receiving the respirator,
and had received a fit test.

The survey also examined the avalability of another type of protective equipment.
vacuumS with High-Effioiency Particulate Air Filters IHEPAI. Ordinary vacuum cleaners clo aot filter
out asbestos fibers; they merely recirculate the fibers bade into the air. HEPA-vacuums should be
used in cleaning operations invoheing asbestos, and during maintenance activities such as glove bag
operations used to repair asbestos-containing thermal pipe insulation. Only twenty percent of
respondents reported that a HEPAeracuum was available in their school(s) tor performing glove bag
operations or cleaning.

The study examined the extent to which appropnate work practices were being followed in
the schools. AHERA distinguishes between activities which disturb small amounts of asbestos versus
larger disturbances of ACM. For example, a minor fiber release episode is the falling or dislodging of
less than three linear or square feet of asbestos, while a major release involves more than three
linear or square feet. The AHERA regulation also specifies work practices for small scale, short
duration ISSM operations and maintenance and repair activities involving asbestos. Examples of
SSSO activities include repair of pipe insulation wfiich can be aentained In one glove bag,
replacement of an asbestos-contaning gasket or valve, or minor repairs to asbestos-containing
wallboard. In all these cases, repair and cleanup must be performed by woreers who have had a
minimum of two days of Varney, who use specified work practices, and are weahng respiratory
protection. Only thirty percent of tre custodans and maintenance workers expected to clean up small
amounts of asstos have been property trained and have been issued respirators. Further analys+s
showed that custodians received less training and equipment to propedy conduct small clean up and
repairs than did maintenance workers.

From the rervonses of our members. AFSCME learned that schools have Complied iess
frequently with AHERA requirements for major release episodes than for smaller incidents.
Responses to maior fiber release episodes must be conducted by accredited wonsers who have
received a minimum of three days training, only thirteen percent of custodians and maintenance
workers who are expected to clean up more than three feet of asbestos have been properly trained
ano have been issued a respirator. Once again, custodians have received less training and
equipment than maintenance staff

Appends El of the AHERA regulation describes certain activities which are prohibited
where asbestos-containing materials are involved. Examples of these activities include! dusting or
sweeping surfaces contaminated with asbestos, sandng fioor tiles, removing or shaking dry
ventilation fitters, using ordinary vacuum cleaners to clean up asbestos debns, and removing ceiling
tiles below areas which contain asbestos without weannig a respirator and cleanng the area of other
occupants. Unfortunately, the results of our study Showed that many of our members are expected to
perform these activities.
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Schools were required to use special cleaning methods such as wet-cleaning or HEPA-
vacuuming in all areas of a school building containing fnable asbestos or suspected asbestos after
the completion of the inspection and before the beginning of response actions other than activities
considered to be operations and maintenance. The purpose of these procedures is to clean up
asbestos fibers which have been previously released. Only twenty-six percent of respondents
reported that the special cleanings had been performed.

This study did not atteMpt 20 evaluate whether necessary abatement actions had been
taken, or the quality of such activities. However, respondents were asked whether they had been
engaged in abatement )cbs (removal, encapsulation, enclosure, or repair) involving large amounts of
asbestos. AHERA requires that accredited personnel (a minimum of 3days of training) conduct these
activities. Only twenty-one percent of custodians and maintenance workers engaged ii asbestos
abatement have received proper training and have been issued a respirator.

The last issue examined in this study concerns exposure monitoring requirerneets fo,
activities involving disturbance of asbestos. Exposures must be measured from representative
breathing zone air samples. Monitoring must also be performed unless an employer already has data
on employee exposures collected dunng similar operations. Schools have virtually ignored the
exposure monitoring requirements: Only four re4 indents in the entire survey reported ever having
worn an air sampling pump.

The survey responses of school custodians and maintenance workers clearly indicate that
LEAs are not adequately preventing asbestos exposure to workers and students. Based on all criterl
used, either a majonty or substantial portion of schools have not complied with AHERA .0(
satisfactorily implementing their management plans.

AHERA did not require 1...BAs to remove all asbestos in schools. As a result, there has
been a heavy reliance upon managing asbestos in place as the response action chosen to prevent
asbestos exposure While this is legal. certain procedures must be followed to prevent uncontrolled
disturbances of asbestos. Based upon the indicators used in this study, however, schools are doing a
poor job of managing asbestos in place The failure of LEAs to properly manage asbestos has
therefore subjected workers and students to unreasonable levels of asbestos exposure. and
continues to do so

More Meney end Better Enforcement Can Make AHERA Effective

The poor record of compliance can probably be explained in large part by the following

First, asbestos management is often a relatively expensise activity for schools. FI)moval
and other abatement costs can be prohibitive. Therefore, most schools have had to establish priorities
for areas requinng abatement actions versus those areas where managing asbestos in place through
an operations arid maintenance program is permitted. However, properly managing material in place
is also costly. and these expenses otten compete with other needs of school district budgets in all
cases where compliance has been a significant problem, local school authorities have cited a
shortage of funds as the main reason that they have not or cannot implement particular AHERA
requirements,

Unfortunately, Congress did not authorize sufficient funds to help schools address
asbestos problems as requi,e in AHERA Schools have had varying degrees of success in
channeling existing funds to asi i.tos management or finding new sources of revenue This has oat
been easy in a climate when sctiools have come under increasing public pressure to improve their
performance in providing quality education

Second, local school authorities often lack an understanding of AHERA arid tail to
appreciate the risks of asbestos AHERA allows 1.E.As to use their own employees to perform
asbestos management functions However, these individuals have net always received sufficent
trainIng tO carry out these responsibilities For some school officials, AHERA implementation has
been added to their other full time uoties. 1 hey have neither the time or knowledge to ensure
compliance on behalf of their school districts

School officials have also failed to appreciate the health riskS of asbestos exposure The
lack of knowledge contributes 10 a casual attitude about ensunng that the health protective measures
of AHURA are followed For most schools, AHE RA represents a sharp departure from traditional work
practices involving asbestos Complacency is reinforced by the long latency period of asbestos
related diseases Management's Inappropriate attitudes toward asbestos nave a direct hearing on the
attitudes arid behavior of all school employees Unless building Service workers receive effective

factors
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training, have proper equipment, and detect a sense of urgency concerning asbestos mailagement it
is unhkely that custodians and maintenance employees will have a sufficient appreciation of asbestos
dangers and the need to carefully follow procedures which are necessary to protect themselves and
others.

Third, EPA is responsibly for enforcement of AHERA unless EPA has granted s waiver to
a State to take over enforcement functions. AHERA granted EPA many enforcement tools. Under
AHERA, EPA may inspect schools and impose substantial fines and other penalties. The Agency may
assess criminal penalties for willful violations, and also obtain injunctive relief to respond to hazards
which pose art Imminent danger to human health. Unfortunately, the enforcement resources of EPA
are limited. and EPA has not demonstrated its will to vigorously enforce AHERA. EPA has_.yret to
make examples of schools for failure to comply, Schools are highly unfikely to be inspected by EPA. It
does not appear that the threat of EPA enforcement action has had a substantial deterrent effect on
LEAs who violate AHERA,

Conclusion

The Report on Ohio schools has implications for public and commercial buildings -Hie
presence of unidentified asbestos and uncontrolled disturbance of the material poses an
unreasonable health hsk to anyone exposed. AHERA is a necessary law that was passed to protect
school populations from deadly asbestos exposure There are areas in which AHERA could be
improved, such as training and work practioe requirements. However, the togic and procedures of
AHERA are sound tor preventing asbestos exposure. The same approach of identifying ACM and
determiniN appropriate responses to the presence of ACM is necessary in public and commercial
buildings. Amording to EPA estimates, hundreds of thousands of public and commercial buildings
contain asbestos. Based on a survey conduCted by the New York City De Penmen! of Environmental
Protection, there is reason to believe that the number of buildings which contain asbestos, and
damaged asbestos, may be even greater than EPA estimates,

AFSCME is not satisfied with the situation in whioh the school employees we represent
have better regulatory protections from asbestos than our members who work in nonschool settings
Asbestos is no less of a hazard to human health in other buildings. Therefore, we find it unacceptable
that AHERA is the only federal regulation which requires that asbestos in buildings be identified and
assessed for the current and potential hazard posed by the material. To remedy this situation,
AFSCME is currently involved in a lawsuit against the Environmental Protection Agency to force the
Agency to initiate a rulemaking that would require asbestos inspections of all public and commercial
buildings, and require apProenate responses where asbestos is found. It asbestos management in
schools is this poor despite relatively stringent regulation, the situation is certain to be more
dangerous in buildings where there are no equivalent laws.

To conclude, although there have been problems with implementation, SCHOOLS HAVE
CLEARLY, AND SUBSTANTIALLY IMPROVED THEIH EFFORTS TO ADDRESS ASBESTOS
SINCE THE PASSAGE OF AHERA. However, schools need far more financial resources if they are
to fully comply with AHERA, and thereby adequately protect school populations from asbestos
AHERA is not only essential for protecting school populations from asbestos, it Is the type of model
which is needed for other buildings.
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ATTACHMENT 1

ON THE CARCINOGENIC RISE OF ASBESTOS EXPOSURES IN BUILDINGS

William J. Nicholson, Ph.D.

Mount Sinai School of Medicine

Now York, NY 10029

The January 19, 1990 issue of Science magazine contained an article

by B. T. Mossman, J. Bignon, M. Corn, A. Seaton and S. S. L. Gael

that argues that exposure to chrysotile asbestos in U. S. schools

and other buildings is not a health risk nor is it in the

workplace, if current OSHA standards are met. Tbis argument is in

direct contradiction with the current basis of OSHA and EPA

regulation. The Mossman et al. argument is based largely on the

contention that chrysotile asbestos, the type most commonly found

in building materials, presents little, if any, carcinogenic risk,

although they ignore its potential for causing scarred lungs

(asbestosis). They are seriously wrong on both counts.

Ash caw::

Asbestos is a term given to six minerals which are fibrous,

resistant to dissolution by acid and alkaline solutions and stable

at high temperatures. The minerals are grouped into two classes,

serpentine and amphibole, on the basis of their mineral structures.

Chrysotile is the only sitrpantine asbestos mineral. The other

commercial asbestos minerals, amosite, crocidolits and

anthophyllits are in the amphibole class. So, too, are the fibrous

forms of tremolits and actinolite. These last two minerals,

however, were not mined commercially, but may be a contaminant of

commercial asbestos or other building product materials, such as

vermiculite. Amosits and crocidolite accounted for only 54 of tha

asbestos usage the U. S. over the years, but the usage of amosite

was largely in friable building products, such as thermal

insulation. Thus, the percentage usage of amphibole in such

materials WAN greater than 54.



153

Thazzaajavalatian Both chrysotile and amosite are commonly found

in thersal insulation, in pips covering and in block, although soLo

products contain only chrysotile. One type of thermal insulation

material usod aboard ship contains only amosite. Most asbestos

moments contain only chrysotile.

Fluffy, *cotton candy* surfacing aaterials can contain chrysotile

or amosite, occasionally even crocidolite. The camentitious

surfacing materials Usually contain chrysotile, although up to 10%

of the asbestos content of one product could -Imo tremolite, from

contamination of the vermiculite forming part of the mix. Textured

paints usually also contain only chrysotile.

Ottar products Prodominantly chrysotile asbestos was used for

reinforcing in floor tiles, heat resistant papers, siding and

shingles, and speckles. Current exposures from the presence of

these materials in buildings are much less than those from the

above two classes of materials.

Ths-sagliilealLiametanis

Mossman et al. subscribe to the "amphibole hypothesis," which they

use to suggest that little, if any, cancer risk arises from

exposure to chrysetile. They argue that the amphibole fibers of

asbestos have substantially greater carcinogenic potential than

chrysotile. This conjecture is based largely on the finding that

workers exposod occupationally to asbestos, including even

chrysotils miners, have more amphibole asbestos fibers in their

lungs than chrysotils fibers. This occurs because chrysotile

splits apart longitudinally in tissue and can partially dissolve

in body fluids. In contrast, amphibole fibers are less attacked

by body fluids and can be detected in the lungs of workers years

after exposure. The source of amphiboles in chrysotila miners'

2
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and millers' lungs is an approximately 1% contamination of the

chrysotile ore by tremolita. In workers exposed to both amphibole

and chrysotile asbestos fibers, there are likely to be substantial

quantities of amphibole fibers present and, after years, relatively

little chrysotile. The Mossman et al. article use this finding to

claim that because workers have more amphiboles in their haws At

thetime they died it must have been those fibers that caused the

observed disease, ignoring the fact the cancer process spans

several decades. It also is a fallacious epidemiological argument

as can be seen by considering the results of mortality studies of

asbestos exposed workers analyzed in terms of exposure.

There are several studies" that provide information on both the

amount of excess disease that a group of workers has and the amount

of asbestos exposure that produced it. These are shown in Table

1. In addition to the listed studies, two studies of friction

product manufacturing provide similar exposure response

They were not included because the exposures were very low, each

had epidemiological uncertainties and any estimates of risk made

from them would be extremely uncertain. In one study" workers were

banned from smoking at work since the er"ly 1930s; thus, their lung

cancer mortality is likely to have boon affected. In the other

studP an unusually high risk of lung cancer was observed overall,

but no relationship with exposure was observed.

Lunitcancer There are many studies that have shown that workers

who nave been exposed to chrysotile die of lung cancer more than

expected. These investigations include those supported and

sponsored by the Quebec Asbestos Mining Association. They are

unequivocal in this regard.

The importance of this is that in most groups of workers exposed

to asbestos, lung cancer--a neoplasm different and distinct from

mesothelloma--kills three times as many workers as does

3



155

masotheliosa. Thus, it is not appropriate to discuss the cancer

causing properties of chrysotile without acknowledging the

extensive data establishing that the fiber causes cancer and

asbestosis in the man who mine and mill it and among those who

later use the fiber in chrysotile textile production.

It is, therefore, of value to analyze the asbestos-related lung

cancer experience and to do so specifically in terms of exposure.

In reviewing Table I it can be seen that the risk of lung cancer

ner_fiber exmosure is very similar for all exposure circumstances

except that of chrysotile mining and milling. The increased risk

in the three predominantly chrysotile studies ranged from 1,0-2.8%

per f-yr/cm3. Among the remaining nonmining studies the percentage

increase in lung cancer for a one year exposure to I f/cm3 ranged

from 0.51 to 4.34, irrespective of the type of fibers used in the

production process. Those risks are identical to those of

predominantly cbrysotile exposures, within the statistical

uncertainties of the data. Even a pure crocidolite exposure in

mining demonstrated a similar risk, 2.1-5.84 increase per f-

yr/c=3.3 Were the "amphibole hypothesis" to hwid, the textile risks

would have been up to 100-fold less. Mossman et al. suggest the

high chrysotile textile risk might be due to "solvent and oils used

in textile production." There is absolutely no evidence for this,

Although studies of chrysotile mining and willing demonstrate An

excess risk of lung cancer, the riak is low= than seen in studies

of other asbestos workers and, particularly, studiem of production

workers exposed only to chrysotile or 984 chrysotile. The origin

of this lower risk is not fully understood, but part of the

difference may lie in the different fiber size distributions

between the mining and milling of chrysotile and its use in a

textile plant or other production facility. Animal exper,,ments in

the U. S.17 and Germane Lndicate that the fibers most likely to

produce cancer are too thin to be observed by a light microscope.

4
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In the mine and mill the chrysotile fiber bundles have only been
partially broken apart. Many of the fibers ars large and easily
counted; some are curly and nonrespirable. When shipped to a
chrysotile textile mill the fibers are broken apart during carding
and in the high-speed spinning and weaving processes thin fibers
may split off from the threads; many of those are not visible in
a light microscope. Thus, in the air of a textile plant the
percentage of thin, uncounted but highly cancerous fibers can be
much greater than in the mina and mill air--and a greater cancer
risk is observed for the same measured fiber exposure.

Mesothelioma The risk of mesothelioma per fiber exposure in three
studies where it can be estimated directly is identical for
exposures to 98% chrysotile + 2 % crocidolite, 604 chrysotile + 40%
amanita and 100% amosite (Column 5 of Table 1). Additionally, in
the other studies where the mosotheliome risk cannot be estimated
directllt, the ratio of the number of mesotheliomas to excess lung
cancers is the same, within the uncertainties of the estimations
(Col. 6). Were mesotheliomas produced only by amphiboles, on.
would have expected large differences in the two measures of
mesothslioma risk between studies 1-3 and 4-7 or 8. The same
picture is portrayed by the more than 30 studies for which little
or no exposure Information in available. Again the ratios of
mesothelioma to excess lung cancer were the same for exposures to
97%+ chrysotile, 100% amosite and mixtures of chrysotile, amosite
and crocidolite, within statistical uncertainty. Only 100%
crocidolits exposures appeared to have A greater ratio, about twice
that of predominantly chrysotile.14

ramaxlmantaljinizalsAria The above human data are corroborated by
similar data obtained by J. C. Wagner19 in experimental inhalation
studies with rats. Table 2 shows the results he obtained on the
number of cancers produced by exposure to equal weight
concentrations of different varieties of asbestos. In terms of

5
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fiber concentrations, the crocidolite concentrations would have

been about 2.25 tises less and the amosits concentrations 3.5 times

less than those of chrysotile. Thus, the number of cancers
produced per fiber exposure is virtually identical for all three

asbestos varieties (as in most human exposure circumstances). In

this research Wagner also measured the amount of asbestos retained

in the lung after conclusion of the two-year experiment. He found

that the weight of amphibole fibers in the lungs we* about 15 times

the weight af chrysotils, even though the air the various animals

breathed contained equal weights of both asbestos types. Thus, the

chrysotile fibers, although conveying an equal (or greater) risk

of malignancy than the amphibole fibers, wore clearly less

persistent in lung tissue than the amphiboles. Further, solvents

and oils could not have played a rola in these experimental
results.

The tremolitmLoontaminatiomof chxvsotile

One feature of the chrysotile most commonly used in the United

States, that from mines in Canada, is that the ore is naturally

contaminated with about it tremolits. an amphibole fiber. Mossman
et al. note that the risk of developing mesothelioms in the
Canadian chrysotile miners is directly related to their lang
content of traeolite, implying that it in the tremolito that caused

the masotheliomas. That conclusinn is erroneous. Since the
tremolite is proportional to the aso4nt of chrysotilo inhaled, it

is a measure of chrysotile dose. Thus, there is as strong a
correlation with ohrysotile dose as with tramolits lung burden.

There are at least 67 mesotheliomas in Canadian chrysotile miners

according to a statement of C. McDonald at a 1988 asbestos
conference in Ottave. Additionally, a recent etude of 92
autopsies of Quebec chrysotile miners and millers showed that six

wore due to pleural mosothelioma, about the same proportion as

6
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seen, for example, in asbestos insulation workers. To attribute

all these masothalioses to the small contaminant of tramolite is

wrong because of the false logic discussed above and because of the

dimensions of ths tremolits fibers are of a less carcinogenic size

than commercial asphibole asbestos varieties. Fibers longer than

10 am and thinner than 0.8 Am are shown to be the most

carcinogenic." While tha tremolite fibers ars certainly

carcinogenic, they are likely to be less so than commercial amosite

or crocidolite (and also chrysot-le), because they tend to be

thicker and shorter. Finally, the point of which fibers produce

cancer in miners and millers is rather moot, as the tremolits

fibers are not removed during milling and are part of the

chrysotile mixture used in various asbestos products.

Mossman et al. present data on air concentrations measured in

buildings and in the outside aira and use the data to make
estimates of risk for building exposures. These exposure data
suffer two fundamental weaknesses. First, as evident by the fact

that no asbestos fibers were observed in 83% of the samples
analyzed, inadequate analytical techniques were used. (Even in the

air of the Grand Canyon, occasional fibers are seen, when proper

techniques are used.) In order to obtain a meaningful estimate of

an asbestos concentration, at least four fibers should be counted

in each sample analyzed. It would appear that at least ten times

more filter arse should have been scanned in these samples.

Further, as acknowledged by the air study authors, their results

indicated building levels ten times lower than the three othar

studies of asbestos air concentrations in buildings," suggesting

the possibility of analytical error.

Second, short-ters air sampling is not likely to reflect actual

long-term contamination levels in building circumstances.

7
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Contamination of the air in buildings occurs largely from episodic

releases during maintenance work or from physical abuse to the

material. The very act of sampling alters the likelihood of such

activities. Building maintenance or optional repair work will not

be schoduled by a building manager when sampling is in progress.

Sawyer" thawed that the magnitude of episodic relOAAAS could be

substantial. Table 3 presents data from his study of short-term

exposures which were encountersd during various maintenance

activities in a library building containing asbestos surfacing

material. AA car be seen short-term concontrations as high as 18

f/cm3 can occur from routine maintenance.

rurther. clinical evidence of asbestos disease has boon

demonstrated among building service workers. C. Olivar et al.27

have found that more than 40% of the X-rays of 52 school custodial

and maintenance parsonnel had abnormalities, primarily pleural
plagues, that are characteristic of asbestos exposure.

Additionally, 27% of the workers had a forced vital capacity that

was less than 80% predicted and 17% had a significant reduction in

lung diffusing capacity. These are the two pulmonary function

tests that are most affected by exposure to asbestos. Similar

findings have been observad in studies of New York city Board of

Education school custodians.

RialLattimataLissmintithling-inuasua

Mossman et al. disaiss any concarn for exposures to 0.002 f/cm3,

1/10C the allowed occupational level and approximately 10 times

background asbestos levels. It has been calculated that the
lifetime risk for a 11 year exposure at this level, beginning at

age 5, ranges from 4-12 asbestos cancer deaths per 100,000 exposed,

based on risk estimates be the three U. S. agencies/4'2" For a

school population of 20,0(0,000 pupils, this translates into 800-

2,400 cases of cancer. When evaluating widespread environmantal

8
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risks, the focus is properly on the population risks, rather than

the individual risks. Fortunately, because of action already

taken, the average asbestos concentration in all school buildings

is less than 0.002 f/cm0. However, even if exposures In $chools

were as low as the 0.00024 suggested by Roseman et al., the

lifetime mortality for an exposed school population of 20 million

would still range from 100 to 300 asbestos cancers. Moreover/

MoSsMen et al. focus on background amounts of asbestos, giving

short shrift to high exposures, which are not sampled, that occur

during damage or maintenance. They do acknowledge that ". .brief,

intense exposures to asbestos might occur.."; their solution is

*worker education."

Finally, it is necessary to consider the risk assessment

projections of Housman et al. in an ethical context. Rather than

compare asbestos risks with voluntary risks (sacking, school

football) or risks that remain high despite expenditures of

substantial public and private money (aircraft and highway

accidents), it is worthwhile to compare thou with other

involuntary, environmental risks that are controlled by regulatory

agencius (pesticide exposures, drinking water contamination). In

a rev4ew/° of regulatory actions taken by the FDA CPSC and EPA It

was found that for estimated population risks exceeding 1

death/year, the individual lifetime risks were usually regulated

if they exceeded 1/1,000,000 for a lifetiss exposure. Only eight

of 31 carcinogenic exposure circumstances that exceeded this level

were not regulated. They involved saccharin, aflatoxin,

formaldehyde and polycyclic organic matter. Average asbestos

school building risks are from 0.5-10 per 100,000 for only a 13

year exposure. In some schools with particular problems the risks

could be much higher. Thus, the risks that the EPA is attempting

to reduce in school buildings by their AHERA rogulatioe are in the

mainstream of regulatory action by the U. S. government.

9
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The EYA doer not require that asbestos be removed in school

buildings. It doss require that buildings be inspected for

asbestos and, if asbestos material is found, an operations and

maintenance program be put in place. The program involves

notification of building workers and the public, training of

workers to prevent release of asbestos during their activities,

and repair of damaged asbestos saterial or its replacement, if

future damage cannot be prevented. When it must be undertaken, EPA

requires that removal be conducted in a highly controlled manner

and that clearance monitoring criteria be done. If the EPA's

requirements and recommendations are followed, the risk' to workers

will be minimized and residual building contamination will be

prevented.

canialiaisum

1. Both human and animal data strongly demonstrate that chxysotile

asbestos is as potent a carcinogen to the lung as any other

variety of asbestos.

2. The data also demonstrate a substantial risk of mesothelioma

from exposure to chrysotile. There appears to be no difference

in the potency of chrysotile and amosite for producing

mesothalioma. However, exposures to pure crocidolite, which Is

rarely used in the U. S., may carry a twn-fold greater risk.

3. Uncontrolled activities, in buildings have led to substantial

asbestos exposures and disease among building employees.

4. while individual cancer risks to building users are much lowr

than those of asbestos exposed workers, they are similar to

other environmental risks that have been regulated by government

agencies. Further, because of the widespread use of asbestos

in buildings, and the millions of individuals with potential

exposure, community risks can become substantial, in the absence

of proper measures to prevent unnecessary exposures.

10
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ATTACHMENT 2

AFSCME SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The study, *Report Card on Asbestos: Ohio Schools Get Failing Marks', investigated
whether primary and secondary schools in Ohio have complied with a number of critical
provisions required by the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act [AHERN.
Unfortunately, schools across Ohio have done a very pOor iob of implementing AHERA's
requirements.

Although there have been problems with complialce, it would be wrong, dead wrong,
to conclude that AHERA was a bad idea. AHERA is an important law which is necessary to
protect all school occupants from deadly asbestos. Custodians, maintenance staff, and othor
building service workers are at great risk because their activities frequently result in peak
exposures where asbestos has not been identified and appropriate precautions have not been
taken. AHERA was enacted because asbestos in buildings is an unreasonable risk unless the
locations of asbestos are identified and appropriate actions are taken where asbestos is found.

The findings in this report clearly show that Ohio Local Education Authorities (LEAS)
have not implemented basic AHERA requirements necessary to prevent workers, students, or
other occupants from being exposed to asbestos. While AHERA did not mandate that schools
remove all asbestos-containing materials (ACK from the schools, the law does require that
schools follow certain procedures to property manage asbestos in place. This study has
discovered that schools have failed to implement a number of measures essential to properly
control asbestos. In the absence of such measures, it must be assumed that workers and
students have and continue to be exempt to asbestos.

A number of factors were used as indicators to evaluate the schools' performance. The
investigation focused on the extent to which schools had properly notified workers of the
locations of asbestos, issued respirators and other equipment, provided training, and were
following required work practices. School custodians and maintenance workers provided
information regarding asbestos management practices In their schools, Poor compliance with
AHERA was reported in the following areas: Only 68 percent of custodians and maintenance
staff have been informed of the locations of asbestos; only 53 percent of employees reported
that required warning signs have been posted in their schools; only 30 percent of employees
engaged in activities involving small amounts of asbestos have had proper training and have
been issued a respirator; only 13 percent of employees who are engaged in activities involving
more than small amounts of asbestos have had proper training and have been issued a
respirator; only 32 percent of workers who have been issued respirators have their own
respirators and have received fit testing and required medical exams; and only 20 percent of
schools have HEPA-vacuums available for clean up and repair of asbestos.

Additional asbestos management procedures were not adequately followed This
included a failure to perform required special cleanings to decontaminate areas of previously
released asbestos fibers. Building service workers were also expected to engage in "prohibited
activities" where asbestos is involved.

The tollowing recommendations are based upon the findings of this study and other
efforts to ensure proper implementation of AHERA nationwide:

"t
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1. The Federal Government should Increase funding to the schools Ix asbes,os-
related activities. Federal appropriations have not been sufficient to address -450.}estos issues
in schools. Asbestos removal, other abatement actions, or properly managine material in place
can be a financial burden on schools. In all cases where compliance hat; Eicen a significant
problem, local school authorities have cited a shortage of funds as the primary reason that they
have not or cannot implement particular AHERA requirements.

2. All levels of school staff engaged In decisions and actions incoming asbestos
should receive additional and improved training. Poor compliance with AHERA has also
resulted because school officials have failed to appreciate the risks of asbestos exposure.
Their lack of knowledge contributes to casual attitudes about asbestos and a continuation of
traditionally dangerous work practices Building service workers have not received the training
they need to protect themselver, and others from asbestos exposure.

3. The Environmental Protection Agency [EPA) should be given additional funds,
or direct more of its existing resources for enforcement of asbestos regulations. The
lack of effective enforcement has also contributed to the problem. EPA has the responsibility to
enforce AHERA and other asbestos regulations, but does not have the resources, nor
apparently the will to aggressively meet its enforcement obligations.

4. A regulation should be issued which requires public and commercial building
owners to inspect their buildings for asbestos and implement appropriate response
actions where asbestos Is found. AHEHA is the type of model which is needed for other
buildings. The AHERA approach of identifying ACM and determining appropriate responses to
the presence of ACM is necessary in public and commercial buildings. According to EPA
estimates, hundreds of thousands of public and commercial buildings contain asbestos.
Asbestos is no less of a hazard to workers and occupants in nonschool buildings. All asbestos
fibers damage human tissue, regardless of the type of building, It asbestos management in
schools is this poor despite relatively stnngent regulation, the situation is almost certain to be
more dangerous in public and commercial buildings where there are no equivalent laws.

AFSCME also calls upon the State of Ohio to increase its efforts to ensure compliance
with AHERA by taking the following actions: (1) The State of Ohio should provide grants and
loans for school districts to supplement local and federal resources; (2) the State of Ohio
should provide training and technical assistance for school personnel to help them meet
AHERA requirements (3) the State of Ohin should coordinate enforcement activities with
Federal EPA; and (:)i the State of Ohio should provide asbestos medical examiiiations for
school personnel v+.'ig have been exposed to asbestos tt is important to identity those who
have been adversciy affected by asbestos so they malt receive medical and legal assistance.
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INTRODUCTION

This study was conducted to determine whether local education authorites (LEAs)
are protecting school populations from exposure to asbestos as required by the
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) of 1996. To answer this question,
the irwestigation focuSed on the extent to which schools had complied with notification,
training, and work practiCe requirements specified in the Environmental Protection
Agency's (EPA) Asbestos-Containing Materials in Schools Final Rule. The findings in this
report clearly show that LEAs have not implemented basic AHERA requirements
necessary to prevent asbestos exposure for workets, students, or other occupants.
Possible explanations for the lack of compliance, as well as policy implications are
discussed in the conclusion.

BACKGROUND

The health effects of asbestos have been csearly established. In its preamble to
its 1986 asbestos regulation, the Occupational Safety and Health Administration stated
that 'OSHA is aware of no instance in which exposure to a toxic substance has more
dearly demonstrated detrimental health effects on humans than has asbestos exposure.'
EPA and OSHA have both stated that no safe threshold has been established for
asbestos. The passage of AHERA and the 1982 school inspection regulations effectively
recognized that asbestos-containing materials (ACM) In buildings pose an unreasonable
risk which is addressed by Inspection and appropriate response actions.

EPA has repeatedly recognized that custodians, maintenance staff, and other
building service workers are at great risk because their activities frequently result in peak
exposure episodes. In 1988, the EPA STUDY OF ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS IN
PUBLIC BUILDINGS, A REPORT TO CONGRESS, stated:

Service workers may encounter higher episodic exposures, particularly if their
activities disturb ACM. They appear equally at risk, whether employed ir public or
commercial buildings or in schools.

AHERA was enacted because Congress found that EPA's 1982 school inspection
rule was woefully inadequate. AHERA required LEAs to inspect primary and secondary
school buildings for asbestos; identify the need for responses to asbestos, describe
appropriate response actions, establish procedures for ongoing surveillance of ACM,
establish an operations and maintenance ped4.4) program, and implement other
measures necessary for proper asbestos management.

The asbestos in schools rule was developed through a process ot negotiated
rulemaking. Participants of the negotiating committee included a wide range of interest
groups that included, among others, labor unions, National PTA, school boards and
school administrators, state health departments, asbestos consultants and contractors,
and former manufacturers of asbestos products.



171

The American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME)
was a member of the negotiating committee. AFSCME is a labor union of 1.3 million
members representing a wide range of job classifications primarily in state and local
government, hospitals, and non-profit organizations. AFSCME represents school
employees across the country, and many thousands more custodial and maintenance
workers in non-school buildings. Many union members and retirees have died or
become seriously Ill as the result of their exposure to asbestos in buildings.

In October 1989, EPA announced that ninety-four percent of the nation's public
school districM and private schools had inspected school buildings and submitted
management plans by dates required in AHERA. The quality of inspections and
management plans has not yet been evaluated. Even where management plans have
been submitted, it is apparent that many schools have not implemented the plans. Local
unions across the country have contacted AFSCME headquarters for assistance where
LEAs have not taken steps necessary to protect their health. Therefore, this study was
initiated to evaluate the extent to which schools had implemented important elements of
their management plans, as AHERA required by July 9, 1989.

METHODOLOGY

A two-page survey was distributed to school custodial and maintenance staff in
Ohio through two of AFSCME's affiliate organizations: the Ohio Association of Public
School Employees (OAPSE/AFSCME Local 4) and AFSCME District Council 8.
Custodians and maintenance staff were asked whether tey had been notified of the
locations of asbestos in their buildings, if they had received training appropriate to their
job duties, and whether proper work practices were being followed in the schools in
which they wori<ed. Four hundred and forty-six surveys were received from union
members who worked in buildings with ACM (three hundred and thirty-two custodians,
one hundred and seven maintenance workers, and seven without a job title). The
employees who participated in the study are employed by school districts of varying
sizes throughout Ohio.

FINDINGS

Notification of ACM Locations

LEAs are required by AHERA to notify workers of the locations of ACM through
a number of mechanisms. All custodians and maintenance workers must receive an
awareness training which informs them of the locations of ACM in each school building
in which they wok. A second method of communicating the locations of ACM is to post
warning signs in routine maintenance areas such as boiler rooms. Warning signs must
be prominently displayed and attached immediately adjacent to ACM and suspected
ACM.

2
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Compliance by LEM with nodlication requirements varies. Bghty-tour percent of
respondents repotted Met they have recaVed the ma sbestos tameness

However, it *pears Met the training did not a nØlsh one ct t PranciPle
tem

buthiraIONAILSOlitglikm

Table I incktdes die rate d LEA compliance with additional notiticaticn
reqtsiriments. IV_ I I . II tO , to , Itt

I Ill 1 S. t o Ot.', V I I I t I o tv.,..ti 1.

Respirators

According to responses of building service workers concerning their work
assignments. LEAs have not provided appropriate respiratory protection to their
employees. One hundred and twelve respondents said they were engaged in activities
that mre considered rNnor fiber retease episodes (the release of less than three linear
or square feet c4 ACM), or mepr release episodes (more than three linear or square
feet). None of these workers should be issued anything less than a hair mask dual-
calridge HEPA-equIPPed resPirlitor. pl1tin1talLESIBIDOCILSLYMISINIA2glfaftf8Q
O.,t1ve ; 1. V tt,4 le ; ;..,.,
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The study group wits also asked whether LEAs have complied with OSHA and
EPA respiratory protection requirements. Those who had received a respirator were
asked whether they were the only one who used the respirator, had been given a
physical awn before receiving the issplrator, and whether they had reoehred a fit test.
LEAs not only failed to Issue respirators where necessary, but most often did not follow
the mast basic elements of a required respiratory protection program. These results are
summarized in Table 2.

Table 2.
LEA CompilSice

Respiratory Protection Program
For Those Vita; Were Issued Respirators

% of LEA
C2030$1323

Only one who uses the respirator

Had physical exam before receiving 42
respirator

Received respirator fit test 51

Mswered yes to alf questions about 32
resciralory protection

HEPA-vacuums

Ordinary vacuum cleaners do not filter out asbestos fibers; they merely recirculate
the fibers back into the air. Vacuums equipped with High-Efficiency Particulate Air filters
(HERA) should be used in cleaning operaVons Involving ACM, and during maintenance
activities such as glove bag operations used to repair asbestos-containing thermal pipe
insulation,

sltA.L11.1 LI a ::. 4,-;.e.

4
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Oparations and Maintsnanca (OW

Tasks kwo kfilig Small Anomie of Asbestos

AHEM distinguishes batmen activities which disturb an U amounts of asbestos

failing or of less Mai three linear or square feet of asbestos, wile a major
versus disturbances of ACM. Far example, a minor fiber Mean episode Is the

release kwass more then three Sneer or square feet. The AHERA regulation also
specifies work practices for smail scale, short duration (SSSD) operations and
maktenence and rep* activities Involving asbestos. &armies of SSSO activities
include rep* of pipe kisulation which can be contained In one glove bag, replacement
of an asbestos-containing gasket or valve, or minor repairs to asbestos-containing
wakboard. in ail these cases, rep* and dean up must be performed by those with a
minimum of two days of tritirMg, who use specified work practices, and are wearing
respiratory protection.

One hundred and two respondents answered they were expected to clear f.
than three feet of asbestos debris. Table 3 demonstrates that LEAs have Lo.
employees to dean up small releases without appropriate training and reep :
protection. 0.11 '1 11 ., L.'. '1 s111 I 1 11 II,. 1,, 1 ,,

..11 11,0, . , 4.... 1 0.1* s, 1,.. 7 s. Z.*

resgintar. Further analysis shows that custodians gat less training and equipment to
properly conduct small dean up and repairs than do maintenance workers.

Table 3.
LEA Compiiance With

Ensuring Personnel Are Property Trained and Equipped
For Duties invoking Small Amounts of ACM

Of Respondente Who Wert Expected to % of LEA
Clean Less yhan ire, Feet of ACM C2011411024

Had at least 2 days of training 44

Have been issued a respirator 38

Hod at least 2 days of training 30*
and have been issued* =Pram

* 18/ of custodians had proper training and a respirator, compared
to 58% of makitenance workers with proper training and a respirator.
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Actes which Distut More Than Smtil Arnounts of ACM

Responses to mator fiber release episodes must be conducted by accredited
woriceis who have received a minimum of three days training. Table 4 demonstrates that

than tor ember incidents.
LEAs have coMpried less witt=a4simfastasigginuad inagifflowtomAHERArequirements tor major release episodes

it II 1. ' 1 t
talaisimilsweloonissimiampicaligc Once again, custodians have received less
training and equipment than maintenance staff.

Tabie 4.
LEA Compliance With

Ensuring Personnel Are Properly Trained and Equipped
For Duties Involving More Than Small. Amounts of ACM

Number Who Had
Number Who Are Expected Three Days ot Training % ot LEA

taiamtdaraillcinilatelet and a Respirator camEamil

Custodians 41 2 5

Maintenance -rkers 13 5 38

AU 54 7 13

Prohibited Activit:s

Appendix B of the AHERA regulation describes certain activities which are
prohibited where ACM is involved. Table 5 highlights five of the "prohibited activities" and
the extent to which respondents reported that employees in their schools were expected
to conduct these activities.

6
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Initial Cleanings

Schools were required to use special cleaning mythods such as wet-cleaning or
HEPA-vacuuming in all areas of a school building containing friable ACM or suspected
ACM after the completion of the inspection and before the beginning of response actions
(other than O&M), unless such dealing had been performed in the previous six months.
The purpose of these procedures is to clean up asbestos fibers which have been
previously released
denaingolactivon_pedixava

0.11 at= k. MI. 14.1. 14.." 11114

Asbestos Abatement

This study did not attempt to evaluate whether necessary abatement actions had
been taken, or the quality of such activities. However, respondents were asked whether
they had been engaged in abatement jobs (removal, encapsulation, enclosure, or repair)
Involving large amounts Of ACM. AHERA requires accredited perst. nnel (a minimum of
3 days of training) to conduct these activities. Fourteen custodiark, and ten maintename
workers reported performing abatement fobs. Tabls 6 shows that onti_twergyins

,:nip : 4 u: - 30,1. '1.MM! ;all

regehulacaxItaicingittli
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Exposure Monitoring

LEAs must comply with current OSHA and EPA exposure monitorinv requirements
for activities involving disturbance of ACM. Exposures must be measured from
representative breathing zone * samples. Monitoring must also be performed unless
an employer already has data on employee exposures collected during similar
operations. LEAs have virtually ignored the exposure monitbring requirements: Qaty
t , I I I- = I I .. I. '& . ti 1Ai

CONCLUSION

The survey responses of schoci custodians and maintenance workers dearly
indicate that LEAs afe not adequately preventing asbestos expc ure to workers and
students. This study used notification of the locations of ACM, availability of respirators
and other equipment, training, and work pectices required in AHERA as Indicators of
the effectiveness of schools asbestos man igement programs. Based on all criteria
used, either a mafority Or substantial portion f LEAs have not complied with AHERA by
satisfactorily implementing their managems it plans.

AHERA did not require LEAs to remove ag asbestos in schools. As a result, there
has been a heavy reliance upon managing ACM in place as the response action &town
to prevent asbestos exposure. While this is legal, certain procedures must be Wowed
to control disturbance of asbestos. Based upon the indicators used in this study,
however, LEAs are doing a peqr job c4 managing asbestos in place. The failure c' LEAs

Tnre=manage asbestos has therefore subfected workers and students to
levels of asbestat exposure, and continues to do so. This poor record

of ccopilance is probably explained by the following:
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1. Casts

Asbestos management is often a relatively expensive activity for LEAs. Removal
and other abatement costs can be prohibitive. Therefore, n.ost schools have had to
establish priorities for areas requiring abatement actions versus those areas where
managing ACM in place through an op.irations and maintenance program is pemnitted.
Hi:Meyer, property managing material in place IS also costly, and these expenses often
compete with other neede of school district budgets. Training, respirators, equipment,
storage, and dispOSal of ACM are examples of Items which can strain budgets. In all
cases where compliance has been a significant problem, local school authorities have
cited a shortage of funds as the main reason that they have not or cannot implement
particular AHERA requirements.

Unfortunately, Congress did not authorize sufficient funds to help schools address
asbestos problems as required in AHERA. Schools have had varying degrees of
success in channeling existing funds to asbestos management or finding new sources
of revenue. This has not been easy in a climate when schools have come under
increasing public pressure to improve their performance in providing quality education.

2. LEA Awareness and Attitudes Concerning AHERA and Asbestos

Local school authorities often lack an understanding of AHERA and fail to
appreciate the risks of asbestos. AHERA allows LEAs to use their own employees to
perform asbestos management responsibilities. However, these individuals have not
always received suracient training to carry out these functions. For some school officials,
AHERA implementation has been added to their other full time duties. They have neither
the time or knowledge to ensure compliance on behalf of the LEA

School officials have also failed to appreciate the health risks of asbestos
exposure. The lack of knowledge contributes to a casual attitude about ensuring that
the health protective measures of AHFRA are followed. For most LEAs, AHERA
represents a sharp departure from traditional work practices involving ACM.
Complacency is reinforced by the long latency period of asbestos-related diseases.
Inappropriate attitudes of management toward asbestos have a direct bearing on the
attitudes and behavior of all school employees. Unless building service workers receive
effective training, have appropriate equipment, and detect a sense of urgency concerning
asbestos management, it is unkely that custodians and maintenance employees will
have a sufficient appreciation of asbestos dangers and the need to carefully follow
procedures which are necessary to protect themselves and others.

3. Enforcement

EPA is responsible for enforcement of AHERA unless EPA has granted a waiver
to a state to take over enforcement functions. AHERA granted EPA many enforcement
tools. The law allows EPA to inspect schools ant' impose substantial fines and other
penalties. The Agency may assess criminal penalties for willful violations, and L'Iso obtain
injunctive relief to respond to hazards which pose an imminent danger to humon hsalth.
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Unfortunately, the enforcement resources of EPA are limited, and EPA has not
demonstrated its will to vigorously enforce AHERA. EPA has yet to make examples of
schools for failure to comply. LEM are highly unlikely to be inspected by EPA. It does
not appear that the threat of EPA enforcement action has had a substantial deterrent
effect on LEAs wtio violate AHERA.

Implications for Public and Commercial Buildings

The presence of unidentified ACM arid uncontrolled disturbance of ACM poses
an unreasonable health risk to anyone exposed. AHERA is a necessary law that was
passed to protect school populations from deadly asbestos exposure. Although AHERA
could be improved in areas such as training and work practice requirements, the logic
and procedures of AHERA are sound for preventing asbestos exposure. The same
approach Of identifying ACM and determining appropriate responses to the presence of
ACM is necessary in public and commercial buildings. According to EPA estimates,
hundreds of thousands of public and commercial buildings contain asbestos. Asbestos
is no less of a hamrd to workers and occupants of non-school buildings. All asbestos
fibers damage human tissue, regardless of the type of building.

10
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Mr. LUKEN. Thank you very much, Mr. August. We're hearing a
lot about a lot of things.

Ms. West, legislative chair of the Virginia PTA, representing the
National Parent-Teacher Association. Welcome to you.

STATEMENT OF SARAH WEST

MS. WEST. My name is Sarah West. I'm the legislative chair of
the Virginia PTA, a State affiliate of the National PTA. I have
been an active PTA member for 30 years and currently serve as a
member of the Washington Area Legislative Service Volunteers, a
local organization of PTA leaders from the Washington, DC, Mary-
land, and Virginia areas.

On behalf of our 6.8 million members, I appreciate this opportu-
nity to testify before your subcommittee on the problem of asbestos
in schools and specifically on H.R. 3677, legislation to reauthorize
AHSAA. My oral presentation is a condensed version of the Na-
tional PTA's written statement that will be a part of the record.

Supporters of H.R. 3677 recognize the critical need for the
ASHAA program and can appreciate the many problems schools
across the country currently face in addressing the asbestos situa-
tion. I can relate as an example an asbestos crisis in my own State
that continues today. In York County, VA, two elementary schools
were closed this current academic year when siglificant asbestos
contamination was discovered. Over 1,200 children were displaced
and thousands of dollars worth of textbooks and supplies had to be
destroyed. To simply recount the events of the York County situa-
tion does not convey the unseen emotional toll the parents, teach-
ers and students at these schools have experienced, not to mention
the financial pressures abatement work will place on the county's
school budget.

I wish this were a lone example of the asbestos problem in
schools, but it is not. In Tennessee, where I am from, I served as
the State PTA president and I saw school boards wrestling with the
amount of money that was going to have to be spent on asbestoi
removal, and so I'm very well aware of the different aspects of hurt
that this situation can create in a school system.

I am not an asbestos expert or a scientist. I am LI parent, a
grandparent, and an advocate for all children. I do know that there
are many schools with significant asbestos hazards and that insuffi-
cient Federal funding is available to help them. I also know we
must support Federal legislation now in place, specifically ASHAA
and AHERA, if we hope to eliminate this unnecessary risk..

Throughout its long involvement in this issue, the National PTA
has remair ed strongly convinced that there is no known level at
which exposure to asbestos is considered safe. Fifteen million chil-
dren and 1.5 million school employees are exposed to friable asbes-
tos-containing materials at more than 44,000 schools nationwide.
Children, be. ause of their longer remaining lifespan and higher
rates of breathing, are more susceptible to the dangers posed by ex-
posure to asbestos than are adults.

Knowing this, the National PTA cannot sit back and wait while
the experts prolong the debate about whether asbestos is hazardous
or not. We must now ensure that children are no longer exposed to
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this environmental hazard in our schools. The need for the ASHAA
program and the increased demand for funding has been demon-
strated.

For 1990, LEA's requested $403 million for abatement activities,
and $43.4 million was awarded, enough to fund only about 11 per-
cent of the total requested. Since 1984, only about 16 percent of the
schools applying for ASHAA funds have received awards. Even
among those projects that have been categorized as priority one,
the most ha'hardous, less than one-third have been funded.

Given these figures, we are extremely disappointed that the
House Appropriations Subcommittee on VA-HUD-Independent
Agencies, in just completing markup of its fiscal year 1991 funding
budget, appropriated $48 million for the next year. We had hoped
that this figure would have been higher, especially since the House
Budget Committee report had recommended that ASHAA be given
priority for increased funding this year. Increased Federal funding
for ASHAA is critical to assure that school districts are not forced
to postpone the purchase of needed educational supplies or materi-
als in order to fund asbestos projects.

In addition to increased funding, the National PTA is pleased
that the EPA has agreed to examine the financial need criteria
used to determine the school district's eligibility for ASHAA
awards. We also want to review amendments to the bill that would
impose worker training standards and requirements on asbestos
contractors conducting abatement and inspection work on non-
school buildings. We agree that all asbestos workers should be af-
forded the same health and safety protections regardless of their
worksite. However, we want to ensure that changes, if they are ac-
cepted, do not in any way adversely affect the current situation in
schools.

Finally, we would like to discuss possibilities for using the loan
money that is returned to the ASHAA trust fund. EPA just an-
nounced its projection that the trust fund will have over $430 mil-
lion by the year 2010. Currently, this money must be reappropriat-
ed before EPA can spend it. We would like to see EPA given the
authority to award this money to qualified applicants when the
demand for ASHAA assistance exceeds what is granted through
the regular congressional appropriation.

We are aware that some people are trying to minimize the risk
of asbestos to the general population by saying the hazard is only
to workers who are exposed in occupational settings to high levels
of asbestos over a long period of time. However, you have heard the
results of public school custodians in New York which found asbes-
tos-related problems among workers whose only exposure to asbes-
tos was during their ten-.re in the school. In banning all uses of
asbestos last year, EPA reported that:

It is well recognized that asbestos is a human carcinogen and is one of the most
hazardous substances to which humans are exposed in occupational and nonoccupa-
tional settings.

Further, EPA stated:
The conclusions regarding the health effects of asbebtos exposure represcnt a

widely accepted consensus of opinion of health agencies, scientific organizations, and
independent experts.
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Know that there is no known safe level of exposure for asbestos,
why would any of us allow our children to remain in classrooms or
school buildings that have friable asbestos-containing materials?
The National PTA is not willing to stand by and wait as schoolchil-
dren test to fmd out what level the exposure becomes hazardous.
The National PTA remains convinced that asbestos in schools is a
national crisis, warranting increased Federal involvement. We vig-
orously oppose the repeal of AHERA and strongly urge Congress
not only to authorize ASHAA but to provide significantly increased
funding for the loan and grant program.

In conclusion, just for the sake of this testimony, let us accept for
a moment the contention that low-level exposure to asbestos does
not pose a risk to children and employees in schools. This reason-
ing does not contradict support for either AHERA or ASHAA. In
fact, accepting this argument strengthens the need for both meas-
ures.

It seems we would at least want to ensure that asbestos exposure
remain at low levels. In order to do this, we would hire qualified
personnel to test if we had high levels of a, reduce high levels if
found, periodically inspect for changes in the condition of nonda-
maged asbestos-containing materials, and abate asbestos that had
been damaged. In other words, we would follow provisions similar
to those outlined in AHERA. Similarly, we would not oppose
ASHAA because ASHAA simply provides funding to school dis-
tricts for abatement of asbestos hazards that have already been de-
termined to be dangerous.

Again, thank you for this opportunity to comment on H.R. 3677.
I would be happy to respond to questions.

[The prepared statement of Ms. West followsj

PREPARbI: STATEMENT OF SARAH WEST, VIRGINIA PTA STATE LEGISLATIVE CHAIR, ON
BEHALF OF THE NATIONAL PARENT-TEACHER ASSOCIATION

Good afternoon. My name is Sarah West. I am the Legislative Chair ot the Virgin-
ia PTA, a State affiliate of the National PTA. I have been an active PTA member
for 30 years, and currently serve as a member of the National PTA's Washington
Area Legislative Service Volunteers, a local organization of PTA leaders from the
Washington, D.C., Maryland and Virginia areas.

On behalf of the 6.8 million parents, teachers, students and other child advocates
who comprise the membership of the National PTA, I appreciate this opportunity to
testify before your subcommittee on the problem of asbestos in schools. My oral
presentation is a condensed version of the National PTA's written statement so I
would ask that the complete testimony be included as part of the record of this
hearing.

Since its founding in 1897, the National PTA has been concerned about a variety
of health and safety issues affecting schoolchildren. 0.ir membership has approved
a strong policy in support of Federal legislative and regulatory efforts to address
environmental health hazards in schools, including asbestos, to ensure that ade-
quate protections are provided for children and employees, and that proper proce-
dures to minimize or eliminate hazards are followed.

To this end, the National PTA strongly supports 1111, 3677. legislation to reau-
thorize the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act [ASHAA1 progra,n. We applaud
Representatives Luken ar.d Eckart for their foresight in intrc ..cing this legislation
along with former Representative Jim Florio, and we appreciate the support o' the
more than eighty other members of the House who have cosponsored this importi. nt

You recognize the critical need for this reauthorization and can appreciate the
problems schools across the country currently face. I can relate, as an example, an
asbestos crisis in my own State that continues today. In York County, Virginia. .wo
elementary schools were closed down this current academic year when significant
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asbestos contamination was discovered. Over 1,200 children were displaced and
thousands of dollars worth of textbooks and supplies had to be destroyed. To simply
recount the events of York County's situation does not convey the unseen emotional
toll the parents, teachers, and students at these schools have experienced, not to
mention the financial pressures abatement work will add te the county's school
budget.

I wish this were a lone example of the asbestos problem in schools, but it is not. I
am not an asbestos expert, nor a scientist. I am a perent and an advocate for chil-
dren. I do know that there are many schools with significant asbestos hazards and
that insufficient Federal funding is available to help them. I also know we must
support Federal legislation now in place, specifically ASHAA and the Asbestos
Hazard Emergency Response Act [AHERA} if we hope to eliminate this unneceseary
risk.

With this statement, I would like to review some of the facts pertinent to the
issue of asbestos in schools, present the case for continued and increased funding of
the ASHAA program, and respmd to charges raised i cently in magazine articles
and editorials questioning whether asbestos abatement is a worthwhile expenditure
of Federal funds, or if it is even necessary at all.

For decades, scientists have been studying the health effects of exposure to asbes-
tos. There is little question that exposure to asbestos in occupational settings, at
high levels, or for prolenged periods of time, poses significant risks to human
health. Yet the debate about the dangers of asbestos in schools seems not to have
been resolved despite the numerous studies and reports that have detailed the haz-
ards, particularly to children. In addition, many Federal agencies, including the
Centers for Disease Control [CDC), the National Institute for Occupational Safety
and Health [NIOSIII, the National Institutes for Health [NII-H, and the Environ-
mental Protection Agency [EPAJ, have reported on the harmful health effects of as-
bestos.

The National PTA has been involved in the policy debate about asbestos in
schools from its start, and remains strongly convinced that: There is no known level
at which exposure to asbestos is considered safe; 15 million children and l.5 million
school employees are exposed to friable asbestos-containing materials at more than
44,00tf schools nationwide; and children, because of their longer remaiiiing lifespans
and higher rates of breathing, are more susceptible to the dangers posed by expo-
sure to asbestos than are adults.

Knowing this, the National PTA cannot sit back and wait white the exports pro-
long the debate about whether asbestos is hazardous or not. The time for study and
reflection has passed. We must act now to ensure that children are no longer ex-
posed to this environmental hazard in their scneols.

Federal, as well as National PTA, involvement in the debate about asbestos in
schools dates back over 1' years, In 1979, after years of debate and study, the Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency [EPA] initiated its voluntary "Technical Assistance
Program" to help schools identify and abate asbestos haeards. Unfortunately, this
program only helped schools that had already decided to inspect their buildings.
VVith little guidance and no incentives, it was inevitable that school districts would
not conduct voluntary inspections on their ewn. In 1982, after numerous delays and
modifications, EPA published a final Asbestos in Schools Identification and Notifica-
tion rule, which required schools to inspect their buildings and test for friable asbes-
tos. Evaluation surveys conducted 2 years after the regulation was issued found
high levels of noncompliance, demonstrating the ineffectiveness of the rule. As time
progressed, more schools began to inspect, but again, there was insufficient guidance
from the Federal Government, and sehools found it difficult to find accredited or
qualified trained personnel who could inspect and complete the necessary abate-
ment work. Throughout this time, the National PTA sought more stringent proce-
dures as it became apparent that voluntary measures were not going to succeed.

In 1980, Congress first acknowledged the Federal responsibility to assist financial
ly strapped school districts with the costs of clesinip by enacting PI 96-270, a loan
and pant program designed to help schools detect and abate hazardous asbestos.
The law was administered by the Department of Education, but never received
funding. At congressional hearings on the subject held in 1984, a number of educa-
tional groups, including the National pTA, testified about the severe finarivial bur-
dens schools faced in attempting to eliminate the asbestos hazard from schools, and
about the lack of funding for the Department of FAucation program.

In June 1984, with broad bipartisan support. Congress approved the ASHAA legis-
lation, which transferred the loan and grant program te the EPA. The ASHAA
process requires that local education agencies [LEA's] submit applications for funds
to their State's governor. The governors verify the financial need of the LE.A's and
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then rank the applications according to the severity of the asbestos hazards de-
scribed in the applications. EPA awards the funds based on a combination of the
two factorsfinancial need and degree of hazard posed by the asbestos. Applications
from financially eligible schools are given a priority rank based on the degree of
damaged friable asbestos they have, with "Priority One" signifying the most dam-
aged materials. The ASHAA program provides interest-free loans to MA's for up to
100 percent of the cost of a school's hazard abatement and/or grants to LEA's for up
to 50 percent of the abatement coots.

In creating the ASHAA program within the EPA, Congress acknowledged that an
attempt to manage asbeetes in America's schools was going to require Federal as-
sistance. However, there have been annual str iggles to secure funding for this pro-
gram. In 1984 Congress appropriated the $50 .nillion that was authorized for the
first year. Since then the appropriations levels have been well under the authoriza-
tion ceilings; the law authorized $700 million over a 7 year period, but so far schools
have received only about $203 million. An additional $45 million has been spent
during these years on related activities, such as worker training and certification,
loan management, program administration and technicai assistance to States. For
the current fiscal year, 1990, the authorization ceiling is $125 million and $43.4 mil-
lion was awarded to schools.

The Administration has never requested funding for this program. In the 1991
budget, the President again proposed elimination of the program stating "the worst
threats and neediest schools are currently being addressed. The Administration
further defended its position in reporting, "by 1991, all schools should be well along
in implementing their asbestos management plans."

The National PTA believes firmly that eantinued and increased Federal financial
assistance is needed for the ASHAA progrual. According to EPA, as of October 1989,
94 percent of all school districts had completed the asbestos management plans re-
quired by the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act [AHERN enacted in 1986.
By July of 1989, all schools should have actually begun to implement these plans.
This year, for the fifth consecutive year, the amount of money requested through
ASHAA has increased. For 1990, LEA's requested $403 million for abatement activi-
ties, and the $43.4 million awarded was only enough to fund about 11 percent of the
total requested. Since 1984, only about 16 percent of the schools applying for
ASHAA funds have received awards. Even among those projects that have been cat-
egorized as Priority Onethe most hazardous, lesa than one-third have been funded.

Given these figures, we are extremely disappointed that the House Appropriations
Subcommittee on VA-HUD-Independent Agencies, in just completing markup of es
fiscal year 1991 funding bill, appropriated only $48 million for next year. We had
ho especially since the House Budget Committee report had recommended that

H.A.A be given priority for increased funding this year, that this figure would
have been higher.

H.R. 3677 extends the authorization for the loan and grant program through
fiscal year 1995 and increases the maximum amount that could be appropriated to
$250 million per year. The new legislation would improve the program by increasing
the authorization ceilirip, strengthening the administration of the application and
award processes to avoid unnecessary delays, and requiring that applicants be im-
plementing their management plans according to AHERA.

As in current law, H.R. 3677 would set aside certain funds for worker training
and certification, an important aspect of the overall asbestos management program.
While we are disappointed that insufficient funding has been available for actual
loans and grants to schools, we do not want to see funds targeted for certification
and training cut either.

The ASHAA totals--both for actual loans and grants and for related activities
are abysmally low. The EPA itself has estimated that the schools' cost of compliance
with AHERA is over $3 billion. The National School Boards Association INSBAI, in
a survey of its members on this issue, has estimated that cost to be closer to $6 bil.
lion. So far, the total amount provided to schools through ASHAA represents only 6
percent of even the lower EPA estimate.

There are a few aspects of H.R. 3677 that the National PTA would like to review
before the bill is marked up. For example, we are interested in examining the finan.
cial need criteria used by EPA to determine a school district's eligibility for ASIIAA
awards. We also want to discuss amendments to the bill that would impose worker
training standards and requirements on asbestoe contractors conducting abatement
and inspection work in nonschool buildings. We agree that BB asbestos workers
should be afforded the same health and safety protections regardless of the setting;
however, we want to ensure that changes, if they are accepted, do not in any way
adversely affecl. the current situation in schools. Finally, we would like to discuss
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possibilities for using the loan money that is returned to the ASIIAA trust fund.
PA just announced its projection that the trust fund will have over $403 million by

the year 2010. Currently this money must be reappropriated before EPA can spend
it. We would like to see EPA given the authority to award this money to qualified
applicants when the demand for ASHAA funding exceeds the regular congressional
appropriation.

While the primary purpose of this testimony has been to highlight the serious
need for renewal of the ASHAA program, I also want to take this opportunity to
respond to charges made in magazine articles and newspaper editorials alleging
that the public and the Federal Government have overreacted to the problem of as-
bestos in schools.

The article that seems to have had the greatest impact is one published in the
January 19, 1990 issue of Science. The article leaves readers with two major miscon-
ceptions about the asbestos problem. The first consvrns unnecessary asbestos remov-
al. The Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act, known as AHERA, does not re-
quire removal of asbestos. The purpose of AHERA was to create a comprehensive,
standardized plan for managing the asbestos problem in our nation's schools, not to
require removal of asbestos. AHERA requires an initial inspection of schools to de-
termine if asbestos is present, and regular surveillance to detect if damage or dete-
rioration of asbestos has occurred. In properly managing asbestos, schools must dc .
velop management plans that psovide for monitoring the asbestos to ensure that it
remains in good condition. If damaged asbestos is found, schools must repair the
damage, encapsulate or enclose/ the damaged materials, and in rare instances
remove the asbestos, using special procedures. More importantly, AHERA requires
that all of this work be performed by trained, experienced, EPA-accredited profes-
sionals.

AHERA was enacted in 1986 in response to a critical need to establish safeguards
and guidelines for a process that was out of control. Prior to AHERA, many schools
were already proceeding with asbestos abatement work. However, they were at the
mercy of unqualified personnel who increased the health risks by performing inferi.
or work, or by undertaking unnecessary removal projects. In 1985, the EPA estimat-
ed that 75 percent of asbestos abatement work was being done improperly. Today,
over 94 percent of the nation's schools have completed asbestos inspections and de-
veloped management plans, bringing them closer to the goal of reducing children
and school employees' risk of exposure to hazardous asbestos in schools.

The second oft-repeatee misconception is that low-level exposure to the type of as-
bestos predominantly found in schools in this country-schrysotile asbestosposes
relatively low risk compared to other types of asbestos. This same issue was debated
in 1984. Then-Chairman of the Senate Subcommittee on Toxic Substances, Environ-
mental Oversight, and Research and Development, former Senator Robert Stafford
(R-VT), and fellow-committee-member, former Senator James Abdnor tR-SD1, asked
the Director of the Center for Environmental Health at the Centers for Disease Con-
trol [CDC] for his views on the health effects of chrysotile asbestos

In response to the Senators' request, the CDC prepared a statement on chrysotile
asbestos and disease. The statement concluded that chrysotile asbestos is carcino-
genic and that this position is supported by extensive scientific studies on both ani-
mals and humans. In congressional testimony presented in 1983, the Department of
Health and Human Services Public Health Service representative, Dr. Vernon N.
Houk, stated that "the hazards of chrysotile asbestos have been established as medi-
cal fact and that there is no good basis fcs debate to the contrary,-

Others who attempt to minimize the rsak to the general population offer that as
bestos is only harmful to workers who are exposed, in occupational settinss, to high
levels of asbestos over long periods of time. However, in a recent study of public
school custodians in Boston, Dr. Christine Oliver of Harvard Medical School found
an unusually high -ate of lung scarring among these workers whose only exposure
to asbestos was during their long tenures in the schools. At Mt. Sinai School of Med-
icine, a recent examiiiation of school custodial workers yielded similar results.

Numerous reports on the hazards of asbestos have been issued over the past
decade. But even very recently, in July 1989, the EPA issued a final rule to ban oil
uses of asbestos. After 3 years of analysis and study, and review of 45,000 pages of
comments just on the proposed rule, EPA reported that, "It is well-recognised that
asbestos is a human carcinogen and is one of the most hazardous substances to
which humans are exposed in occupational and nonoecupational settings"ceniphasis
added). Further, the EPA states, "the conclusions [reached by the EPA] regarding
the health effects of asbestos exposure represent a widely accepted consensus of
opinion of health agencies, scientific organisations, and independent experts." The
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data presented to Congress by the EPA and leaders in the scientific community
clearly demonstrate that there is no known safe level of exposure to asbestos.

Knowing this, why would any of us allow our children to remain in classrooms or
school buildings that have friable asbestos-containing material while the experts
conclusively decide at what level the exposure becomes hazardous? The National
KA is not willing to stand back and wait as schoolchildren "test" the level of risk
of asbestos in their classrooms.

We must act re.3ponsibly. EPA estimates that over 44,000 school buildings may
have friable asbestos problems. The Federal Government must renew its commit-
ment to eliminate the hazard posed by asbestos in schools to the 15 million school-
children and 1.5 million school employees exposed to the harmful substance every
day. We understand that asbestos abatement can be expensive. However, concerns
about cost should not relieve us of our responsibility to provide safe and healthful
classroom environments for schoolchildren. Increased Federal funding for ASHAA
is critical to assure that school districts are not forced to postpone the purchase of
needed educational supplies or materials in order to fund asbestos abatement
projects.

After reading this statement it becomes evident that the National PTA is ex-
tremely concerned about this issue and remains convinced that asbestos in schools
is a national crisis warranting increased Federal involvement. The National PTA
vigorously opposes repeal of AHERA, and strongly urges Congress to reauthorize
ASHAA and provide significant funding increases for the loan and grant program.

In concluding, just for the sake of this testimony, let us accept for a moment the
contention that low4svel exposure to asbestos does not pose a risk to children and
employees in schools. This reasoning does not contradict support for either AHER.A
or ASHAA. In fact, ac.:epting this argument strengthens the need for both meas-
ures. It seems we would at least want to ensure that asbestos exposure remains at
low levels. In order to do this, we would hire qualified personnel to test if we had
high levels of asbestos, reduce high levels if found, periodically inspect for changes
in the condition of nondamaged asbestos-containing materials, and abate asbestos
that had been damaged. In other words, we would follow provisions similar to those
outlined in AIIERA. Similarly, we would not oppose ASHAA because ASIIAA
simply provides funding to school districts for abatement of asbestos hazards that
have already been determined to be very dangerous.

Again, thank you for this opportunity to comment on RR. 3677. I would be happy
to respond to questions you have concerning our position on this issue.

Mr. LUKEN. I would hate to have to try to argue with that state-
ment.

Ms. WEST Thank you.
Mr. LUKEN, Not only was it delivered well, but it was a very good

statement. Thank you.
Ms. WEST. Thank you.
Mr. LUKEN. Mr. Veith.

STATEMENT OF C. GREGORY VEITH
Mr. \rum. Mr. Chairman, my name is Greg Veith. I am the

manag,m- of facilities and construction for the Archdiocese of Chica-
go and I'm representing the Council for American Private Educa-
tion today.

As the designated person for our school system, I arn responr:ole
for the asbestos program for the seventh largest school system in
the United States with 393 schools.

The Council for American Private Education, CAPE, is a Wash-
ington-based coalition of 14 national organizations representing pri-
vate elementary and secondary sCools. We include Catholic, Lu-
theran, Montessori, Hebrew Day, independent, military, Solomon
Schechter, Episcopal and private schools for exceptional children.
In this country, there are 27,000 private schools in all, serving over
5 million students.
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CAPE strongly urges passage of RR. 3677 reauthorizing ASHAA,
as this is the only source of Federal funds available to schools to
assist us in implementing our AHERA programs. AHERA mandat-
ed response act ions are very costly. However, since July 1989, when
schools were required to begin the response actions, estimated costs
have escalated and are expected to continue to do so. For example,
we believe the original EPA cost estimate of $3 billion is far short
of actual costs.

The present ASHAA authorization and appropriations have
proven inadequate to address the enormity of the asbestos prob-
lems in schools. Congress has provided less than $50 million per
annum over the past 7 years, and $250 million over a 7 year period
is totally inadequate to address this problem.

The U.S. Catholic Conference, also a member of CAPE, conduct-
ed a survey this year on projected costs for abatement, along with
actual costs of initial inspections and management plans. This
data, which most accurately reflects State level costs, represents 60
percent of our dioceses. These costs total $430 million and woula
likely grow to $800 million for all of the dioceses.

CAPE also conducted a survey of its non-Catholic schools and
found the following: The 93 Illinois Lutheran Church-Missouri
Synod schools will spend about $3.7 million; the 20 Christian
Schools International schools of Illinois and Indiana will spend
over $1 million; the 25 Mid-Atlantic Seventh-Day Adventist schools
will spend about $2.2 million; and private schools in New York
State will spend well over $109 million.

The financial cost to the Nation's schools to meet the require-
ments of AHERA is staggering. While the public school community
may meet some of the costs of these requirements by raising local
or State tax levies, private and parochial schools must raise these
funds as best they can by fundraising activities or by borrowing
from local lending institutions at premium cost. Regardless of the
source of these public and private school funds, they are resources
which could be best used to enhance the education of our Nation's
schoolchildren.

CAPE certainly supports ASHAA reauthorization to the full
amount of $250 million per annum. We also support the recent
amendment to S. 1893, which would require the EPA to distribute
applications or notify schools no later than November 15 of each
year concerning the ASHAA program. This, in turn, would allow
EPA to approve these applications by the following January in
order for the LEA's to properly plan for summer work. Also, provi-
sions should be made for the LEA's to distribute and/or redistrib-
ute funds at the local level, For example, the triennial inspection
will be due in 1992. H.R. 3677 allows for funding of these inspec-
tions, but the EPA processes make this unfeasible.

We also request relief in the procedures for excluding certain
schools from the funding pr9cess. We believe a financial need
clause should be included in this bill. It has been the practice of
the EPA to automatically reject any application from a public
school district with average per capita income in the top 30 percent
of the country.

For private schools, the EPA uses per-pupil spending to elimi-
nate the top 30 percent of the applicant pool. It is our opinion that
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these cutoffs sometimes result in needy schools being eliminatP
Financial need cannot be fully evaluated without considering the
i.mpact of the cost of an abatement project on the schor,is, the
number of people available to share the burden, the specia l. costs of
serving disadvantaged students, and other factors, such af, the local
cost of living, that could result in inflated per-pupil expenditures of
per capita income.

In closing, I would like to quote from the House Concurrent
Budget Resolution report for fiscal year 1991:

The committee also recommends that EPA programs designed to reduce environ-
mental hazards in our Nation's schools, such as those authorized by the Asrestos
School Hazard Abatement Act and the Lead Contamination Control Act, be given
priority for increased funding.

I thank you for allowing me to testify today, and I will try to
answer any questions you may have.

[The prepared statement and attachment of Mr. Veith
PREPARED STATEMENT OF C. GREGORY VaITH, MANAGER, Fr, riss ST.RvIrES AND

CONSTRUCTION, ARCHDIOCESE OF CHICAGO, ON BEHALF OF THE %...A.airit-a FOR AMERI-
CAN PRIVATE EDUCATION

Mr. Chiiirman and distinguished members of this subcommittee, I am Gregory
Veith, Manager of Facilities and Construction for the Catholic Archdiocese of Chica-
go. I wish very much to thank the subcommittee for allowing mo to testify today. I
am reprOenting the Council for American Private Education. As the designated
person for our school system, I am responsible for the asbestos program for the sev-
enth largest school system in the country with 393 schools. This responsibility in-
cludes implementation of the AHERA laws, inspections, management plans, project
design, worker training and insuring that the response action): shown in the man-
agement plan are properly carried out.

The Council for American Private Education [CAPE] is a WashinKton-based coali-
tion of 14 national organbations reprownting private elementary i.nd secondary
schools. We include Catholie, Lutheran, Montessori, Hebrew Day, Independent, mili-
tary, Solomon Schechter, Episcopal and private schools for exceptional children. In
this country 12 percent of elemental; and secondary students attend private
schools, 13 percent of our teachers teach in private schools, and 25 percent of all
schools are prig te. There are some 27,000 private schools in all, serving 5,241,000
students. (Nat' ,T I renter for Education Statistics)

CAPE strong.", urges passage of H.R. 3677 reauthorizing ASHAA, as this is the
only source of F'ederal funds available to schools to assist us in implementing our
A-HERA programs. AHERA mandated response actions are very costly. Since July
1989 when schools were required to begin the response actions, estimated costs have
escalated and are expected to continue to do so. For example, we believe the EPA
ccet estimate of $3 billion is far short of actual costs.

In 1982, the EPA issued the "Friable Asbestos-Containing Materials in Srhools
Identification and Notification Rule" (40 CFR Part 763) promulgated under the
Toxic Substances Control Act. This rule required all schools to inspect, sample, and
analyze friable asbestos materials; document and maintain records; and notify em-
ployees, students and parents of such hazards. In the absence of any Federal finan-
cial assistance and with minimal training, most school oificials made every good
faith effort to comply with these regulations.

However, both Congress and the EPA were dissatisfied when surveys revealed
that about 30 percent of all schools had not complied with the Asbestos-in-Schools
Rules. The Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Act was passed in 1984 because Con-
gress determined that the presence in school buildings of friable or easily damaged
asbestos created an unwarranted hazard to the health of schoolchildren and employ-
ees who are exposed to these materials. The act established an EPA program of in-
terest-free loans and grants of up to 50 percent of the abatement cost to assist
schools to comply with Asbestos-in-School Rules. Congress authorized $50 million for
fiscal years 14 and 1985 and $100 million per annum for the subsequent 5 years to
assist schools to abate asbestos health hazards

Two years later, in 1986, Congress reemphasized its concern about exposure to as-
bestos hazards in schools and enacted the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response
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Act. This statute required the nation's public and private schools to inspect build-
ings for all asbestos °Detaining materials, develop and implement plans for the oper-
ation, maintenance and repair of such materials, and to take corrective response ac-
tions necessary to protect human health and the environment from asbestos haz-
ards. All of these activities were required to be performed by State certified person-
nel. Schools were required to provide training to custodial staff regarding the proper
handling and maintenance of asbestos materials. These requirements have placed a
heavy financial burden on our nation's schools. Unfortunately, Congress did not au-
thorize any funding to waist schools to comply with the requirements of AHER.A.
Apparently it was thought that the funding provided under ASHAA, in 1984, was
sufficient to .ddreas the schools' asbestos problems. If Congress considers it a na-
tional priority to abate naivetes hazards in schools, then it should also consider it a
national priority to provide the necessary resources to assist all schools in comply-
ing with the Asbtos Hazard Emergency Response Act.

The present ASHAA authorization and appropriations have proven inadequate to
address the enormity of the asbestos problems in schools. Congress has provioied less
than $50 million per annum over the past 7 years and even this amount has been
reduced each year by the Gramm, Rudman, Hollings budget reduction reouire-
ments. $250 million over a 7 year period is totally inadequate to address this prob-
lem.

The EPA, in implementing the compliance requirements of AHERA, has projected
that approximately 106,983 elementary and secondary schoola nationwide will be af-
fected. EPA has also projected that the potential estimated cost to schools for ad-
dressing the specific requirements of AHERA to be the following:

In indiums of dollar.
1. Inspections and sampling 78.5
2. Development/implementation of management plans 1 27
3. Periodic surveillance 47.7
4. Reinspection 23.2
5. Special operations and maintenance 292.7
6. Abatement response actions

--
1.43

Total cost (in billions of dollars) 3.145

' Federal Register/Vol. 52, No. 210/Friday, October 30, 1987, page 418.5

The US Catholic Conference, a member of CAPE, conducted a survey this year on
projected costs for abatement including the costs of initial inspection and manage-
ment plans. With 105 out of 176 dioceses responding, the actual cost totaled $4:30
million. This represents only 60 percent of the dioceses. Therefore, this figure will
likely csevdto $M0 million.

We our projections on the actual cost of inspections and management plan
development in 6626 Catholic elementary and secondary schools. Our survey (At-
tachment A) indicates the following projected costs for abatement activities in those
same scho ols:

Inspections $7,051,991
Management plan development 32,834,701
Projected cost of abatement activities 390,782,519

Grand total of real and expected costs 429,869,143

If these 6,626 Catholic schools from 105 dioceses in 44 States and the District of
Columbia can be regarded as a microcosm of the 100,983 elementary and secondary
schools nationwide, the total coot to our nation's schools to comply with the require
meats of AHERA would be $6,938,087,968 or more than twice the amount projected
by the EPA. This figure also clotiely coBroreatrznds to the estimate of $G billion in a
report released by the National School Association in July 1989.

CAPE conducted a survey of its non-Catholic schools and found the following: the
93 Illinois Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod schools will spend about $3.7 million,
the 20 Christian Schools International schools of Illinois and Indiana will spend
over $1 million; the 25 Mid-Atlantic Seventh-day Adventist schools will spend about
$2.2 million. Private schools in New York State alone will spend well over $109 mil-
lion.

The financial cost to the nation's schools to meet the requirements of AHERA are
staggering beyond belief and fall upon poor, rural, inner city and middle class sub-
urban schools without exception. The public school community may meet some of
the costs of these requirements by raising local or State tax levies or by floating
local bond issues. Private and parochial schools must raise these funds as best they
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can by school "fundraising" activities or by borrowing from local lending institu-
tions at premium. R,ardless of the source of these public and private schools funds,
they are resources which can best be used to enhance the education of our nation's
schoolchildren.

Congress in enacting the Asbestes Hazard Emergency Response Act has imposed a
tremendous financial burden on our nations' schc 'Is. It is incumbent, then, that this
same legislative body provide adequate financial assistance to schools to enable
them to meet their statutory obligations in this regard.

CAPE certainly supports ASH.A.A reauthorization. We support the recent amend-
ment to S. 1893 which would require EPA to distribute applications or notify schools
no later than November 15 of each year concerning the ASHAA program. This in
turn would allow EPA to approve these applications by the following oanuary in
order for the LEA's to properly plan for summer work. Also, provisions should be
made for the I.,EA's to distribute and/or redistribute funds at the local level. I'or
example, the triennial inspection will be due in 1992. H.R. 3677 allows for fundiae
these inspections, but the EPA processes make this unfeasible.

Additionally, we request relief in the procedures for excluding certain schools
from the funding process. We believe a "financial need" clause should be included
in this bill. It has been the practice of the EPA to automatically reject any applica-
tion from a public school district with average per capita income in the top 30 per-
cent of the country. For private schools, the EPA uses per-pupil spending to elimi-
nate the top 30 percent of the applicant pool. It is our opinion that these cutoff's
sometimes result in needy schools being eliminated from the applicant pool. Finan-
cial need cannot be fully evaluated without considering the impact of the cost of an
abatement project on the schools, the number of people available to share the
burden, the special costs of serving disadvantaged students, and othe. factors, such
as the local cost of living, that may result in inflated per-pupil expenditures of per-capita income.

Although the administration did not include funds for asbestos abatement in its
1J91 budget. EPA has been helpful in working with the schools on both ASHAA and
AHERA. We thank the Environmental Assistance Division for convening a meeting
on rethinking the financial needs analysis for private schools and for their contin-
ued communication on that and other topics.

Both public and private schools have had to cut back on their education programs
in order to pay these extraordinary costs. At a time when schools are working so
hard to equip children with the many skills needed for their success, we urge C,on-
gress to make a large commitment to help shoulder the costs of protecting their
safety. It is now that schools need Congresses support for reauthorizing ASHAA at
the highest possible figure but not less than $250 million annually over 5 years.

Thank you again for this opportunity.
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DIOCESE-WIDE ASBESTOS COST ASSEMMENT-Continued
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CAOCESE-WIDE ASBESTOS COST ASSESSMENT-Continued
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DIOCESE-WIDE ASBESTOS COST ASSESSMENT--Continued
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Mr. LUKEN. Mr. Billirakis, EPA data indicates that the request
for financial assistance has increased under ASHAA over the
recent years. Do you have anything to base the anticipation that it
will continue to increase? Is there anything happening out there?
What do you notice?

Mr. BILLIRAKIS. I can tell you my personal experiences in the
schools in the State of Ohio, Mr. Chairman, as to what is going on
and what the need is. The data says that there is more and more
asbestos revealed in every school building on an annual basis---

Mr. LUKEN. More and more each year?
Mr. BILLIRAKIS. That's correct.
Mr. LUKEN. More than anticipated?
Mr. BILLIRAKIS. More than anticipated. I can tell you that there's

very little being done about it. I can tell you there's a tremendous
amount of fear among school employees, especially the school em-
ployees we represent, teachers and some support personnel. I can
tell you that parents are very much concerned, and there's a great
deal of frustration among local board of education members and
administrators who are standing by helpless and not being able to
do much about it. I can tell you that the State of Ohio, at least,
does not provide much funding for that.

Mr. LUKEN. Do any of them recommend any changes in the
AHERA law, that you know of?

Mr. Blum Axis. The State Department of Education did not rec-
ommend a change in the AHERA law. It simply made recommen-
dations to the General Assembly last year for additional funding of
$75 million to deal with the issue over a 2-year period. The General
Assembly decided to fund it at only a $20 million level.

No, they did not recommend any changes, to my knowledge.
Mr. LUKEN, Does any of the panel have any recommendations for

changes in the AHERA law? Mr. Veith.
Mr. VEITH. I think I would recommend that the AHERA law be

more fully explained or clarified.
Mr. LUKEN. Can you give us a little more of a hint than that?
Mr. VEITH. I happen to agree with Linda Fisher's testimony, that

over the past 1% years there has been a lot if media hype and
doom and gloom on national television and newspapers about as-
bestos removal, including you can't wash your floors if they have
vinyl asbestos tile on it. I think clarification from AHERA from the
start, but better late than never, on exactly what the law intended
would be very helpful to us.

Mr. LUKEN. Okay. That makes sense.
Mr. August.
Mr. AUGUST. Yes, thank you.
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One thing that I think would make a tremendous difference
would be if the training requirements were upgraded. Currently, as
a result of discussions about what to do with asbestos in public and
commercial buildings, there are now a lot of motions, either with
EPA or through legislative action, to upgrade the standards for
what it takes to become an asbestos abatement worker, to raise the
amount of hours.

We have to remember that the asbestos in schools rule was a ne-
gotiated rule and, unfortunately, some of the parties at the table
decided, since there wasn't a specified number of hours of training
in the law, that in the regulation they would cut it to the bare
bones. In fact, everybody is paying for that right now.

Right now, everybody who is a maintenance and custodial person
is supposed to get at least a 2-hour awareness training. What has
happened is, at least 2 hours means a 2-hour awareness training.
It's not enough to convey what people need to know, just to stay
away from this stuff.

The next level of training is a 2-day training, and that's supposed
to be for custodians and maintenance people who actually disturb
material on a small basis, less than 3 feet of material. These are
not certified workers. These are merely people who are supposed to
respond to small occurrences.

I ye had a lot of dealings with the training of these folks and I
have talked to a lot of them about the training they've had, and a
lot of it has been absolutely inadequate, which is why when some-
thing happens people don't respond correctly. Further, the people
who are supposed to do the large abatement jobs and full-scale re-
moval work are only required to have 3 days to become a certified
abatement worker. That's clearly inadequate.

So, upgrading the training levels for all those different levels
would go a long way for people actuallyas has been said, for
people knowing what they're supposed to be doing and then being
able to carry those out because they have the equipment in order
to do the job.

Mr. LUKEN. Does counsel have a question or two'?
Mr. COLE. Several of you have mentioned using funds that are

now in the asbestos trust fund. Would any of you choose to elabo-
rate on that, how could we access those funds, what changes in the
law would be required?

Mr. PACKER. If I may, when AlIERA was passed in 1986let me
go back. Most of the funds that have been given out under ASHAA
are loans. About two-thirds of the money is loans that schools
repay back to the Federal Government. In 1986, AHERA said that
any of those loans would be deposited in something called the as
bestos trust fund, that that money would only be able to be spent
on providing additional loans anci grants for schools, but it could
only be spent if so specifically appropriated by the Congress
through the Appropriations Committee. So far the Appropriations
Committee, in its wisdom, has decided not to appropriate any of
those funds and they are building up--in fact, attached to the NEA
testimony is a table, data we got from the EPA, that showsas was
mentioned, it's going to go up to $400 million over the next 20
years.

Mr. LUKEN. What is it now? Does anybody know?
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Mr. PACKER. About $25 million by the end of fiscal 1991. It's $23
million exactly.

Ms. HERBER. Ws more than that now.
Mr. PACKER. Yes. It's going up
Ms. HERBER. Eight. million a day.
Mr. PACKER. What we recommend specifically is that, in any

year for which EPA itself says there is more qualified applications
available than they have funds to fund them, that the EPA Admin-
istrator be given the authority to go into the trust fund and give
those loans out to schools. In other words, rather than only making
that money available if Congress appropriates and giving the EPA
Administrator the authority to grant loansat least loans if not
grants, as wellto schools, if they meet EPA's own criteria and
sufficient funding is not otherwise being provided by Congress.

Mr. Cou. One followup question.
You mentioned that currently the loan/grant ratio is about two-

thirds loans?
Mr. PACKER. Right. It's exactly, over the life of the program, 68

percent loans and 32 percent grants.
Mr. Coi.E. In order to make our dollars go a little farther, do any

of you support going to an essentially loan only program, or toward
increasing the amount of loans in proportion to grants?

Mr. PACKER. It would not, at the time, make money go farther,
because there's x amount of money that's available to give out. You
cpuld change the mix of it, but again, unless there was some mech-
a lism te make sure that the money that was repaid was going to
go back out, it wouldn't, in the long run, even make more money

ailable.
,T think also that for some truly financially needy districts, pro-

vie ing some grant moneyand each of the awards is a different
mhz. Some can be up to 50 percent grants. I think, compared to
oth 3r Federal statutes, it is actually a much higher loan award
thai a lot of other Federal statutes for schools. I don't know if
Kat? would--

1149. HERBER. I would have two comments. The first might be to
consider getting rid of the trust fund and establishing an account
over at Treasury, and then earmarking that money so that you
have an earmarked appropriation over a period of time so that the
mon(y is always available then to EPA in order to make loans and
grants.

The second thing that I would suggest is that there are some
schools, as Joel Packer indicated, private and public, that would
never be able to afford to repay the loan under any circumstances.
We have some public school districts that are in a situation where
they aimply cannot pass a bond and there are no circumstances
under which they would be able "to increase taxes. So for them to
receiv? a loan would be almost counterproductive because then
they would be in a position of being required to pay the Federal
Government back.

Mr. Co LE. One final question, and that is, we've heard different
numbers about how many of the projects have been accomplished
in the last 5 years, 11 percent of all qualified, maybe one-third of
the priority one projects that have been financed under the
ASHAA program.

C;
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Do you have any feel for how many projects or the volume of dol-
lars that has been spent locally by the State or local agenciesI
mean, if we're doing x percent through the Federal --ute, what are
the States doing?

Mr. BILLIRAKI8. For Ohio, in the previous biennium, they spent
$1.8 million for all architectural design problemsthat would in-
clude asbestosand all other problems. The biennium that we're in
right now, they approved $20 million for all structural projects.

Mr. CoLE. But there is no countrywide data--
Mr. PACKER. No. It is my understanding that very few States

the State of New York has appropriated some funding, and I be-
lieve the State of Illinois. But other than those, and Ohio, and
maybe one or two others I'm not aware of, very little State money
is specifically earmarked for asbestos abatement. I mean, some
schools obviously can use money from their general physical plant,
construction type money, but very few States have statutes directly
relating to funding of schools for asbestos abatement.

Mr. VEITH. I don't believe Illinois has providing any money for
funding; only for the regulatory people.

Ms. HERBER. As a general rule, asbestos repair work or abate-
ment or containment or removal will come under building renova-
tion and construction. In general, States do not provide any finan-
cial assistance to local districts in order to do any renovation or re-
construction of buildings.

Mr. Coix. I didn't mean to limit it to States. I was interested in
any numbers on State or locally raised funds.

Ms. HERBER. Well, I have a survey that we undertook of 671
schools that talks aboutI mean, in general, that would he 100
percent local funding, either from tax exempt bonds or from gener-
al revenues. I can give you those figures.

Mr. Coug. Please.
Mr. LUKEN. All right. I thank this panel and I thank all of the

witnesses. I believe we've had a successful hearing, demonstrating
what needs to be done. There doesn't seem to be much dissensioL
as far as ASHAA is concerned. We need to authorize it, so it's up
to us to move ahead, which as chairman of the subcommittee I will
say we will do, since the indications are there is support for it,
which is the main ingredient. It is something that has to be done,
needs to be done, so hopefully we will do it, inspired by this testi-
mony.

Thank you very much. The hearing is adjourned.
[Whereupon. at 4:10 p.m., the hearing was adjourned.]
[The following statement was submitted for the record;]
STATEMENT OF THE SERVICE EMPLOVE&S INTERNATIONAL UNION. AFL-CIO, CLC

The Service Employees International Union, AFL-CIO, CIC, appreciates this op-
portunity to comment on H.R. 3677, the Asbestos School Hazard Abatement Reau-
thorization Act. SEIU represents 935,000 service-sector employees, including more
than 100,000 school employees who would benefit directly from passage of this im-
portant

Our building service and maintenance members are in daily contact with friable
and nonfriable asbestos. They work in the boiler rooms and above suspended ceiling
panels where asbestos ib sprayed on the structural beams. They strip and wax floor
tiles containing asbestos, and sweep and vacuum the floors under sprayed-on asbes-
tos-containing ceilings. Many of the above activities disturb asbestos-containing ma-
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terials, creating a hazardous environment for both service workers and other build-
ing occupants.

The findings of the original asbestos-in-schools legislation remain true today. Med-
ical research has clearly demonstrated that "the presence in school buildings of fri-
able or easily damaged asbestos creates an unwarranted hazard to the health of the
schoolchildren and school employees who are exposed to such materials". (Findings
of the Asbestos School Hazard Ntection and Control Act of 1980). Recent studies
have shown that a third or more of school custodians have lung damage indicative
of asbestos exposure. For example, a Wisconsin study found that 43 percent of
school janitors with 30 or more years on the job have lung abnormalities indicating
damage from asbestos. A New York City study found that 28 percent of school custo-
dians had lung scarring consistent with exposure to asbestos. A study of Boston
school custodians had similar findings. A second Wisconsin study of mesothelioma
cases (a rare cancer caused by exposure to asbestos), found a threefold increase in
the risk of mesothelioma among school employees and janitors. The American Acad-
emy of Pediatrics has estimated that asbestos exposure in schools will result in the
death of approximately 1,000 Americans over the next 30 years.

SEIU has long been eoncerned about the presence of asbestos in the nation's
schools and other buildings. Beginning in 1983, SE1U launched a campaign to pro-
tect the health of our members who work in school buildings that contain asbestos.
SEIU was instrumental in the passage of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response
Act [AHERA], and we spearheaded efforts to obtain Federal assistanw for asbestos
cleanup work in the schools.' Accordingly, we commend the subcommittee for its
efforts to extend and expand the Federal asbestos grant and loan program, other-
wise known as ASHAA.

The financial assistance provided to school districts under the ASHAA grant and
loan program is vital to the success of inspection, maintenance, and aoatement ef-
forts mandated under ARERA. Just as it is widely recognized that the hezard of
asbestos in schools must be addressed, it is clear that many school districts are
unable to afford these essential activities without jeopardizing their educational pro-
grams. ASHAA thus is a critical component of our nation's commitment to protect-
ing our schoolchildren and school workers from the hazards of asbestoe.

The proposed legislation would double the authorization level of' ASHAA to $250
million per year. This is a much-needed change. One need look no further than the
results of this year's awards by the Environmental Protection Agency tO see that
additional funds are sorely needed. lb fiscal year 1990, EPA was able to assist 129
school systems undertaking 206 abatement projects in 168 schools. Yet the agency
received applications from 863 school systems to fund a total of 3,352 abatement
projects, 2,355 of which were identified by EPA as eligible for funding under the
ASIIAA program. EPA was therefore able to assist less than 10 percent of eligible
abatement projects. Only 63 of 1,922 "Hazard Category Two" projects could be
funded under the 1990 appropriation, or 3 percent. of the eligible projects. The pro-
posed pending before the subcommittee will help address that prob.
em.

ASHAA and AHER.A, taken together, provide a responsible solution to the serious
risks posed by asbestos in schools. There can be no doubt that ASHAA and AHERA
are working. Tens of thousands of school districts have inspected their schools for
asbestos and are working to design the appropriate response action. Because of
AHERA, our members are being informed for the first time about the presence of
asbestos in the buildings where they work.2 Because of ASHAA, school districts are
receiving the financial assistance they need to clean up asbestos in the schools.

It is all too clear that workers with exposure to hazardous asbestos in buildings
are suffering adverse health effects from that exposure. Children are particularly
vulnerable, and their exposure to unsafe building conditions poses a risk of similar
tragic health effecte. It us therefore imperative that the AHERA program proceed
and that ASHAA be reauthorized in order to provide local school districts with fi-
nancial assistance to carry out AHERA's important mission.

SEIU's concern about asbestos is not restricted to school buildings. Simultaneous with our
efforts to address asbestos in schools, SEW has worked to address asbestos in all public and
commercial buildings. While AHERA and ASHAA are a critical first step in combating the haz-
ards of asbestos in buildings, they are just a first step. SEW will continue to press for kgislation
and/or regulations to abate asbestos hazards in all public and commercial buildings.

2 This is not to say that compliance with AHERA has been complete. Many, if not most of our
members who work in schooks, have not received the two-hour "awareness' training mandated
under AHERA. SEW believes that AHERA is a model that works, but that. stronger enforce-
ment of the law is needed.
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SEW is well aware of the recent spurt of publicity surrounding the issue of asbes-
tos in buildings. Much has been made about articles in Science magazine and the
New England Journal of Medicine which claim that undisturbed asbestos in build-
ings is safe. Those same articles claim that chrysotie asbestosthe most widely
used type of asbestosis not hazardous at low levels of exposure. We urge the sub-
committee not to be misled by these articles. They are part of a well-orchestrated
publicity campaign being conduted by the asbestos industry in an attempt to down-
play the risks posed by asbestos in buildings in order to limit their financial liabil-
ity. The conclusions of the Science and New England Journal articles have been
called into question by a number of scientists as well as by the EPA. Whatever the
claims of the cuthors of the Science and New England Journal articles, medical
studies are revealing adverse health effects among school workers whose only expo-
sure to asbestos i9 from school buildings.

SEIU stands ready to assist the subcommittee in its efforts to protect the health
of our nation's schoolchildren and Frhool workers, and urges the subcommittee to
pass H.R. :$77 without delay. Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this
legisla don.
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